
 

Democratic Services 
Swyddfa’r Cyngor 

CAERNARFON 
Gwynedd 
LL55 1SH 

 

 

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 
 

  
 

Meeting 
 

SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
 

 

 
Date and Time 

 
10.00 am, THURSDAY, 16TH MARCH, 2017 

 

 
 

 
Location 

 
Siambr Hywel Dda, Council Offices, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 1SH 

 
* NOTE 

 

This meeting will be webcast 
 

http://www.gwynedd.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 
 

 

 

Contact Point 

Glynda O'Brien 

(01341) 424301 

GlyndaOBrien@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

(DISTRIBUTED 08/03/17) 

Complete Agenda

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/
http://www.gwynedd.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MEMBERSHIP (18) 
 
 

Plaid Cymru (10) 
 

Councillors 
 

Alan Jones Evans Aled Ll. Evans 
E. Selwyn Griffiths Christopher Hughes 
Sian Wyn Hughes Elin Walker Jones 

Ann Williams R. Hefin Williams 
R. H. Wyn Williams Gareth A. Roberts 

 
 

Independent (4) 
 

Councillors 
 

Eryl Jones-Williams Beth Lawton 
Dewi Owen Eirwyn Williams 

 

Llais Gwynedd (2) 
 

Councillors 
 

Alwyn Gruffydd Peter Read 

 

Labour (1) 
 

Councillor Sion W. Jones 

 

Individual Member (1) 
 

Councillor Linda Ann Jones 

 

Ex-officio Members 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council  

 
 

  
 

 



 

CO-OPTED MEMBERS: 
 

With a vote on education matters only 
 
 

Dylan Davies Representative for Meirionnydd Parent 
Governors 

Rhian Roberts Representative for Dwyfor Parent Governors 

Rita Price 
 
Awaiting Nomination 

Catholic Church 
 
The Church in Wales 
 
 

 
Without a vote: 
 
 
Dilwyn Elis Hughes UCAC 

David Healey Undebau Athrawon (ATL) 

  

  

  



 

 

A G E N D A 
  

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
 

2.   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declaration of personal interest. 

 
 

3.   URGENT BUSINESS 
 

 

 To note any items that are a matter of urgency in the view of the 
Chairman for consideration. 
 

 

4.   MINUTES 
 

6 - 14 

 The Chairman shall propose that the minutes of the meeting of this 
Committee held on the 26 January 2017, be signed as a true copy. 
 
(Copy enclosed) 

 

 

5.   EDUCATION SERVICE'S ANNUAL REPORT 
 

15 - 80 

 Cabinet Member:   Councillor Gareth Thomas 
 
To consider the Education Cabinet Member’s report on the above. 
 
(Copy enclosed) 

 

 

6.   GWE REVIEW 
 

81 - 91 

 Cabinet Member:    Councillor Gareth Thomas 
 
To consider a report on the above. 
 
(Copy enclosed) 
 

 

 

7.   SCRUTINY INVESTIGATION INTO CARERS' PROVISION 
 

92 - 128 

 Cabinet Members     Councillor W. Gareth Roberts 
   Councillor Mair Rowlands 
 
To receive the final report of the Scrutiny Investigation into Carers’ 
Provision.   
 
(Copy enclosed) 

 

 

 
 



SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26/01/17 

 

 

SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26/01/17 
 

 
 

Present: 
Councillor Beth Lawton (Chair) 
Councillor Eirwyn Williams (Vice-chair) 

 
Councillors:      Alan Jones Evans, Aled Evans, E. Selwyn Griffiths, Alwyn Gruffydd, Siân Wyn 
Hughes, Elin Walker Jones, Linda Ann Wyn Jones, Eryl Jones-Williams,  Ann Williams, Hefin 
Williams and R. H. Wyn Williams. 
 
Officers:    Arwel Ellis Jones (Senior Corporate Support Manager), Gareth James (Member 
Support and Scrutiny Manager) and Glynda O’Brien (Member Support Officer). 
 
Also in attendance:    
 
For Items 3 and 4 below: 
Councillor W. Gareth Roberts 
Morwenna Edwards, Corporate Director 
Aled Davies, Head of Adults, Health and Well-being Department 
Rhion Glyn, Senior Business Manager 
 
For Items 5 and 6 below: 
Councillor Gareth Thomas, Cabinet Member for Education  
Arwyn Thomas, Head of Education Department 
Keith Parry, Area Officer   
Bethan Eleri Roberts, Performance Management Officer 
 
Others invited:  
Alun Charles, External Consultant, for item 6 below. 
Ffion Johnstone, Regional Director - West, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board, for item 4 
below. 
 
Apologies:   Councillors Dewi Owen, Peter Read and Gareth A. Roberts, and Rita Price 
(Catholic Church).    
 
1. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

(i) Councillor Eryl Jones-Williams declared a personal interest in Item 5 - North Wales 
Population Needs Assessment and that he would withdraw from the Chamber 
should a specific discussion regarding home care payments be held. 

(ii) Similarly, Councillor Linda Ann Wyn Jones declared a personal interest in Item 5 - 
North Wales Population Needs Assessment and that she would withdraw from the 
Chamber should a specific discussion regarding learning disability matters be held.  

 
2. MINUTES 
 

The Chair signed the minutes of the previous meeting of this Committee held on 17 
November 2016 subject to the following: 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26/01/17 

(a) Item 2 - Statement from the Chair   
 

Councillor Alwyn Gruffydd reported that there was no reference in the previous minutes to 
his dissatisfaction regarding the fact that members were not aware of the intention of the 
Head of Education to lead on an interim period on a piece of work in relation to recent 
changes / strengths and weaknesses of GwE's current arrangements.   At the previous 
meeting, the Portfolio Cabinet Member noted that he was aware of the above intention but 
that it was the Chief Executive's responsibility to address the matter. 
 
In response, the Senior Corporate Support Manager reminded members that the matter 
had been fully discussed with the Chief Executive at the preparatory meeting of this 
Scrutiny Committee on 13 December 2016, and it had been resolved at this meeting that 
there was probably an intention to submit a report on the outcomes of work by the Head of 
Education on GwE to the meeting of the Services Scrutiny Committee in March 2017. 
 
Whilst accepting that an explanation had been received at the preparatory meeting of this 
Scrutiny Committee on 13 December 2016, the Member was strongly of the opinion that the 
matter should have been fully discussed at a public meeting so that Members and electors 
were fully aware of the situation. 
 
(b) Item 4 (c) - GwE Report 

 
To correct the second sentence in point (c) to read: 
 
"However, one member felt that this should have already taken place and specific reference 
was made to four gifted head teachers who had been lost to GwE over recent months 
within the catchment area of one school". - (and not within his Ward as noted in the 
previous minutes). 
 

3. NORTH WALES POPULATION NEEDS ASSESSMENT DRAFT REPORT 
 

Submitted - a draft report of the North Wales Population Needs Assessment produced in 
accordance with the requirement of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Adults, Health and Well-being provided the background. He was 
of the opinion that people needed to be encouraged to take responsibility for their health 
and future early enough in order to make life easier and more comfortable should their 
health deteriorate.  He explained that this could involve moving to smaller houses, moving 
closer to family etc. in order to receive support whilst living independently.    He 
emphasised that steps needed to be tailored to individuals' needs but that people should 
think about the future whilst they were still healthy and independent.  
 
In response to the above, a Member disagreed with the above observation.  Another 
Member added that the main problem was the difficulty for individuals to accept that their 
health was deteriorating and some suffered with dementia with everyone wishing to retain 
their independence. 
 
Members were given an opportunity to offer observations on the content of the report and 
the following points were highlighted for further consideration: 
 
(a) This type of assessment was welcomed but there was concern about the influx of 

individuals who had retired to European countries who could come to Gwynedd, in 
light of the European referendum result.  Should this happen, it was asked whether or 
not any provision for this was being considered.    

 

Page 6



SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26/01/17 

(b) Learning Disabilities - it was welcomed that the provision was being supported but 
there was no reference in the document to collaboration with the mental health 
service.   

(c) Emphasis and assurance should be placed on the language needs of service users 
(ch)The value of volunteers' unpaid contributions should be recognised 
(d) Schemes to develop services and support to tackle loneliness were welcomed but 

there was concern about the continuation of such schemes in relation to funding them 
in future.   Specific reference was made to the Ffrindia' Scheme which appeared to be 
a success but it was coming to an end; as a result, it would affect those people who 
had taken advantage of the scheme. 

(dd)In terms of increasing extra care housing provision, an appeal was made for the 
Service  
      to share information with elected members about future plans.  
(e) In relation to future needs, there was a need to empower communities and as a result 

that there was an important role to identify ageing individuals.  The need to be 
confident to contact individuals in their communities was added as rural areas did not 
often receive services from the third sector.   

(f) Engagement - a request was made for details regarding who contributed to the 
questionnaire that had been sent to users. 

(ff) It should be recognised that provision for children and young people with severe and 
complex needs was costly.  Reference to the needs of the autism spectrum disorder 
was welcomed and attention was drawn to the need to collaborate with relevant 
services in this context in terms of provision.  Attention was drawn to an increase 
where a cluster of approximately 10 children had been seen in one area.    

(g) It was asked whether officers were satisfied that the assessment was cross-
departmental? 

(ng)Would there be collaboration with extra care housing providers such as Cynefin and  
     specifically on provision in the south of the county? 
(h) Importance of recognising and addressing the matters raised about mental health and 

there was concern about the need to use acute beds outside north Wales.                                                                                                              
 
A response was received to the above observations from relevant officers as follows: 
 

 An assessment of needs was before the committee and that action plans would be 
provided in future.  As this was the first assessment and that it was based on 
evidence rather than anecdotal evidence, it was further noted:  When it would be 
reviewed, it was hoped that the Service could fill the gaps and commission in a 
wiser manner by using information received.  

 

 The Cabinet Member for Adults, Health and Well-being emphasised that it was a 
time of financial austerity everywhere with service capacity reducing.  
Consideration would have to be given to the range of services and volunteer 
capacity. 

 

 In relation to engagement, information about the number of people who 
contributed to the questionnaire from Gwynedd would be found and shared with 
Members.   

 

 The Head of Adults, Health and Well-being Department was satisfied with the 
information but he acknowledged that there were gaps and emphasised that a 
regional evidence base had been received, and that engagement would continue 
in future.  It was explained that this was the best information that existed at 
present.     

 

 The well-being assessment concurred to examine what was available in 
communities and that an emphasis on the care element had been included in the 

Page 7



SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26/01/17 

assessment before the committee. When the above assessment was revisited, it 
was added that it would be integrated into the population assessment.  Further 
reference was made to the Ageing Well report that had recently been submitted to 
the Cabinet which specifically referred to well-being elements such as care plans 
and identified what needed to be done for the future. 

 

 Investing in extra care provision was essential and part of the wider picture but that 
it depended on contributions from the Government and it was confirmed that the 
Service did everything it could to secure a share of this money.  It was further 
noted that many areas had been identified across the County in terms of need and 
certainly areas in the south and west of the County. 

 

 Welsh Government had acknowledged that the work undertaken was 
comprehensive.  It must be borne in mind that it reflected an assessment at a 
specific period of time and that it was becoming outdated on a daily basis; 
however, it was ensured that a more local investigation would be undertaken with 
the intention of integrating the information received into the next assessment to 
meet more local needs. 

 

 Domestic abuse - it was explained that the Council's Deputy Leader served on a 
multi-agency Partnership with Anglesey and that it was a main priority for the 
partnership. It was further suggested that perhaps it would be possible to 
scrutinise the work of the Partnership above.  It was also noted that the Service 
collaborated with the Police and it was recognised that it was a field that needed to 
be monitored.   

  

 With regards to the development of new respite care provision at the new Hafod 
Lon School, it was explained that the Children's Department was working diligently 
on this development. 

 
Resolved: (a) To approve the report subject to giving detailed consideration to 
the following elements when preparing local assessments and action plans based 
on the population assessment: 
 
(i) Projection of the population and inward migration trends of older people in 

Gwynedd  
(ii) Learning Disabilities, Mental Health and Autism - need to highlight 

collaboration with other services 
(iii) Language Assessment - emphasis on language needs of service users 
(iv) Recognise the value of volunteers' contributions 
(v) Engagement - more work required regarding numbers, commissioning plan, 

proportionate representation from Gwynedd, and empower rural 
communities 

(vi) More information regarding abuse against women 
 
 

4. FROM HOSPITAL TO HOME SCRUTINY INVESTIGATION 
 

Submitted - a report outlining the progress made against the recommendations of the 
'From Hospital to Home' Scrutiny Investigation. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Adults, Health and Well-being took pride in the work undertaken 
thus far regarding the recommendations and that some of them had already been 
achieved. 
 

Page 8



SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26/01/17 

The observations made by individual Members were responded to as follows:  
 
(i) that it was premature to evaluate the Llys Cadfan project as work was progressing 

in two parts and the first part was nearly complete.  A further discussion would be 
held on 6 February 2017 to consider where an investment could be made and it 
was confirmed that there was an intention to develop such a provision in other 
locations and, without being specific, that there was evidence of demand, 
especially in the south of the County. 

(iii) It was explained that Gwynedd did not have a dual registration provision throughout 
Gwynedd, but that discussions were being held with CSSIW about schemes to 
address the need that would make a difference to the provision. 

(iv) It was agreed that the language needs of the patient was very important and that the 
Health Board had begun handing out leaflets on wards asking in which language the 
patient wished to speak. 

(v) That work and discussions were underway regarding collaborating with surgeries as 
well as extending the opening hours of Community Hospitals and developing them 
as hubs. 

(vi) Following a Member's recent experience of the Concerns' Department, the system 
was explained and it was ensured that formal complaints were addressed.  

(vii) It was assured that an analysis of the £1.3m funding for Intermediate Care would be 
shared for information with Members of this Scrutiny Committee. 

(viii) In terms of sharing information with nurses / doctors of what was available by the 
third sector, as part of Ysbyty Alltwen's work, it was explained that staff gathered 
information but that more work needed to be achieved in this context. 

(ix) In the context of providing packages for patients when they were discharged from 
Hospital, the Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board Regional Director - West, 
assured that she would soon hold a discussion at a meeting with Matrons to verify 
the situation and what happened when an area nurse was not available.     

 
In response to the observation made regarding language needs, a number of Members 
further noted that formulating a question correctly was all important and that a bilingual 
service should be offered as a totally natural part of the service. 

 
It was noted that Dwyfor Surgeries worked well and the observation that the out of hours 
service would be extended was welcomed. 
 
The opportunity was taken to congratulate the Service on the implementation of the 

recommendations. 
 
Resolved: To accept, note and thank the officer for the report.  

 
5. ALTERNATIVE SCHOOL LEADERSHIP MODELS 
 

A slide presentation was received by an Area Education Officer, and he outlined various 
models for different types of schools for the future. 
 
Model 1 - with a Head Teacher, Assistant Head Teacher, 1 budget and 1 Governing Body  
Model 2 - with a Strategic Head Teacher, Assistant Head Teacher, separate budgets and 
Governing Bodies 
Model 3 - with a Strategic Head Teacher, Assistant Head Teacher, separate budgets and 
1 Governing Body 
Model 4 - with a Strategic Head Teacher, Assistant Head Teacher, 1 budget and 1 
governing body in a multi-site all-through school 
Model 5 - with a Head Teacher, Assistant Head Teacher, 1 budget and 1 governing body 
in a single site all-through school 

Page 9



SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26/01/17 

Model 6 - with a Head Teacher, Assistant Head Teacher, 1 budget, 1 governing body in a 
Lifelong Learning school - multi-site or single site (3 - 18 years old) 

  
Following consideration of the principles, it was noted that no model responded to the 
requirements of every catchment area and that requirements would need to be considered 
in the areas.  The above models were an attempt to make the role of leading a school 
attractive bearing in mind the pressures on school leaders and the fact that recruiting 
school leaders had recently been difficult. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Education referred to an example of model 2 that worked 
successfully in the Ardudwy catchment area.  In terms of timetable, discussions had 
recently been held with school staff / governors / parents to highlight the recruitment 
problem and to seek a solution at grass roots level.  Applications from Head Teachers to 
discuss possibilities in some catchment areas had been received and the importance of 
holding discussions with Area Officers and Head Teachers in order to ascertain 
requirements locally per catchment area was noted. 
 
Resolved: To accept, note and thank the officer for the presentation whilst 
looking forward to see the outcomes of local discussions.         

 
6. WELSH-MEDIUM EDUCATION SCRUTINY INVESTIGATION - PROGRESS REPORT 
 

Mr Alun Charles, External consultant, was welcomed to the meeting and he gave a slide 
presentation on his study on the implementation of the Council's Language Policy in 
Gwynedd primary and secondary schools and he explained in detail what had led to the 
recommendations within the report. 
 
During the ensuing discussion, the following observations were highlighted: 
 
(i) Progress Report of the Education Service on the recommendations of the 

Welsh-Medium Education Scrutiny Investigation: 
 
A Member noted that he had submitted specific questions regarding responses to tracking 
progress of recommendations deriving from the work of the Welsh-Medium Education 
Scrutiny Investigation, and that, thus far, he had not received a positive response to:   
 

 Did the Education Service have powers to intervene to ensure that implementation 
of the Language Policy was strengthened and standardised and how many of 
these had been used? 

 Had all governors received training on the language policy despite the Education 
Service stating that training had been programmed for Summer 2017? 

 It was unclear whether or not steps had been taken in relation to immersion 
education at Ysgol Ardudwy. 

 It was noted that the Council, along with Welsh Government, had given full 
consideration to establishing a specific Language Centre for the Bangor catchment 
area; with the potential arrival of Wylfa Newydd in the context of education, and the 
Welsh language specifically, it is expected that a number of the new workforce will 
settle in the Arfon area. It was asked how many immersion centres, extra teachers, 
language centres etc. would be required to mitigate the impact of Wylfa Newydd on 
the Welsh language, how much would it cost and who would pay? 

 
(ii) External Study: 
 
(a) Reference was made to the fact that the percentages of Welsh language use was 

higher in KS2 than KS3.  It was suggested that use of the Welsh language needed to 

Page 10



SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26/01/17 

be strengthened when pupils transferred from KS2 to KS3, especially when 
considering the good work undertaken to use Welsh in KS2 and the Language 
Centres which was then hindered in KS3 when pupils chose to study subjects / sit 
examinations through the medium of English.   

(b) A concern that 6th form colleges lost pupils and that some were willing to travel far in 
order to follow courses through the medium of English which, therefore, hindered the 
colleges' number of pupils.  It was felt that this matter needed to be addressed.  

(c) That consistency was difficult especially for schools located along the coast and that 
parents tended to send their children to the private sector.   

(d) A need to raise parents' awareness of the advantages of a bilingual society and that 
children missed out if the Welsh language was not part of the curriculum.   

(e) It was a shame that a rural school in a specific area was in the bilingual category and 
that a nearby urban school was Welsh-medium. 

(f) Disappointment was expressed at the study as it justified the situation as it was and 
that an opportunity had been missed as it responded to demography rather than 
taking advantage of the opportunity to address the problem. The intention of the 
Scrutiny Investigation was to eradicate the ambiguity of defining schools linguistically.  
The importance of Welsh-medium learning was noted if one wished to see the 
language surviving.  Reference was made to the percentage of 69% of children 
studying five subjects through the medium of Welsh when they were 16 years old and 
should not all children be studying subjects through the medium of Welsh. In terms of 
learning medium experience, it was felt that children's English would not be better if 
they studied the subject of History through the medium of English - a good English 
Department is what would uphold good English standards at schools.  Not teaching 
the subject of History through the medium of Welsh was fatal for the Welsh language 
and deprived children of an experience.   One had to be accountable to the 2021 
Census and concern was expressed that should steps not be taken to address the 
situation and to preserve the language, a reduction in percentages would definitely be 
seen again and that this result would be disastrous.   

(g) The Scrutiny Investigation asked for a definition of every secondary school in the hope 
that some could be designated as Welsh specified schools.  Of course, it was 
accepted that this would not mean that children would not learn English but that 
designated status would be awarded to them for the benefit of the school's experience 
and ethos.   

(h) That it was important to put pressure on the teaching of vocational subjects through 
the medium of Welsh as there was a tendency for children not to study through the 
medium of Welsh at school as they were aware that they could study NVQ, BTEC 
courses etc. through the medium of English. 

(i) That the study confirmed doubts about the situation of Bangor city.  
It was felt that Popdy - Bangor Language Centre in itself was not going to respond to 
Bangor's language problems and consideration had to be given to an immersion 
centre and look in detail on how to support children to reach the standard.  

(j) It should also be ensured that the linguistic target was relevant for special schools.   
 

Stemming from the above, the Scrutiny Committee, in general, supported proceeding with 
recommendations outlined in the external study but it was concerned about:  
 

 the slowness of implementing the recommendations of the Welsh-Medium 
Education Scrutiny Investigation 

 that timetable was key and that early further discussions were required about the 
implications of recommendation 9.1 regarding categorisation of schools   

 
(iii) The Head of Education responded to some of the above observations as 

follows: 
 

Page 11



SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26/01/17 

The importance of the work undertaken by the Scrutiny Investigation was emphasised, as 
was the study from the External Consultant which was, in his opinion, a very good 
milestone towards delivery.  It was noted that the policy was sufficiently clear but that 
some schools defined the policy differently and that national categorisation had been 
inconsistent and that Gwynedd had not adopted this system.  The main actions to be 
implemented were totally clear as was the need to hold an open discussion in relation to 
recommendation 9.1 in the study. The external study from Head Teachers was welcomed, 
as an open discussion on the real situation of schools had been held. It was further noted 
that there were many good practices in the County and that the majority of other Counties 
were envious of this authority's position.  In terms of moving forward and responding, it 
was important to offer guidance on a national level of what was meant by "bilingualism".   
It was recognised that there were challenges in terms of staffing in some individual 
secondary schools and implementation timetable and discussions had commenced with 
Bangor University to identify teachers for the future.  It had to be realised that there was a 
shortage of Welsh-medium teachers in the secondary sector.   
 
The recommendation regarding Bangor's situation was welcomed and there was a need 
to examine what the implications would be especially in light of the industry that would 
come to Anglesey.  The Head of Education was of the opinion that the challenge from the 
Scrutiny Investigation had been incorporated into the external study and that a discussion 
on local consistency would be held through contact with the private sector, further 
education college and bilingual curriculum planning but partners would have to be 
selected very carefully.  The aim was to raise and increase percentages in KS3 which 
would involve investing in people, curricular provision, and be completely clear on what 
bilingualism was, and that the experience of attending schools was a Welsh experience 
that would contribute towards young people living locally naturally and nurturing access to 
the Welsh language and enabling them to contribute fully to society. 
 
In terms of Bangor city's provision, it was recognised that consideration to the provision 
and linguistic factor was an essential part of reaching a long-term solution for the city.  
The importance of opening wider discussions on what type of provision needed to be 
planned was noted in order to guarantee the future of the language.   
 
With regards to the Language Charter, the aim was for all schools to achieve the Gold 
Award by next year and that the challenge would be to retain the award and prove that 
they would build on their successes.  It was added that GwE was supportive of the 
Language Charter with Gwynedd leading across north Wales and that it had been 
extended to other regions with the intention of rolling it out across Wales. 
 
It was further specified that the report noted an inconsistency, and specific reference was 
made to recommendation 9.1 which noted that "70% [must] be considered as the 
minimum contact time with Welsh as a medium for A and B cohorts pupils."  The Head of 
Education was of the opinion that schools would have to push the threshold and that data 
would increase if this could be reached.  However, the co-operation of local members on 
governing bodies was required in order to be accountable on a local level to ensure an 
achievement of 70%.  It was noted that the Welsh language was a centrally important core 
part and that many strands needed to be integrated.  Gwynedd was in a relatively good 
position and was lucky in its demography but schemes to improve outcomes and develop 
for the future would have to be challenged in order to ensure an improvement in the 
Census.  To this end, the recommendations before the committee involved a number of 
difficult discussions with parents, head teachers, teachers and governors across the 
county. 
 
Whilst understanding the opinion of the Committee regarding consistency and no linguistic 
option for parents in terms of provision, there was a risk for schools to slip with a cohort of 

Page 12



SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26/01/17 

parents selecting a different option which would perhaps lead to children leaving the 
County for education.   
 
The Head of Education suggested that he would welcome holding a session in the form of 
a workshop with the Scrutiny Committee with an invitation for two or three secondary 
school teachers and further education partners to discuss how to strengthen and 
safeguard the Welsh language as well as being fully aware of the implications.   
 
 
Resolved: (a) To thank the officer for the report and approve all 
recommendations but to express concern about the implications of implementing 
recommendation 9.1 on categorising schools, namely  
 
“9.1 Define Gwynedd secondary schools in accordance with the language of the 
teaching and learning medium under one category, namely bilingual schools.  
Think in terms of experiences rather than subjects when establishing a balance 
between use of Welsh and English as learning and teaching mediums at KS3 and 4. 
Consider 70% as the minimum contact time with Welsh as a medium for A and B 
cohorts pupils." 
 

(b) therefore, request an early and open discussion on  
recommendation 9.1     

 
 
   (c) that early action must be taken to address challenges in the 
field and, therefore, request that the Education Service act soon on all 
recommendations of the Welsh-Medium Scrutiny Investigation and report back on 
progress to the Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 
The meeting commenced at 10.00am and concluded at 1.50pm.   

 
 

CHAIR. 

 

Page 13



 

1 
 

COMMITTEE Services Scrutiny Committee  

DATE OF MEETING 16 March  2017 

ITEM  Education Department’s Annual Report 

HEAD OF SERVICE  Arwyn Thomas  

CABINET MEMBER Cllr Gareth Thomas  

 
SUMMARY   

RAISE STANDARDS  

Performance strengths: 

 Progress 2015>2016 in main indicator’s performance in each of the key stages  [FP FPI +0.1%;  KS2  
CSI +0.3%; KS3 CSI +0.7%;  KS4 TL2+ +2.6%].   
 

 In main indicator KS4 [TL2+] 11 schools have improved on corresponding figure 2015, performance 
of  8 schools cut 70%+ and 7 schools ensure improvements for the third consecutive year.   
 

 Gwynedd’s position compared to every other LEA in Wales positively at KS3 and KS4 and close 
overall to the expected position at KS2.   

 

 Schools Distribution between FSM quartiles highlights improvements across several indicators at 
KS4.    

 

 FSM KS4 learners performance highlights percentage improvements in each of the main indicators. 
Consequently, the gap has narrowed between FSM/non-FSM learners in every instance and is 
below the corresponding National figure in every instance.   A regards Welsh,  performance in 2016 
is an improvement of almost 7% on last year’s figure. The situation across the other core subjects is 
also positive.   

 

 The performance of FSM learners in the main indicator [TL2+] has improved since 2015 at 11 
schools and the gap between FSM learners and Non FSM learners has narrowed since 2015 at 10 
schools.    

 

 Pupils and schools performance at the end of key stage 3 especially in the core subject indicator.  
 

 Secondary and primary attendance.     
 

 Permanant exclusion rates or fixed period exclusions of 6 days or more at the secondary schools.   
Fields where performance needs to improve include:  

 Improve outcomes across Foundation Phase indicators through enriching learners provision and 
experiences and through boosting leaders confifdence to challenge expectations and assessments. 

 

Page 14

Agenda Item 5



 

2 
 

 Improve performance in Welsh at every key stage through challenging assessments and through 
ensuring a more robust moderation system.   

 

 Improve FSM learners performance at FP and KS2 through making more robust the provision, 
tracking and intervention for them.   

 

 Continue to work with secondary schools to ensure that the curriculum and the provision allows 
robust performance against the revised indicators and new specifications.  

 

 Improve performance of post-16 learners in specific courses through ensuring access to the best 
provision.  

 

 Schools performance across the key stages so as to draw more favourable comparison with similar 
schools.  
 

 Improve inclusive level 2 through improving mathematics and/or English outcomes at key stage 4.  
 

 Improve percentage of pupils who acheive higher levels in subjects and the core subject indicator 
(CSI) at the end of every key stage.   
 

EDUCATIONAL PROVISION  

Strengths  

 Pupils well-being and safety are promoted and supported through providing a range of support 
services. 
 

 Support and training for Leaders and Managers is developing well.  
 

 The various leadership models in schools and federations of schools created by the LEA provide an 
improvement in conditions for teachers to improve standards and achieve better value for money.    

 

 Partnership working with GwE and schools assist to improve several results.   
 

 The categorization profile for schools in the 2 sectors highlight very robust improvements.  
 

 Inspection profiles for 2015-16 and 2016-17 are very positive.  No school is now in a statutory 
category.    

 

 The LEA presents its Education Modernization programme at a good pace. 
 

 A culture of accountability and continuous review, with a constant focus on achieving progress 
against priorities, is becoming established across the LEA’s services.   
 

 Priorities for education and targets to achieve are clearly linked through strategic and operational 
plans.  

 

Page 15



 

3 
 

 Good progress is being made in accordance with the recommendations from previous inspections. 
 

 Continue to provide support and resources serivces for schools.  
 

 The County’s Language Policy is a strength with Gwynedd leading on innovative work across North 
Wales and nationally.     

 

Fields requiring development include:   

 Improve quality of senior leadership in a minority of schools [primary and secondary].  
 

 Improve quality of middle leadership across the vast majority of secondary schools.   
 

 Continue to re-structure the educational provision to reflect the change in demography, through 
reducing surplus places and re-organization.   
 

 Further improve ITC foundations and networks and use ITC to support administration and 
developments in the curriculum. 

 

 Increase opportunities to achieve accreditation through the alternative curriculum to ensure that 
pupils who are vulnerable, develop relevant skills and engage well with their learning.   

 

 Thoroughly use detailed and comprehensive data at a pupil level to evaluate quality and impact of 
services, to note underperformance and plan for development.  

 

 Ensure that appropriate resources and specialization enable integrated work between school 
improvement officers,  ALN, inclusion, human resources and finance to provide excellent support 
for school leadership and management to make decisions of good quality to improve outcomes. 

 

 Develop Governing Bodies role to make schools accountable.   
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
GENERAL: 
No school placed in an Estyn statutory category. 
 
 
STANDARDS: 
1. Achieve the highest possible standards at every key stage increasing:   

 Percentage of pupils who achieved the Level 2+ threshold including GCSE grade  A*-C in 
Welsh or English and Mathematics.   

 Percentage of 16 year olds achieving the Core Subjects Indicator (Grade C or above in 
Welsh/English, Mathematics and science  

 Capped points score 
 Schools benchmark performance through ensuring that no school performs below the FSM 

benchmark median over a three cycle.  

Page 16



 

4 
 

 Performance at the highest levels at every key stage including increasing percentage of A*-A 
for GCSE pupils, including FSM learners performance.  

 Standards in English and Mathematics at KS4.   
 Percentage of pupils asssessed at LEA maintained schools, and receive Teachers Assessment 

in Welsh (first language) at the end of Key Stage 3. 
 Percentage of pupils achieving a good level 3 or above at KS2  (7-11years) who obtained a 

teacher’s assessment in Welsh as first language at the end of KS3  (11-14 years). 
 
 
PROVISION: 
Action that we wish GwE to undertake on our behalf:     
 

1. Support schools so that:   
a. Schools who are in danger of slippage are identified at an early stage so that appropriate 

intervention can be made.   
b. Strengthen school to school support systems and develop new partnerships.   
c. Identify excellence and effective practice in leadership and pedagogy fields and share 

them;    
d. Improve end of key stage outcomes;   
e. Support schools to perform in the higher quartiles  
f. Ensure that no school falls into Estyn statutory categories.  

 

2. Ensure that development plans, self-evaluation processes and tracking systems are at least good 
at our schools.   
 

3. Provide guidance to raise standards in English in specific departments at our secondary schools. 
 

4. Provide guidance to raise mathematics standards in specific departments at our secondary 
schools.  
 

5. Curriculum and Assessment: ensure that every school provides an appropriate and suitable 
curriculum, that robust assessment and tracking procedures are implemented at every school 
and that there is firm support available for learners to achieve potential. 
 

6. Learning: ensure that every teacher has a clear grasp of what contributes to effective learning 
and that they are equipped to use a range of strategies to address learning needs and context.   
 

7. Ensure that our secondary schools understand and are ready to implement new specifications.  
 

8. Identify and target departments who under-perform in general or perform in the comfort zone. 
 

9. Target professional development for Middle Leaders programmes to develop their capacity to 
provide leadership on good teaching and learning within their departments.  
 

10. Identify prospective headteachers and prepare them for achieving the NPQH qualification.  
 

Page 17



 

5 
 

11. Ensure a programme for further development of current headteachers. 
 

12. Continue to strengthen teachers assessment system through assessments moderation so that 
they are consistent across the Area and Wales.   

 
 
IMPLEMENT THE ADDITIONAL LEARNING NEEDS AND INCLUSION STRATEGY THROUGH: 

13. Collaboration with Isle of Anglesey to create a single ALN and Inclusion team;   

14. Create provision that places a much greater emphasis on early intervention especially in the 
early years, seeking to identify conditions at a very early stage in children’s lives so that this can 
impact their education and lives in general;   

15. Increase specializations at our schools through training programmes to develop greater 
expertise;    

16. robust multi-agency procedures that will lead to information sharing, and ensure effective joint 
planning for education and the development of children and young people who require 
additional support;    

17. provide a service that ensures that educational experiences are of a high quality; 

18. children and young people receive additional support earlier; make educational progress at an 
appropriate pace, and contribute towards promoting their independence;   

19. learning environment of the highest possible quality for children who have the most intensive 
needs;   

20. ensure an effective and efficient system; 
 

21. Increase specialization at our schools through training programmes to develop greater 
expertise;  

 
22. Establish new arrangements for the Inclusion/Behavioural Support Provision. 

 

LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT: 
23. Work on improving leadership and management conditions in the county’s schools and 

implement the agreed recommendations. 
 

24. Monitor and challenge every school to improve leadership and management at under-
performing schools.  

 
25. Develop managers and prospective managers within services and identify future leaders.  

 
26. Develop a robust school to school system and ensure that there are arrangements in place to 

share best practice so as to avoid duplication.  
 

27. Ensure that capital investments lead to improved conditions for leadership and management. 
 

Page 18



 

6 
 

28. Develop the Area Education Offices role to co-ordinate the schools work and that of all the 
support services, including  GWE, to ensure partnership collaboration, accountability and change 
at  an appropriate pace.   

 
29. Develop collaborative management and administration in every catchment-area and at a county 

level by the Education Support Unit via the Area Office.  
 

30. Introduce and implement a further plan under 21stC Schools funding.   
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



 

7 
 

CONTENTS 
 

1. CONTEXT 
 

 
2. RAISE STANDARDS/QUALITY OF EDUCATION   

 END OF KEY STAGE OUTCOMES  

 SCHOOL INSPECTION OUTCOMES  

 SITUATION REGARDING GWYNEDD SCHOOLS CATEGORIZATION  

 LEADERSHIP QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMMES 
 

 
3. THE WELSH LANGUAGE 

 WELSH MEDIUM AND CAPACITY BUILDING NETWORK  

 THE LANGUAGE CHARTER  

 WELSH EDUCATION SCRUTINY ENQUIRY  

 WELSH IN EDUCATION STRATEGY PLAN   

 GWYNEDD LANGUAGE CENTRES 
 

 
4. INCLUSION AND WELL-BEING  

 ATTENDANCE 

 WELFARE SERVICE 

 EXCLUSIONS  

 BEHAVIOURAL SUPPORT   

 P25 

 TRAC 

 HOME EDUCATION  

 EMAS 

 SAFEGUARDING  

 

5. ADDITIONAL LEARNING NEEDS  

 EDUCATIONAL PSYCHOLOGY SERVICE  

 SPECIALIST TEACHERS SERVICE  

 HEARING IMPAIRMENT 

 VISUAL IMPAIRMENT 

 COMMUNICATION AND INTERACTION TEAM  

 MEDICAL AND PHYSICAL NEEDS 

 COGNITION AND LEARNING   
 

6. STRAETGY FOR TRANSFORMING THE ADDITIONAL LEARNING NEEDS AND INCLUSION FIELD  
 

7. THE EARLY YEARS 

 

Page 20



 

8 
 

8. EDUCATION MODERNIZATION TEAM 

 

9. LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT  

 

10. SUPPORTING GOVERNORS 
 

11. INFRASTRUCTURE AND SUPPORT SERVICES  
 

12. WORKING IN PARTNERSHIP – STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS 
 

13. PLANNING, PROVIDING RESOURCES AND JOINT QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 

14. RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



 

9 
 

1. CONTEXT 
 
EDUCATION DEPARTMENT’S VISION:  Children and young people of Gwynedd achieve the highest 

standards to maintain the language, culture and economy at a local level. 

 

PURPOSE:  Ensure that the schools and the provision equip the children and young people to achieve 

the highest standards and gain the qualifications and skills that enable them to live and prosper within 

their locality.  

SERVICES THAT WE PROVIDE:  Raise standards, Support, Pay roll and School Staff Contracts Services,  

Teachers Pensions, School Catering,  School Cleaning,   School Transport,  Health and Safety,  School 

Access, Support for Governors,  Fiscal Support for Schools, Information Technology and Communication,  

Data Unit,  Human Resources Support for Schools and the Education Department, Attendance and 

Behaviour, Educational Welfare Service,  Additional Learning Needs, Child Protection, Leadership and 

Management, Training.   

WHAT DOES THE DEPARTMENT DO?    

 Support children and young people to achieve the highest standards.  

 Ensure that  pupils with ALN receive the most appropriate support.   

 Ensure that pupils who have emotional and behavioural needs are fully included within 

Gwynedd schools.  
 Ensure the safety of pupils within Gwynedd schools.   

 Provide appropriate support Services for Gwynedd Education Service.   

 Develop leaders and support the workforce in the schools.   

 Support for school governing bodies to act as effective governors.   

 

There are 93 Primary Schools, 14 Secondary Schools and 2 Special Schools in Gwynedd.  

Schools Primary  Secondary  Special  

Number of Schools  93 14 2 

Number of pupils 10,159 6,776 190 

Number of 

teachers 

579 487 25 

Number of Support 

Staff  

987 342 64 

 
 

 

  

 

 

Page 22



 

10 
 

Our principal performance measurements 
 

Measure – definition  Performance 
Summer 2014 

Performance 
Summer 

2015 

Performance 
Summer  

2016 

Percentage of 15 year old pupils  (on the previous 31st 

August) who achieve five GCSE A* to C grades,  

including Welsh or English and Mathematics  (TL2+) 

61.10% 63.3% 
68.6% 

 

Percentage of 16 year old pupils who achieve 5 GCSE 

grades   A*to C (TL2) 
87.7% 88.9% 88.6% 

Percentage of 16 year old pupils who achieve 5 GCSE 

grades  D to G (TL1) 
97.2% 97.9% 98.7% 

Percentage of 16 year old pupils who achieve a Grade C 

or above, in Welsh or English, Mathematics and Science 

(CSI) 

60.5% 62.4% 67.4% 

Average points score for pupils who are 15 years old on 

the previous 31 August at LEA maintained schools.  
615.8 617.2 590.0 

Average of capped points score for pupils who are 15 

years old on the previous 31 August at LEA maintained 

schools.  

362.2 362.0 355.8 

Percentage of young people between 16 and 18 years 

old who are not in education, work or training.  
1.7% 1.8% 1%  

Percentage of pupils assessed at the end of year 9   

(KS3), and who achieve the expected level, in English or 

Welsh, Mathematics and Science  (CSI) 

89.11% 91.3% 92.0% 

Percentage of pupils assessed at LEA maintained 

schools, and who receive Teachers Assessment in Welsh   

(first language) at the end of KS3   

81.20% 83.2% 83.7% 

Percentage of pupils who achieved level 3, good or 

above at KS2 who received teachers assessment in 

Welsh as First Language at the end of KS3  

87.4% 89.5% 88.7% 

Percentage of pupils assessed at the end of year 6   

(KS2), and who achieve the expected level in English or 

Welsh, Mathematics and Science (CSI)  

86.0% 89.5% 89.8% 

Percentage of pupils assessed at the end of the 

Foundation Phase (FP), and who achieve the expected 

level (FPI)   

85.2% 86.8% 86.8% 

Number of permanent exclusions at  primary schools 

during the school year   
0 3 0 

Number of permanent exclusions at secondary schools 4 3 3 

Page 23



 

11 
 

Measure – definition  Performance 
Summer 2014 

Performance 
Summer 

2015 

Performance 
Summer  

2016 

during the school year  

Pupil percentage attendance at the primary schools 

during the school year  
95.10% 95.0% 95.45% 

Pupil percentage attendance at the secondary schools 

during the school year  
94.20% 94.6% 95.16% 

 

 
2. RAISING STANDARDS/QUALITY OF EDUCATION   
 
END OF KEY STAGE OUTCOMES  [FOUNDATION PHASE TO KEY STAGE 4] 
 
Noted below are the main headings regarding end of key stage performance for the school year 
2015/2016, highlighting Gwynedd’s position in comparison with the national average.  
 
The table below indicates the % of pupils of statutory school age who have been entitled to free school 
meals in Gwynedd over the past five years in comparison with Wales and individual authorities.  
 
% of statutory school age pupils entitled to free school meals [FSM] 

 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Gwynedd 12.6%  13.2% 14.2% 13.7% 13.7% 12.9% 13.3% 13.0% 

Wales 17.8%  18.9% 19.7% 19.3% 19.5% 19.1% 18.8% 18.8% 

Position (1=lowest)* 5  5 5 5 5 4 4 4 

 
In accordance with Gwynedd’s position in the free dinner table,  we should be working towards 
achieving the fourth position across our range of indicators.   
 
Gwynedd’s performance is good overall across the Key Stages.  Performance is very good at KS3 and 

good by the end of  KS4.  In the primary sector, there is room for improvement in performance at both 

key stages, especially at the Foundation Phase.  Except for Key Stage 3, there is scope to strengthen 

performance across the range of indicators, especially so as to ensure that higher ability pupils perform 

better.   

THE FOUNDATION PHASE: 
 
The table below indicates the percentage of pupils who achieve the Foundation Phase Indicator  [FPI] 
between 2012 and 2016.  Gwynedd performance position in comparison with the rest of authorities in 
Wales is also highlighted. 
 

 FPI : Foundation Phase  

 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Gwynedd 83.0% 82.8% 85.2% 86.7% 86.8% 

Wales 80.5% 83.0% 85.2% 86.8% 87.0% 

Position 8  (-3) 13 (-8) 10 [-6] 10 [-6] 14 [-10] 

Page 24



 

12 
 

(1=best) 

 
Foundation Phase   

 At the FPI,  a slight improvement  [+0.1%] since 2015 and placing Gwynedd in 14th position of the 22 
Authorities.  This is substantially below the expected FSM position. Performance slightly [-0.6%] 
below the target. An improvement of +0.3% in the indicator at a regional level [86.2%] and +0.2% 
nationally. 

 At the expected level, progress 2015>2016 in the Welsh Language indicator [+0.3%], Mathematical 
Development slightly below last year [-0.1%] and Personal Development has remained unchanged.  
Performance in the three indicators exceeds target.  Position of Gwynedd amongst all LEA’s in Wales 
again lower than expected in two of the indicators [Langauge-Welsh = 17;  Mathematical 
Development = 11;  Personal Development = 5] 

 At the higher level, progress +4.1% in Personal Development and +4.5% above target [National 
improvement +2.9%], improvement +0.5% in Mathematical Development but however  -4.8% below 
target [National progress  +2.1%]. Most disappointing performance in language – Welsh -3.4% below 
2015 and -2.8% below target [national slippage  -0.7%]. Performance places Gwynedd in 14th 
position for Language – Welsh;   11th position for Mathematical Development and 4th position for 
Personal Development. This is disappointing.   

 In comparison with other LEA’s in North Wales, Gwynedd’s position was as follows:  FPI = 3rd; 
Language- Welsh D5+ = 2nd, Language-Welsh D6+ = 3rd, Mathematical Development D5+ = st, 
Mathematical Development  D6+ = 3rd, Personal Development D5+ = 1st, Personal Development 
D6+ = 1st. 

 FSM learners performance varies.  In comparison with 2015, progress in the FPI to 76.5% and a 
figure that was close to the target of 77.0% set [+1.1% in comparison with progress of  +1.3% 
regional]; Language-Welsh +0.6% and +1.6% [expected level and higher level];  Mathematical 
Development has remained the same at the expected level   but -1.6% lower at the higher level;  
Personal Development -1.1% expected level and  +11.5% higher level.  

 
 
KEY STAGE 2 (KS2): 
 
The table below indicates the percentage of pupils who have achieved the Core Subjects Indicator (CSI) 
at the end of Key Stage  2 [KS2]. Gwynedd’s performance position in comparison with the remaining 
Wales LEA’s is also highlighted.  
 

 CSI : KS2 

 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Gwynedd 86.2% 86.6% 86.0% 89.5% 89.8% 

Wales 82.6% 84.3% 86.1% 87.7% 88.6% 

Position (1=best ) 3 (+2) 6 (-1) 14 [-10] 6 [-2] 7 [-3] 

 
Key Stage 2 

 In the CSI,  progress of +0.3% on the figure for  2015 and +1.1% above target   [National 
improvement  +0.9%]. Performance in 2016 places the LEA in 7th position that is below the 
expected FSM position.  Progress of 0.6% in the indicator at a regional level [88.8%]. 

 At the expected level, Welsh -1.2% below the figure for 2015 but is +0.2% above  target [National 
improvement of  +0.3%]. However, performance in Welsh is below the corresponding figure for 

Page 25



 

13 
 

English, Mathematics and Science. There is a difference between teachers assessments at the 
expected levels and the higher levels in Welsh and English. In English, Mathematics and Science,  
performance was slightly better than in 2015, [English +0.9%/Mathematics +0.2%/Science +0.1%] 
and exceeded targets in every instance [+3.5%/+2.7%/+3.1%]. Progress in English exceeded the 
equivalent national progress of  +0.7%. Mathematics and Science slightly lower.  Performance places 
Gwynedd in 16th position for Welsh;  11th position for English;   8th position for Mathematics and 
3rd position for Science. This also is disappointing.  

 At the higher levels, Welsh -1.4% lower than in 2015 but +1.8% above target [fall nationally -0.2%] . 
The percentage is again below the corresponding figure for English, Mathematics and Science,   
Performance in English  -1.5% lower than in  2015 but +3.4% above target   [National improvement  
+1.2%]; Mathematics higher than in 2015  and above the target  [+3.2% and + 3.7%] and the 
corresponding  progress nationally; Science -1.0% below last year  but  +1.9% above target   
[National progress +1.4%]. Performance places Gwynedd in 6th position for Welsh [bearing in mind 
size of cohort assessed];  7th position for English; 5th position for Mathematics and 5th position for 
Science.  

 In comparison with other LEA’s in North Wales, Gwynedd’s position was as follows:  CSI = 2nd; 
Welsh L4+ = 3rd; Welsh L5+ = 1st; English L4+ = 2nd; English L5+ = 1st; Mathematics L4+ = 2nd; 
Mathematics L5+ = 1st; Science L4+ 1st; Science L5+ = 1st. 

 FSM learners overall performance robust at the expected level but disappointing at the higher level. 
In comparsion with performance in 2015,   an improvement of  +6.4% to 82.1% in the CSI  - and 
again a figure that is very close to the set target of   80.7% [progress +1.4% regionally]. At the 
expected level with the higher level, performance in the individual indicators as follows: Welsh 
+2.5% and +5.6%; English +6.4% and -2.0%; Mathematics +5.7% and -5.3%; Science +3.0% and -4.0%. 

 
 
KEY STAGE 3 (KS3): 
 
Percentage of pupils who achieve the Core Subjects Indicator (CSI) at KS3:  
 

 Key Stage  3 

 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Gwynedd 83.0% 85.4% 89.1% 91.3% 92.0% 

Wales 72.5% 77.0% 81.0% 83.9% 85.9% 

Position (1=best) 1 1 1 1 2 

 
Key Stage 3 
At Key Stage 3, performance in the CSI has exceeded Wales expected benchmark since 2012 and 
substantially exceeds the national figure for the past five years.  Gwynedd has been the best performare 
of all Wales LEA’s for consecutive four years and there is again an improvement on the figure for 2015 
[+0.7%] The performance leads to Gwynedd being placed amongst the best LEA’s in Wales  2nd position 
in 2016. 
 

 At the CSI, improvement of +0.7% on figure for  2015 and -0.1% below target.   Performance in 2016 
places the LEA above the expected FSM Position and second amongst all Wales LEA’s.  Improvement 
of +1.7% in the indicator at a regional level  [87.8%] and progress of +2.0% nationally.  

 At the expected level, except for Welsh, the performance exceeds the corresponding figures for 
2015 and exceeds the set targets.  English +1.2% and +1.4%; Mathematics +0.6% and +1.3%; Science 

Page 26



 

14 
 

+0.1% and +1.6%. In Welsh,  perfornace of -0.7% was lower than last year   and -0.3% below target.   
However, the National progress is higher for every indicator.  See Table 6 above also for comparison 
of Welsh/English teachers assessments at the expected levels and higher levels.  Performance places 
Gwynedd in 10th position for Welsh   [bearing in mind cohort size assessed];  position 5 for English; 
position 2 for Mathematics and position 1 for Science. This is good.   

 Also at the higher levels,  Welsh is below the figure for 2015 and target [-1.9% and -0.6%].  The 
corresponding figures for the other core subjects are as follows: English [+3.4% and -2.3%]; 
Mathematics [+3.3% and +0.8%]; Science [+1.9% and +1.0%]. Except for Welsh,   the progress in 
Gwynedd exceeds the progress made at a national level.  The position amongst all LEA’s corresponds 
to FSM position in the vast majority:  Welsh = 8 [bearing in mind the cohort size assessed]; English = 
4; Mathematics = 4; Science = 4. 

 In comparison with other North Wales LEA’s, Gwynedd is the best performer in English, 
Mathematics and Science at the expected level and higher levels.   In Welsh,   Gwynedd is in 4rth 
and 5th position  [expected level and higher levels] but the cohort size assessed should be borne in 
mind in comparison with some of these LEAs.   

 FSM learners performance is robust ovearll at the expected level but there are greater fluctuations 
at the higher levels with the situation of the languages substantially outperforming 
Mathematics/Science.  Compared to performance for  2015, there is an improvement of   +3.8% to  
82.1% in the CSI – a figure that also exceeds the set target of  80.7%  [regional progress of +5.6% to 
73.3%]. At the expected level and the higher level,  performance in the individual indicators is as 
follows :   Welsh +2.5% and +7.8%; English +1.6% and +7.5%; Mathematics +3.8% and -2.5%; Science 
-0.3% and +2.0%. 

 
 
KEY STAGE 4: 
 
Performance of 15 year olds in comparison with Wales and other LEAs: 

TL1 Level 1 Threshold : learning that equates to five D to G GCSE grades.  

TL2 Level 2 Threshold: learning that equates to five A* to C GCSE grades.  

TL2+ Level 2+ Threshold : learning that equates to five A* to C GCSE grades including Welsh or 

English and Mathematics.   

       CSI  Core Subjects Indicator: : % of learners who achieve the expected level in English or Welsh, 

Mathematics and Science together   

CPS Capped Points Score : average points for the best eight results of all the qualifications 

approved for use   

 
 

KS4 

 
Gwynedd 

2013 2014 2015 2016 

% Positio
n  

%  Positio
n  

%  Positio
n  

% Gwynedd [Wales] Positio
n  

TL1 97.1% 2 97.2%  1 97.9% 1 97.3% [95.3%] 1 
TL2 81.5% 8 87.7% 4 88.8% 5 85.9% [84.0%] 10 
TL2+ 58.0% 4 61.1% 5 63.1% 5 65.9% [60.3%] 4 
CSI 57.3% 3 60.5% 2 62.0% 3 64.4% [57.6%] 4 
CPS 353.4 2 362.2 1 361.5 1 355.7 [344.6] 4 

Page 27



 

15 
 

5A*-A     20.0%   18.1%  [15.9%] 8 
Welsh  72.8%  73.3%  78.8%  74.4% [75.1%]  
English 66.6%  69.2%  72.1%  71.4% [69.3%]  
Mathematics 62.2%  65.2%  66.6%   70.3% [66.9%]  
Science 84.7%  93.8%  94.0%  90.8% [82.4%]  

 

KS4 

Indicators Performance  
2016 

+/- 2015>2016 Target 2016 +/- Performance v Target 

TL1 97.3% -0.6% 98.8% -1.5% 

TL2 85.9% -3.0% 93.0% -7.1% 

TL2+ 65.9% +2.6% 69.8% -3.9% 

CSI 64.4% +2.2% 69.0% -4.6% 

5A*-A 18.1% -2.2%   

Welsh 74.4% -4.4% 79.8% -5.4% 

English  71.4% -0.9% 76.6% -5.2% 

Mathematics 70.3% +0.4% 72.6% -2.3% 

Science 94.0% -3.4% 94.4% -3.6% 

 
 Progress 2012> 2013 Progress  2013> 2014 Progress 2014>2015 Progress 2015>2016 Progress 2013>2016 

Indicator Gwynedd Wales Gwynedd Wales  Gwynedd Wales  Gwynedd Wales Gwynedd Wales 

TL2+ +3.0% +1.6% +3.1% +2.7% +2.0% +2.2% +2.6% +2.4% +7.9% +7.6% 

TL2 +6.4% +5.2% +6.2 % +4.5% +1.1% +1.1% -3.0% -0.1% +4.4% +1.7% 

TL1 +4.0% +1.4% +0.1% +0.8% +0.7% +0.3% -0.6% +0.9% +0.2% +2.1% 

CSI +4.1% +0.3% +3.2%
 

+3.4% +1.6% +1.7% +2.2% +2.8% +7.1% +8.6% 

CPS +18.4 +9.6 +8.8 +7.6 -0.7 +1.5 -5.3 +1.1 +2.3 +11.5 

Welsh  -4.0% -0.3% +0.5% +0.2% +5.5% +1.4% -4.4% -0.1% +1.6% +1.6% 

English +2.5% +0.7% +2.6% +3.3% +2.9% +2.1% -0.9% +0.7% +4.8% +6.4% 

Mathemati
cs 

+3.5% +1.9% +3.0% +1.4 +1.4% +2.5% +0.4% +2.5% +8.1% +6.6% 

Science +13.2% +4.2% +9.1% +7.5% +0.3% +1.0% -3.4% -1.6% +6.1% +7.6% 

 
 
Key Stage 4 
Gwynedd performance for the main indicator [TL2+] has been slightly below the Welsh Government 
benchmark in  2014 and 2015. However, in 2016, the figure of  69.7% [WG Statistical Bulleting Figure] 
places the performance  +1.6% above the benchmark.  The performance in the Capped Points Score has 
consistently exceeded the benchmark over a five year period.  Overall, over a rolling period, the 
comparative performance has been consistently good in the vast majority of the main indicators and 
despite a lack of percentile progress in some of the indicators between 2015-2016, the comparative 
situation with the LEA’s expected position remains very positive. The only exception to that is the TL2 
[10th position] and the 5A*/A [8th position]. 
 
In 2016, the LEA has further improved its TL2+ performance with progress of  +2.6% [based on Core Data 
Set figure]. The performance places Gwynedd fourth from amongst all LEA’s in Wales [the expected 
position]. At a National level, there was an improvement of +2.4% over the same period. For the CSI,  
Gwynedd’s performance had improved by +2.2% [+2.8% nationally] and by +0.4% in Mathematics 
priority field [+2.5% nationally]. In the other indicators, a slippage has  occurred on performance in 2015 
with the largest slippage occurring in Welsh. In general, performance was fairly close to target  [although 

Page 28



 

16 
 

slightly below] with the highest gap in TL2 and Welsh and English.  Over the rolling period 2013>2016, 
without exception across every indicator, improvements are observed in Gwynedd’s performance and 
the improvement exceeds the corresponding national progress at the  TL2+, TL2 and Mathematics.  Note 
also that FSM learners performance is an improvement on the corresponding figure for 2015 in every 
indicator.   
 
FSM learners performance in the principal  TL2+ indicator at individual schools  
Since 2015 performance of FSM learners in the principal indicator [TL2+] has improved at 11 schools and 
the gap between FSM and non-FSM learners performance has narrowed since 2015 at 10 schools.  
However, in 2016 FSM learners rolling performance has fallen below the Welsh Government rolling 
target [32.0%] at 4 schools [Berwyn/Eifionydd/Moelwyn/SHO] and consequently the schools position at 
Stage 1 of the national categorization system has fallen to data group 3.    
 
Compare the performance of FSM/Non-FSM learners   
Over the rolling period, almost without excpetion across the vast majority of the indicators, Gwynedd 
FSM learners have outperformed the corresponding national figure. This has been maintained in 2016 
with percentile improvements observed in each of the main indicators. Consequently, the gap has 
narrowed between FSM/non-FSM learners in every instance and is below the corresponding National 
figure in every instance.   As regards Welsh, the performance for 2016 is an improvement of almost 7.0% 
on last year’s figure.  The position across the other core subjects is also positive.  The performance in 
English, Mathematics and Science exceeds the corresponding National percentage, highlights substantial 
improvements on the LEA’s performance in 2015 and indicates a reduction in the gap in comparison 
with No FSM learners performance.   
 

Y 
FS
M L1 L2 L2+ DPC 5A*-A Sc  Maths Eng Wel SPC 

2014 150 94.0% 71.3% 32.0% 30.7% 6.7% 89.3% 34.7% 43.3% 41.4% 319.7 

2015 132 97.0% 69.7% 31.8% 31.1% 1.5% 84.8% 37.1% 43.9% 43.7% 323.3 

2016 118 100.0% 71.1% 42.4% 40.7% 6.8% 91.5% 47.5% 53.4% 50.6% 339.6 
 

 
Comparison of boys and girls performance  
In 2016, the performance of boys in Gwynedd is below the equivalent figure for last year in every 
indicator except for Mathematics. However, their performance exceeds that of peers nationally at every 
indicator except for TL2 and both languages.   Performance of girls in Gwynedd, across most indicators, 
shows improvements in percentages on figures for 2015 and in each instance in 2016, exceed their 
peers performance nationally.  Due to these improvements in the girls performance, the gap at a local 
level between boys/girls performance exceeds the gap at a national level. This applies to every indicator 
except for Science.  
 
% of 15 year olds who do not gain any qualifications 
The percentage of learners without a recognized qualification has remained low over a rolling period 
and since 2012 has been lower than the equivalent figure nationally.  There was however an 
improvement of 0.4% in 2016 and the local figure now exceeds the national average.   
 

Leaving without a qualification without leaving full-time education  

 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Gwynedd 1.0 1.3 1.0 0.8 1.2 

Wales 1.5 1.4 1.1 1.2 0.9 

Page 29



 

17 
 

Post-16 Performance 
In 2016, the performance set against the main indicators was as follows:   

 L3 : 98.3% compared to  98.0% nationally.  The performance in the indicator has been constant over 
the rolling period.  However, the gap with the situation nationally has reduced this year to  -0.3%. 

 Points Score :  877.4 compared to  823.2 nationally.  This year’s performance is slightly below the 
equivalent figure of  893.9 last year [over the same period, an improvement at a national level of   
+23.5]. 

 3  A*/A grades : 6.9% compared to  performance of  6.7% nationally. The local figure represents a 
reduction of   -3.0% on a performance of  9.9% in 2015 [and 13.3% in 2014]. A slippage of -1.2% was 
observed during the same period at a national level.  

 3  A*-C grades : 68.6% compared to national performance of  70.6%. The figure for Gwynedd -3.7% 
is below the performance in 2015. At a national level, an improvement of  +2.5% between 
2015>2016. 
 

Performance of Individual Schools  
Overall, across the vast majority of schools, there are improvements in performance between 2015 and 
2016.  The data for 2015 and 2016 also highlights better consistency in the performance of a vast 
majority of the schools [specifically the smaller schools] as the same scales of extremes and fluctuations 
are not observed that was such a concerning feature in the period leading up to the LEA’s most recent 
inspection.  These are the main headings:   
 
TL2+  

 11 schools improve on equivalent figure for  2015. 

 performance of 8 schools exceeds  70%+. 

 7 schools secure improvements for the third consecutive year.  

 performance in the majority of schools is close to target.   

 the largest gap  between final prediction and performance is observed at Ardudwy, Brynrefail, 
Dyffryn Nantlle, Gader. 

 
TL2  

 9 schools improve on equivalent figure for  2015. 

 Performance of 4 schools exceeds  95%+. 

 4 schools ensure improvements for the third consecutive year.  

 Performance close to target in the majority of schools.   
 
TL1 

 14 schools performance at 100%  and 10 schools have maintained or improved upon performance 
for the third consecutive year.   

 
CSI 

 11 schools improve on equivalent figure for 2015. 

 performance of 4 schools exceeds 70%+. 

 5 schools ensure improvements for the third consecutive year.   

 performance is close to target in the majority of schools.  

 the largest gap between final prediction and performance is at  Ardudwy, Dyffryn Nantlle, Gader. 
 
 

Page 30



 

18 
 

Welsh  

 only 4 schools improve on equivalent figure for 2015. 

 performance of 11 schools exceeds  70%+ and 4 exceeds 80%+. 

 2 schools ensure improvements for the third consecutive year.   

 performance is close to target  at about half the schools.   

 the largest gap between final prediction and performance is at  Ardudwy, Gader, Glan y Mor, Tryfan, 
Tywyn. 

 
English  

 9 schools improve on equivalent figure for  2015. 

 performance of 9 schools exceeds  70%+ and 4 exceeds  80%+. 

 5 schools ensure improvements for the third consecutive year   

 Performance close to target in the majority of the schools but performance of  Botwnnog 
substantially exceeds target.   

 largest gap between final prediction and performance seen at Botwnnog, Brynrefail, Dyffryn Nantlle, 
Tryfan.  

 
Mathematics  

 12 schools improve on equivalent figure for  2015. 

 performance of  11 schools exceeds  70%+ and 2 exceeds  80%+. 

 5 schools ensure improvements for the third consecutive year.   

 performance is close to target in the vast majority of schools but performance substantially exceeds 
the set target at y  Gader.  

 the largest gap between final prediction and performance  seen at  Ardudwy, Gader and Tywyn.  
 
Science 

 5 schools improve on equivalent figure for 2015. 

 performance of  12 schools exceeds   90%+ and 2 is 100%. 

 3 schools ensure improvements for the third consecutive year.   

 Performance close to target in the vast majority of schools  

 Greatest gap between final prediction and performance seen at Friars.   
 
 
SCHOOL INSPECTION OUTCOMES  
 
See appendix 1.   
 
School Inspection Outcomes 
During the school year 2015-2016,  Estyn held isnpections at 13 schools [12 primary and  1 secondary]. 
At 8 schools [61.5%], it was adjudged that no follow-up action was required; at 3 schools  [23.1%] least 
intensive follow-up catgeory was adjudged [LEA Monitoring].   In the majority of these cases,the main 
reason for the follow-up activity was the requirement for improved attendance. At 2 schools  [15.4%] it 
was adjudged that a further monitoring visit from Estyn was required. No school was placed in a 
statutory category.  Profile for  2015-16 was good.   
 
 
 

Page 31



 

19 
 

The inspection judgements profile for school year 2015-16 are noted below:   

 Excellent Good Satisfactory   Unsatisfactory  

Key Question 1 15.4% 69.2% 15.4% 0% 

Key Question 2 15.4% 76.9% 7.7% 0% 

Key Question 3 23.1% 69.2% 7.7% 0% 

Overall Judgement 1: Current 
Performance 

15.4% 69.2% 15.4% 0% 

Overall Judgement 2 : Capacity 
for Improvement 

23.1% 69.2% 7.7% 0% 

 
Current situation regarding schools in follow-up catgeory  [2014-15 and 2015-16 inspections]: 

School  Follow-up 
category  

Date for Estyn re-visit or 
present LEA report 

Prediction 

Cymerau LEA Monitoring Progress Report for Estyn 
Spring  2017 

Progress report sent to Estyn – very 
positive predictions. Expectation that the 
school will be withdrawn from a category.  

Craig y 
Deryn 

LEA Monitoring Progress report for Estyn  
Spring 2017 

Positive projections. Expectation that the 
school will soon be taken out of a 
category.   

Bro Cynfal Estyn 
Monitoring 

Estyn Visit  Summer 2017 Appropriate progress at the expected 
rate.   

Llanbedr Estyn 
Monitoring 

Estyn Visit Summer 2017 Appropriate progress at the expected 
rate. 

 
 
CATEGORIZATION SITUATION IN GWYNEDD SCHOOLS  
 
There are 3 steps in the national categorization process :  

 Step 1 ‘Data Group’ : WG places school in standards group   [1-4] based on rolling performance 
in a range of indicators  

 Step 2 ‘Capacity to Improve’ : award a local grade  [A-D] on school’s capacity for improvement  
[judgement that takes quality of leadership and learning/teaching into account]  

 Step 3 ‘Support Category’ :  a category that will spur a programme of support, challenge and 
intervention based on need.  

 
Over a rolling period, significant improvements seen in the percentage of schools in the most intensive 
support categories  [reduction of 28.4% in 2014 to 13.7% in 2016]. Over the same period, an increase in 
the percentage at both the highest categories from 71.6% to 86.3%. 
 

2014-15 

Green Yellow  Amber  Red  

Number % Number  % Number  % Number  % 

11 9.7% 70 61.9% 29 25.7% 3 2.7% 

2015-16 

Green Yellow  Amber  Red  

Number % Number  % Number % Number % 

17 15.5% 73 67.0% 17 15.6% 2 1.8% 

2016-17 Green Yellow  Amber  Red  

Page 32



 

20 
 

Number % Number  % Number  % Number  % 

22 20.2% 72 66.1% 13 11.9% 2 1.8% 

 
Obvious improvements are also observed in the percentage of schools who been awarded the highest 
grade for quality of leadership and learning/teaching  [grades A + B] as part of Step 2 of the 
categorization process.  Here, the progress made is +20.8% [figure has risen from 68.2% in 2014 to 
89.0%% in 2016] 
 

2014-15 

A B C D 

Number  % Number  % Number  % Number  % 

21 18.6% 56 49.6% 34 30.0% 2 1.8% 

2015-16 

A B C D 

Number % Number  % Number  % Number  % 

28 25.7% 62 56.9% 17 15.6% 2 1.8% 

2016-17 

A B C D 

Number % Number  % Number  % Number  % 

29 26.6% 68 62.4% 10 9.2% 2 1.8% 

Noted below the categories implemented for school year 2015-16 [also note, where applicable, any 
follow-up category following Estyn inspection - LEA Monitoring/Estyn Monitoring /Significant 
Improvement/Special Measures] : 
 

 Primary  Cat: Estyn Step 1 Step  2 Step  3 

Dyffryn Ogwen     

1 Bodfeurig  2 A  

2 Penybryn, Bethesda  1 A  

3 Llanllechid  2 A  

4 Rhiwlas, Bangor  2 B  

5 Abercaseg, Bethesda  1 A  

6 Tregarth  1 A  

Brynrefail     

1 Gwaun Gynfi  2 B  

2 Llanrug  2 B  

3 Bethel  2 A  

4 Cwm y Glo  2 B  

5 Dolbadarn  2 B  

6 Penisarwaun   3 B  

7 Waunfawr  3 B  

Dyffryn Nantlle     

1 Bro Llifon  3 B  

2 Brynaerau  2 A  

3 Llanllyfni  2 B  

4 Baladeulyn  1 C  

5 Nebo  2 B  

6 Bro Lleu  1 A  

7 Talysarn  1 A  

Page 33



 

21 
 

Friars/Tryfan     

1 Glanadda  2 D  

2 Glancegin  1 B  

3 Babanod Coedmawr  2 C  

4 Garnedd  2 A  

5 Felinheli  2 B  

6 Hirael  3 B  

7 Faenol  1 A  

8 Llandygai  1 B  

9 Cae Top  1 A  

10 Our Lady’s  4 B  

Syr Hugh Owen     

1 Gelli  1 B  

2 Felinwnda  2 B  

3 Rhosgadfan  3 D  

4 Rhostryfan  3 B  

5 Hendre   2 B  

6 Bontnewydd  3 A  

7 Maesincla  1 B  

8 Llandwrog  3 B  

9 Santes Helen  4 C  

Tywyn     

1 Craig y Deryn LEA Monitoring 4 B  

2 Dyffryn Dulas  2 B  

3 Penybryn  3 B  

4 Pennal  3 B  

Gader     

1 Brithdir  2 A  

2 Dinas Mawddwy  1 B  

3 Ganllwyd  4 B  

4 Llanelltyd  3 B  

5 Ieuan Gwynedd  3 B  

6 Friog  3 A  

7 Dolgellau  2 B  

Moelwyn     

1 Bro Cynfal              Estyn Monitoring 3 C  

2 Edmwnd Prys  3 B  

3 Manod  1 B  

4 Tanygrisiau   2 B  

5 Bro Hedd Wyn  4 B  

6 Maenofferen  2 A  

Berwyn     

1 Bro Tegid  3 B  

2 O.M.Edwards  1 A  

3 Bro Tryweryn  1 A  

4 Ffridd y Llyn  2 A  

Page 34



 

22 
 

5 Beuno Sant  3 A  

Ardudwy     

1 Traeth  3 B  

2 Dyffryn Ardudwy  4 B  

3 Llanbedr Estyn Monitoring 3 C  

4 Garreg  3 B  

5 Cefn Coch  1 A  

6 Talsarnau  2 B  

7 Tan y Castell   2 B  

Glan y Mor     

1 Abererch  2 A  

2 Chwilog  1 B  

3 Bro Plenydd  2 B  

4 Llanaelhaearn  2 C  

5 Llanbedrog  3 B  

6 Llangybi   2 B  

7 Pentreuchaf  3 A  

8 Eifl  2 C  

9 Cymerau LEA Monitoring 1 B  

Botwnnog     

1 Nefyn  2 A  

2 Abersoch  3 B  

3 Crud y Werin  3 B  

4 Edern  2 B  

5 Babanod Morfa Nefyn  2 A  

6 Sarn Bach  2 A  

7 Tudweiliog  1 B  

8 Pont y Gof  2 B  

9 Foelgron  2 B  

Eifionydd     

1 Beddgelert  1 B  

2 Borth y Gest  2 B  

3 Treferthyr  3 B  

4 Garndolbenmaen   1 B  

5 Eifion Wyn  1 A  

6 Gorlan  3 B  

7 Llanystumdwy  3 B  

Special Schools     

1 Pendalar  - B  

2 Hafod Lon  - A  

 

 Secondary Cat: Estyn Step  1 Step  2 Step  3 

1 Ardudwy  2 B  

2 Berwyn   3 B  

3 Botwnnog  2 B  

Page 35



 

23 
 

4 Brynrefail  1 B  

5 Dyffryn Nantlle  3 C  

6 Dyffryn Ogwen  1 A  

7 Eifionydd  3 C  

8 Friars  1 B  

9 Gader  1 C  

10 Glan y Mor  1 B  

11 Moelwyn  3 B  

12 Syr Hugh Owen  3 B  

13 Tryfan   1 B  

14 Tywyn  1 B  

 
Secondary – Categorization in 2016-17 shows improvements in the profile.  Judgements for Step 2 show 
that 11 schools have received the highest grade [A or B], 3 schools have received judgement C and 2 of 
these have succeeded to improve from D.   No school is placed in the Red category.  

 
Primary – Categorization in 2016-17 for the primary indicates improvements in the profile.  Step 2 
judgements indicate that 89.2% of the schools have been awarded the highest grade [A or B] and only 
10.7% have been adjudged as C/D. This compares with corresponding figures for 2014 of 73.7% and 
26.3%.  88.1% of the schools are in the highest two colour categories [Green/Yellow] 
 
As regards implementing the support and challenge programme for primary and secondary schools in 
the various support categories, the new three model programme is implemented and adjustments have 
been made to the implementation with schools in the Green/Yellow category following consultation 
with the Headteachers.   The revised requirements show that the Challenge Advisor [CA] has a central 
role and that there is a clear expectation that they participate in joint scrutiny activities.   Across all 
colour categories, the CA has held a categorization visit to discuss current performance and standards, 
has challenged targets and monitored progress towards them at 3 key points in a year.   Every school in 
the Green/Yellow category has contributed toward  ‘peer review’ meetings during the first term and 
every school subsequently undertakes a collaboration activity.  Also in the case of the Yellow category 
schools, every establishment is committed to collaboration and participation from a joint training 
activity.   
 
Every Amber school has received a support plan designed to ensure that they are ‘Estyn ready’.  There is 
clear evidence from Estyn monitoring visits and reviews that the vast majority of schools make the 
expected progress within the set deadlines.  

 
As regards Amber/Red schools, implementation since 2014 has led to a significant reduction in the 
percentage of schools in this category.  The percentage has fallen from 28.8% in 2014-15 to 13.7% in 
2016-17.  Every school has received a categorization visit and the CA has challenged targets and taken 
action to monitor progress towards achieving them.  The CA regularly discusses this with the school. 
Every school placed in this category has received a Support Plan and monitoring visits are held in 
accordance with the revised time-table.   
 
There is a clear Business Plan between the Council and  GwE so as to ensure that there finely-tuned and 

appropriate procedures in place for progress monitoring and evaluation at the schools.   A new system 

Page 36



 

24 
 

has been established to monitor performance and quality at every level in Gwynedd schools through the 

County Quality Board  (CQB) -  Membership – Education Department Officers and GwE Challenge Senior 

Advisers. The CQB enables the LEA and GwE to obtain a complete profile of the schools performance 

and quality as the various members possess all the required information. To ensure appropriate 

implementation and accountability, the CQB takes responsibility for accountability and quarterly 

monitoring of the Business Plan – the Business Plan priorities form the basis of the CQB’s 

programme/remit.  There is a good working relationship with LEA officers and the Business Plan has 

substantially made the communication and accountability more robust. A paper was presented to GwE 

‘Schools Improvement Network’, outlining this procedure and the North Wales Authorities agreed, in 

principle, to adopt this system that would lead to regional consistency in monitoring the Business Plans.     

 
LEADERSHIP QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMMES    
 
GwE have introduced a range of activities to support and develop leaders work across both sectors. A 
taster of some of these sessions is provided below.     
 
Secondary Development Programmes:   
This year, an additional development programme is being introduced for Middle Leaders where the 
need was noted to ensure further improvements in their leadership and managerial work.   8 individuals 
have registered and the sessions are held on 10/2/17; 13/2/17 and 17/2/17. An after-care scheme will 
then be implemented in the mother school.   
 
A development programme for Middle Leadership [shift from good to excellent] is being introduced – 10 
representatives from the secondary participate. The individuals initial feedback is extremely positive but 
further work is required to see what effect the guidance has had on their practices back in school.  
 
The numbers in the secondary sector who have attended other development programmes are as 
follows:  

 Headteachers and New Headteachers: 3 Gwynedd   

 Senior Leaders  : 2 Gwynedd 

 Prospective Senior Leaders:  1 Gwynedd 

 ITC Leaders : 1 Gwynedd 

 PLPS Leaders : 4 Gwynedd 
 
In addition in the secondary sector, professional networks have been established to support middle 
leaders in the core and non-core subjects [select] at KS4 with a specific focus on addressing the new 
GCSE specification requirements.     

 
Subject-based CA has worked with departments through county-based networks; cluster schools that 
have similar aspects and also through a series of support visits to individual schools where there is the 
greatest need.  Information on the implementation is shared with the Senior CA and Links CA.  The 
above-mentioned implementation is built on improving quality of departmental leadership as well as 
aspects of the learning/teaching at KS4.   
 
Primary Development Programmes: 

Page 37



 

25 
 

A comprehensive guidance and support programme has been planned for every primary school and the 
details have been shared with the schools.    

 
Lead workshops have been introduced in the fields of SDP, Assessment and Tracking Management; 
Effective Teaching and Leading school on path to improvement. Attendance figures at the sessions are 
noted below:  

 SDP: 76 Gwynedd [an additional session to be held this term for those who were unable to 
attend] 

 Management, Assessment and Tracking  : 42 Gwynedd 

 Effective Teaching [Green/Yellow Categories only] : 60 Gwynedd 

 Leading School on Path to Improvement    [Amber/Red only] : 4 Gwynedd 
 

A development programme for Middle Leadership [shift from good to excellent] is being presented – 13 
primary representatives. The individuals give extremely positive feedback but further work remains to 
be done to see what impact the guidance has on their practices back in school.   

 
The primary sector numbers who have attended other development programmes are noted below: 

 Headteachers and New Headteachers :  19 Gwynedd 

 Senior Leaders  :  5 Gwynedd 

 Prospective Senior Leaders  :  1 Gwynedd 

 Numeracy Leaders : 32 Gwynedd 

 Literacy Leaders  : 34 Gwynedd 

 ITC Leaders :  9 Gwynedd 

  PLPS Leaders :  10 Gwynedd 
 
In 2016-17, 5 individuals NPQH applications from Gwynedd  [2 secondary and 3 primary) have been 

approved and presented to the assessment centre.    

 
PRIORITIES FOR 2017-18 
 
The next steps: 
 
End of key stage outcomes  
Foundation Phase/KS2 

 Set high expectations at the FP and KS2 and challenge schools on target setting.   

 Develop greater robustness to target setting procedures, assess and track schools and promote 
better use of data and intervention programmes to drive required improvements.  

 Ensure a better grasp of D5+/6+ requirements at the FP so that leaders challenge targets and 
assessments more confidently.  

 Ensure more robust action to check suitability of targets and progress made in achieving them.   

 Ensure greater consistency throughout schools as regards  ‘best fit’ when setting a final level.   

 Ensure that schools receive further guidance on teaching and assessing language and number.  

 Improve pedagogy at the FP specifically focussing on :   
 provide better opportunities planned to develop literacy/numeracy across the learning 

fields  
 set more challenging activities  

Page 38



 

26 
 

 provide better opportunities to apply the skills   
 strike a better balance between teacher/learner led tasks  
 improve performance in Mathematical Development  

 Ensure that all NQT’s at the FP have a robust understanding of effective provision 
requirements/expectations.   

 Ensure an agreed understanding and consistency of implementation in the standardization and 
moderation processes across the core subjects.    

 Improve performance in Welsh at the expected levels and the higher levels so that assessments 
more closely correspond to assessments in the other core subjects.   

 Improve FSM learners performance at the higher levels at KS2 in English/Mathematics/Science.  

 Target support for schools where rolling performance has been in the lower 50%.   

 Provide detailed analysis of reading/number tests data at LEA level according to the various years   
Y2>9 and identify specific schools where there is not a close enough correlation with teachers 
performance and assessments.   

 Ensure that every school receives initial guidance on expectations regarding the Digital Framework.  

 Continue to work with LEA officers to improve quality of leadership at every level to ensure that no 
school is placed in a statutory follow-up category following Estyn inspection.  

 Promote School to School collaboration so as to ensure that the best parctices are cascaded and 
cherished.  

 
 
KS3 and KS4 

 Maintain standards of performance at the higher levels across the main indicators.   

 Target support for specific schools where there is no logical alignment between end of KS3 
assessments and performance at KS4. 

 Continue to trial and develop the Head of Strategy Department’s role  [modelling on implementing 
Mathematics in the Meirionnydd area].  

 Ensure more robust implementation to check suitability of targets and progress made towards 
meeting them.   

 Ensure an agreed understanding with leaders of the essentials of curricular/provision planning  to 
improve performance against the main indicators.   

 Ensure that leaders confidently plan for the revised indicators in Languages, Mathematics and 
Science.  

 In a minority of schools,  take action to ensure that leaders at every level make effective and prompt 
use of tracking systems to plan effective intervention and to deal with under-
performance/performance in the comfort zone [and specifically as regards  read-across data] 

 Improve performance in English Language and Welsh Language   

 Improve higher level performance to increase  % 5A*-A 

 Work with the 14-19 Consortium to improve quality of provision and standards of achievement at 
KS5.   

 Target implementation at a small minority of secondary schools where there is concern about 
performance and/or quality of leadership.   

 Continue to work with LEA officers to improve quality of leadership at every level to ensure that no 
school is placed in a statutory follow-up category following an Estyn inspection  

 Promote better School to School collaboration so as to ensure that the best practices are cascaded 
and cherished.  

 

Page 39



 

27 
 

 

 Ensure that  GwE effectively supports LEA’s so that they can make more timely use of their 
statutory intervention powers 

 Ensure that the guidance and support provided for schools facilitates leaders work to make more 
effective and timely use of competence procedures  

 Effectively use regional and national training programme to ensure greater consistency in challenge 
and support level     

 Ensure the appropriate level of financial detail in the Business Plan and appropriate differentiation 
between commissioning at a regional level and at an individual LEA level  

 Further fine-tune self-evaluation structures and develop ways of evaluating impact of actions  
(whilst also ensuring that process findings are effectively used for effective and appropriate target 
setting and quality indicators to improve the service’s and schools performance)   

 Ensure that development plans, self-evaluation processes and  tracking systems are at least good at 
our schools  

 Provide guidance to raise standards in mathematics in specific departments at our secondary 
schools 

 Ensure that our schools understand and are ready to implement new specifications 

 Target underperforming departments in general or those whose performance is in the comfort 
zone  

 Implement the new schools support model so that:  
1. Schools who are at risk of falling behind are identifed at an early stage so as to 

implement appropriate intervention.  
2. Strengthen the school to school support systems and develop new partnerships.   
3. Identify excellence and effective practice in leadership and pedagogy fields and share 

them;   
4. Improve end of key stage outcomes;   
5. Support schools to perform in the highest quartiles 
6. Ensure that a school does not fall into Estyn statutory categories 

 Target professional development programmes for Middle Leaders so as to develop their capacity to 
provide leadership on good teaching and learning within their departments  

 Identify prospective headteachers and prepare them for gaining the NQPH qualification  

 Provide a programme for further development of current headteachers.  

 Continue to strengthen teachers assessment system through moderating assessments so that they 
are consistent across the Area and Wales.  

 Regularly and effectively communicate with the LEA on development at the schools. 

 Collaborate with the Welfare Service to identify good practice in the attendance field.   

 Collaborate to obtain a composite concise school profile.  
 

 
3. THE WELSH LANGUAGE 
 
WELSH LANGUAGE NETWORK AND BUILDING CAPACITY 

 
The cross-authority strategic Group - Welsh Medium and Capacity Building Network - is led by Gwynedd 
and focusses on the Welsh Language, Welsh medium and Building capacity in every LEA. This is an 
influential group as regards discussing language continuum, and has a significant impact on the status of 

Page 40



 

28 
 

Welsh at every school, and pre-school establishments, and quality of its teaching as a language and its 
further use as a learning medium.    
 
The group has a key role in ensuring that the region addresses requirements and principles:  

- Welsh Government Welsh Medium Education Strategy 
- The LEAs Welsh In Education Strategic Plans  
- The LEAs Language Plans and Strategies  

 
Amongst the identified fields, the Network’s main priorities are:   

 Expand the Language Charter across the North Wales counties.   

 Welsh Advisory Teachers/Language Centres. 

 Establish Professional Learning Communities.  

 Purposeful planning and ensuring progression from the Early Years.   

 Welsh as a Second Language.  

 Welsh in Education Strategic Plan.    
 
 
THE LANGUAGE CHARTER  
 
GWYNEDD 
Since the launch of the Welsh Language Charter in Gwynedd primary schools,  innovative work has been 

done at our schools to impact pupils use of Welsh in a social context.  

The Language Charter’s simple objective is to lead to progress in children’s use of Welsh in a social 
context.   In a word, to get the children to speak Welsh.   In 2016, more than 55% of schools in  Gwynedd 
(69 schools) (WG Target) achieved the Language Charter gold award. 
 
The Language Charter seeks the participation of all members of the school community -  the school 

council, the pupils, the workforce, parents, governors and the wider community to ensure full 

ownership of it.  

The language co-ordiantors have received thorough training so that they are individuals who are 
qualified to provide guidance and support for the schools in their catchment-areas.   Under their charge, 
the monitoring and accreditation work is implemented.  We will continue to develop their role as it is a 
key element of ensuring that relevant messages and information on achieving the award objective is 
effectively communicated and distributed. Termly meetings are held to share the latest information with 
the language co-ordinators.  Through holding a series of meetings with every headteacher in their 
catchment-areas, messages are shared and everybody receives clear guidance and guidelines on the 
criteria that needs to be addressed to maintain gold award requirements and standards.  
 
A strong element of training stems from the accreditation visits and an excellent opportunity for 

information sharing and good practices between schools.  An annual report is completed on every 

school’s achievement and development in meeting silver and gold awards requirements.   We will 

continue with the accreditation process at the end of the school year, scrutinizing ‘gwe’ language data 

to prove positive impact following the Language Charter’s implementation.   

Page 41



 

29 
 

A lead document has been prepared that contains all the purposeful strategies, activities and plans that 

have been a success and have had a positive impact on gwe language data amongst  ‘innovative’ schools 

in Gwynedd.  We will continue to develop this documents as the Charter is developed and 

mainstreamed into the Council’s core work.   

Close collaboration between Partnerships continues and specific events have been jointly held with   

S4C, the Urdd and Cwmni Da to have a positive impact on gwe language data.  

So as to ensure progression to the Primary Language Charter project, and maintaining and creating a 

demand and improving our young people’s Welsh language skills, we are developing a Strategy that will 

provide clear guidance on how to plan intervention so as to improve awareness and increased use of the 

language by young people in the secondary sector.  

The Secondary Strategy will incorporate Cwmni Trywydd report recommendations (a report that was 

commissioned to review the situation as regards Welsh as a social language amongst young people of 

Gwynedd secondary schools), Alun Charles’s report, Secondary Sector Language Practices Support 

Project,  Welsh Government Strategy: achieving a million Welsh speakers by 2050 and the Welsh 

Government Framework for increasing use of Welsh by children and young people. The young people’s 

role and voice will be key as will be key youth and stakeholders services.  The Strategy will place clear 

expectations and guidance on the county’s secondary schools for changing techniques in language 

practices and the different methods of impacting pupils language in a social context within and outside 

the school.   

We will: 

 Support the 14 secondary schools to implement the strategy’s main priorities  

 Prepare and implement comprehensive training programmes for secondary teachers in bilingual 
teaching and learning methodologies  

 Further promote the value and advantages and usefulness of bilingualism to strengthen pupils 
motivation to develop into individuals who are fluent in both languages.  

 
 
NORTH WALES AND NATIONALLY     
At the request of the Welsh Government (WG), following positive reports on the Charter’s success in 
Gwynedd, it was requested that Gwynedd’ specialization and good practice was to be used to extend 
the project to other areas in Wales.     
 
Gwynedd Council provides a service on behalf of the WG to achieve 4 main elements, the task of raising 

awareness, hold a training conference, information sharing and hosting the on-line questionnaire, and 

the accreditation process.  

Work has already commenced on providing support for other counties to establish firm foundations to 

implement the Language Charter, providing leadership and good practices on all practical aspects of the 

Charter.   

Page 42



 

30 
 

The objective of the North Wales project in 2016/2017 was to try and ensure that all category one 
schools in the counties of  Conwy, Denbigh, Wrexham and Flintshire, received the Charter silver award.   
In 2015 – 2016, a total of 50 out of 52 schools were awarded the Bronze Award.  There were exceptional 
circumstances in the two schools who were unsuccessful and those two schools are starting on the 
Bronze Award this year.  On the Isle of Anglesey, 44 out of the LEA’s  46 primary schools were assessed 
by the five Catchment-area Language Co-ordinators in June.  All the schools gained the Bronze Award 
accreditation. Work is ongoing with the other two schools.   
 
100% of north wales schools have set the baseline through the Language Charter’s on-line system in   
2016/17 and have planned and implemented activities that would address individual schools 
requirements.    
 
The Charter system has been developed and fine-tuned to be in the HUB so that individuals progress can 
be measured rather than only a whole school. Hopefully the system will be live in the HUB and available 
to all Wales in September 2017.    
 
A sustainable system has been developed for schools valiadation and moderation for north Wales. 
Validators have been trained to validate and moderate by gwynedd language co-ordinators.  
 
As regards the work and support at a national level:    

 A project for installing the Charter’s on-line system system in the HUB has been developed so as 
to follow individuals progress rather than only obtaining a whole school profile. 

 The Charter system in the HUB has been piloted at 15 schools to ensure that the system will be 
live for all Wales in September 2017.   

 The Charter system has been developed and improved upon so that it is more user friendly.  
 North Wales officers and heads of counties have supported the South East and South Central 

Consortium to achieve the Charter Bronze award.   This was done through contributing to a 
conference and supporting South Wales Language Charter Co-ordinators. 

 A ‘Good Practices’ document for implementing the Charter is continually developed so that 
everybody can learn from one another.  

 Officers in Gwynedd continue to support and provide information for South Wales co-ordinators   
(Erw Consortium, South East and South Central).  

 Gwynedd systems development unit continues to provide IT support for all Wales.   

 Ensure that the Charter’s on-line system is in the HUB by September  2017.     

 Continue to develop the Good Practices document and create a National ideas bank so that 
everybody learns from one another.   

 

WELSH EDUCATION SCRUTINY ENQUIRY  

The LEA Services Scrutiny Committee established a Scrutiny Enquiry on Welsh Education to scrutinize:  

 The LEA’s Language Policy    

 The extent to which the provision assists promotion of use of Welsh socially by children and 
Young People  (the link with Gwynedd Schools Welsh Language Charter Work)   

The County Council’s Scrutiny Enquiry Report into Welsh Education into the implementation, 

consistency and success of Gwynedd Council’s Language Policy in the county’s schools concludes, based 

Page 43



 

31 
 

on a study of three specific areas,  that  ‘policy interpretation varies greatly and depends on schools 

catchment-areas language demography as well on teachers and headteachers zeal for the Welsh 

language’.   It adds ‘that there is neither consistency or a common understanding of the 

requirements’.   This view is supported in the Cwmni Trywydd report on the situation as regards Welsh 

as a social language amongst the young people in Gwynedd’s secondary schools.   

The Scrutiny Enquiry Report gives detailed consideration to the issue before conclduing with several 

recommendations for improving consistency of Policy implementation.  They include the following 

recommendations:  

So as to strengthen and reconcile the Council’s Education Language Policy, the Council should define 

what bilingual learning is,  collaborating with schools and teachers training establishments to establish a 

robust bilingual pedagogy that is appropriate for all the LEA’s schools and pupils and nurtures concurrent 

purposeful use of language amongst staff.   

There is a requirement, in order to strengthen and reconcile implementation of the Council’s (Education) 

Language Policy, to clearly define the language nature of all secondary schools in Gwynedd so that it is 

clear to all stakeholders what is the nature of the schools language, making the schools and governors 

accountable for its implementation.’    

Officers in Gwynedd Council’s Education Department have been jointly working with an External 

Adviser,  Alun Charles, to conduct a Study mainly concerned with the second recommendation but that 

the task of defining the linguistic nature of the county’s secondary schools also incorporates an element 

of the first recommendation, namely what is meant by bilingual teaching and learning where that is 

implemented.    

The Study has led to a report including several conclusions and recommendations.  The report and 

recommendations were presented to the Council’s Services Scrutiny Committee on 26.01.17 where all 

the recommendations were approved but further discussion was required in defining Gwynedd 

secondary schools according to the language medium of teaching and learning under one category.  The 

Education Department will implement these recommendations during  2017-18.   

 

WELSH IN EDUCATION STRATEGIC PLAN (WESP) 
 
Wales Schools Standards and Organization Act (2013) became law in Wales on 4 March 2013.  The Act 

places a statutory duty on LEAs to prepare and introduce a Welsh in Education Strategic Plan  for the 

Welsh Government.    

Following the initial three years of the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) planning cycle, we are 

now proceeding to the next planning stage for 2017-2020.   

Page 44



 

32 
 

The WESP has established firm foundations for planning Welsh medium education across Wales and 

Welsh language and bilingual education. Completing the last planning cycle has provided an opportunity 

to reflect on what is working well and those matters requiring development.   

This Plan continues to focus on the five outcomes contained in the 2010 Welsh Medium Education 

Strategy and outlines how the LEA will achieve the Welsh Government’s objectives and targets outlined 

in the Strategy.  The LEA will have to review progress made in meeting these targets.  

 

Here are the five outcomes:   

 more seven year olds are taught through the medium of Welsh as a percentage of Year 2 cohort;    

 more learners continue to improve their language skills when transferring from primary to 
secondary school;   

 more learners study to gain qualifications through the medium of Welsh;  

 more  16-19 year old learners study Welsh and subjects through the medium of Welsh; and  

 more learners possess advanced language skills in Welsh.   
 

The Plan also addresses standards of achievement in Welsh and Welsh as second language,  Welsh 

medium provision for ALN learners (ALN), and planning the workforce and continuing Professional 

development (CPD).   

The Strategy is interpreted within the context of Gwynedd Council Language Policy and thus the 
outcomes are achieved.  The LEA ensures that the main elements are reflected and receive due focus in 
the Strategic Plan. 
 
 
GWYNEDD LANGUAGE CENTRES 

The objective of the Language Centres is to provide an intensive course in Welsh for latercomers to 

enable them to assimilate into the bilingual community and fully participate in bilingual education 

experiences.   This provision has a core role in assisting primary and secondary schools to implement the 

current Language Policy.     

There are four primary centres and one secondary centre.  The primary centres are located at  

Caernarfon, Dolgellau, Llangybi and Penrhyndeudraeth, and the secondary centre in Porthmadog.    

Between 2005 and October   2016,  a total of 1628 primary pupils and 510 secondary pupils have 

benefitted from attending the language centres.   

As regards the primary, a maximum of 16 / 18 pupils will attend each Centre for a 12 week course,   

except for Dolgellau, that has space for 8 pupils only. The provision is mainly provided for 7-11 year olds 

(KS2) who are latecomers to the County.  The pupils will attend an intensive course for a term to 

immerse and prepare them to receive most of their education through the medium of Welsh or 

bilingually on return to their schools.  It is a multi-medium and cross-curricular course and the teachers 

base their   scheme of work on this.  The scheme enables the pupils to return to schools in their area and 

follow their curriculum through the medium of Welsh.   

Page 45



 

33 
 

The Secondary Centre provides place for a maximum of 16 pupils for 8 week periods initially focussing 

on Y7 pupils and then Y8 with small numbers from Y9 if there is room, in accordance with the  

specifically set criteria. These pupils will be immersed with an intensive course in Welsh in a short 

period, and also provide other subjects through the medium of Welsh.    

We continue to ensure appropriate progression for pupils on their return to school through providing 

after-care for every pupil.  The Language Centres provide an after-care Service in partnership with the 

schools to ensure that the pupils continue to make significant progress in Welsh.  A recent development 

is the appointment of Gwynedd Primary Language Centres After Care Teacher responsible for teaching 

Welsh to latecomer groups specifically involved with ensuring implementation of the after care plan for 

pupils who have attended the Language Centres.   

 
PRIORITIES FOR 2017-18 
 
The next steps : 

 Continue to lead the regional Group so as to try and ensure better Access to Welsh medium 

Education for learners across the area, who wish to develop, strengthen or maintain their 

bilingual skills.     

 Continue to implement the Language Charter in Gwynedd and lead the work of extending the 

Charter across the North Wales counties and Nationally.  

 Implement the Secondary Language Charter in Gwynedd.   

 Maintain an effective training programme to equip the workforce to deal with various language 
situations.   

 Continue to implement the priorities noted in the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan.   

 Implement the Alun Charles Study report recommendations.  

 Secondary Language Centre – ensure that every school effectively regularly implements the 

after-care strategy.    

 

 

4. SOCIAL INCLUSION 

ATTENDANCE 

% attendance in Gwynedd secondary schools in comparison with Wales  
In the secondary sector, attendance has increased by +0.5% on the figure for 2015 to 95.1%. Over the 
same period, there was a national increase from  +0.3% to 94.2%. An improvement has also occurred in 
FSM learners attendance  by +0.8% to 91.5%  [an increase nationally of +0.5% over the same period to   
90.2%]. The gap between FSM/non-FSM has reduced for the fifth consecutive year to  4.0% [reduction  
2015>2016 of 0.2% nationally to 4.8%]. As regards the half day sessions lost,  Gwynedd is the best 
performer amongst all the authorities in Wales.  Gwynedd’s position [4/22] is also positive in schools 
Distribution according to FSM National benchmark quartiles. No school is in the lower quartile and 
50.0% are in the higher quartile. 
 

Page 46



 

34 
 

School  2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 
 

2015/16 

Ardudwy 93.21 94.28 94.9 94.56 

Brynrefail 94.04 94.29 94.9 95.70 

Syr Hugh Owen 91.89 93.48 94.1 94.32 

Tryfan 93.4 94.21 94.3 94.83 

Dyffryn Ogwen 93.04 94.45 94.6 94.90 

Botwnnog 94.58 95.16 94.9 95.06 

Glan y Mor 94.11 95.04 95.3 95.24 

Tywyn 94.69 95.27 94.9 95.38 

Y Gader 93.49 93.86 95.1 95.40 

Berwyn 94.23 95.28 95.9 96.24 

Moelwyn 94.11 95.01 93.8 95.22 

Eifionydd 93.44 94 94.1 95.26 

Dyffryn Nantlle 93.74 94.57 95 95.53 

Friars 92.31 93.27 94.1 94.61 

 
% attendance of Gwynedd primary schools compared to Wales  
In the primary sector, attendance has increased by +0.4% on the figure for 2015 to 95.4% - See sppendix 
2. Over the same period, a reduction has occurred at a National level of -0.1% to 94.9%. An 
improvement has also occurred in FSM  learners attendance by  +0.4% to 93.6% [and a fall at a National 
level of   -0.2% over the same period to  92.7%]. The gap between FSM/non-FSM has remained constant 
at  2.1% [2.7% nationally].  As regards the half day lost, Gwynedd is in 3rd position amongst all  Wales 
LEAs.  The position of  Gwynedd [5/22] is also positive as regards schools Distribution according to FSM 
National benchmark quartiles.   
 

WELFARE SERVICE 

The service’s work pattern has continued with a clear focus on attendance, punctuality and well-being.  

The following priorities have been specifically focussed upon:  

 Primary and Secondary - Aim to ensure that Gwynedd remains amongst the counties that are 

the best performers as regards pupils attendance.    

 Implement an agreed system of targeting attendance of pupils who are persistently absent.  

 Use of SIMS at primary schools.    

 Introduce Attendance and Punctuality Policy to the primary sector.   

 Provide legal guidance for the schools as regards authorizing and recording “family holidays” 

during school term.  

 Provide guidance for schools on attendance codes.   

Page 47



 

35 
 

 Prosecution – during the year, the welfare Service prosecuted 5 families for lack of pupil 

attendance. This led to imposing a fine on the families of up to a maximum of £1,600. 

EXCLUSIONS 

Secondary  

A reduction has occurred in the number of permanent exclusions to 2 during the school year 2015-16. 

The number of fixed exclusions has increased to 172 and this has led to an increase in the number of 

days lost to exclusions in the secondary sector.   

During next year, a new provision will commence to support pupils who have intensive behavioural or 

emotional problems at key stage 3.   

Primary  

There were no permanent exclusions during the school year 2015-16.  The number of  fixed exclusions 

have increased to 104.  The lack of specialist provision is a factor in this increase.   

 Fixed Permanent 

2011-2012 32 0 

2012-2013 36 0 

2013-2014 27 0 

2014-2015  83 3 

2015-2016 104 0 

 

During next year, a specialist units provision will commence within schools to support the pupils who 

have the most intensive behavioural and emotional needs. 

 

BEHAVIOURAL SUPPORT 

Primary  

 Permanent Fixed  

2006-07 27 238 

2007-08 14 234 

2008-09 2 302 

2009-10 11 278 

2010-11 8 206 

2011-12 14 199 

2012-13 4 84 

2013-14 4 110 

2014-15 3 132 

2015-16 2 172 

Page 48



 

36 
 

There are two full-time teachers in the behavioural support service and two assistants who provide an 

outreach Service under the specialist teachers supervision.   

The teachers and assistants work stem from referrals made to the Primary Behaviour Forum.  Schools 

receive a range of support that assists them to include pupils who have behavioural and emotional 

problems. The assistants work targets the pupils whilst the teachers work supports school staff. A 

referral, recording and reporting to school system is implemented and is a success.   

The Forum requests reports from the relevant agencies on specific aspects of school provision and 

individual pupils requirements.   

Currently, the primary behavioural support 115 pupils.  

During the next year, a new provision will be established to support pupils who have the most intensive 

behavioural needs within Gwynedd primary schools.   

Secondary 

Almost £800,00 has been delegated to the secondary schools to maintain the inclusion provision in the 

secondary schools.  A review was held of the secondary schools use of this finance clearly focussing on 

additional support outcomes. It was observed that almost all the schools had a clear vision of inclusion.  

The vision focussed on supporting pupils at the schools and within the mainstream provision and this is 

ensured through providing pupils with alternative opportunities and support.  

 

The significant reduction in temporary and permanent exclusions strongly highlights the good work 

done by every Secondary school in Gwynedd in the behavioural field.  It seems that the inclusion funding 

has been used to integrate the behavioural support provision to support behaviour in school life. 

 

P25 

In response to the need for special provision for those pupils who have completely disengaged from 

education by or during KS4, the P25 provision was established during Spring term 2016.  In collaboration 

with Ysgol y Moelwyn, provision packs are prepared that aim to allocate up to a maximum of 25 hours 

for every pupil.   Every pupil receives core lessons that target GCSE accreditations.  In addition, extended 

work experience, therapeutic input, sports, youth work and aspects of alternative education form part 

of the pack.  

5 Secondary Inclusion Officers have been appointed to introduce the curriculum to these pupils. These 

officers ensure that the pupils are fully engaged with the packs through being a key worker for them.  

So as to co-ordinate access to the specialist provision, a Forum has been established to prioritize and 

ensure that appropriate and effective support is provided.   

 

 

Page 49



 

37 
 

Schools P25   

During 2015/16, 39 pupils followed school P25.  A number of pupils had a combination of reasons for 

being referred for the attention of the 25 schools pack.  The main reasons for referral was low 

attendance  (79%) and behavioural problems (62%).    

Every pupil sat examinations up to GCSE level. The majority also completed level 1 or level 2 

qualifications.    24 (64%) of pupils attained TL1 (5  GCSE  qualifications A - G).  1 (2.7%) learner achieved  

TL2 (5 GCSE Qualifications  A – C). 29 have gained accreditation in GCSE English  with 25 learners 

achieving GCSE Mathematics.  23 achieved a GCSE Welsh qualification with   10 achieving this through a 

second language course.  9 gained a GCSE qualification in Science with 12 learners achieving  BTEC Level 

2 Science.  

 
Number % 

Welsh GCSE  13 33% 

Welsh Second Language GCSE   10 26% 

English GCSE 29 74% 

English Literature 9 23% 

Mathematics 25 64% 

Science GCSE 9 23% 

Science BTEC 12 31% 

In addition to the core subjects, the pupils gained the following GCSE qualifications. 

 Number % 

PE 
  

3 
  

8% 
  

Art  
  

8 
  

21% 
  

Geography  
  

2 
  

5% 
  

Design and Technology   
  

7 
  

18% 
  

Health and Care 
  

1 
  

3% 
  

Religious Studies  
  

3 
  

8% 
  

Information Technology  
  

1 
  

3% 
  

Art and Design and Technology were the most popular subjects with 5 learners achieving grade C in Art. 

 

Page 50



 

38 
 

Full P25  

There were 12 pupils on the register having been accepted on a full P25.   11 (92%) had been referred 

following behaviour that would have led to permanent exclusions.  1 pupil was placed on the pack due 

to attendance problems only.  

3 pupils did not sit any examinations.  The 3 were former Llwybrau Ni pupils – they did not engage in 

their education packs.  One of these pupils has engaged with the pack this year.   

 9 (75%) sat GCSE examinations in 3 core subjects. 

1 learner (8.3%) achieved TL1. He achieved a grade C in Catering, E in PE and gained a BTEC Science level 

2.  

 

Number % 

Welsh GCSE 8 67% 

Welsh as Second Language GCSE  1 8% 

English GCSE 7 58% 

English Literature 0 0% 

Mathematics 8 67% 

Science GCSE  0 0% 

Science GCSE 1 8% 

PE 1 8% 

Catering 1 8% 

 

8 (67%) of learners achieved GCSE accreditation in Welsh and Mathematics and 7 (57%) of learners 

achieved GCSE in English.  Only one learner achieved BTEC Level 2 Science qualification.  

Only two subjects offered were additional to the core subjects namely PE and Catering. This was offered 

in collaboration with Ysgol y Moelwyn. 

During the time these pupils spent on the pack, no incident of misbehaviour occurred that would have 

led to a fixed or permanent exclusion.   

 

Page 51



 

39 
 

TRAC 

The TRAC scheme provides additional support for pupils who have been identified as being at risk of  
NEET (not in education/training/work) when leaving education.  151 pupils have received a support pack 
with 195 new pupils identified to receive support for next year.  A programme is co-ordinated by a Key 
Worker in accordance with the individual’s needs.   
 
This scheme is aimed towards learners in years 7-13 who have been identified as being most at risk of 
losing interest in education. It is a wide ranging pack that includes prevention work, emotional well-
being support, health sessions,  outdoor activities,  opportunities to follow accreditations up to level 2, a 
framework of providers who can be commissioned to lead on training.  
 
The Service has a target to work towards with a minimum of 480 pupils over a three year period with 72 

of them to receive accreditations as a direct consequence of the provision.   

Careers Wales is a full partner in the scheme and hold sessions tailored for individuals to prepir them for 
college work and courses.    
 
Provision is offered for the individual who is on the County’s EOTAS register as well as pupils on P25 to 
ensure that they are not exempted from a provision that they would receive in mainstream education.  
 
A forum was established to receive referrals to the Service and 180 pupils were referred for the 

attention of the first forum.  

These learners have complex needs linked to their social problems, behaviour, educational needs as well 

as emotional and mental health wellbeing. Through enabling learners to have access to support and 

provision/tailored alternative programmes, TRAC will re-instil interest and motivate learners, boost 

learners confidence and self-esteem, and promote learners aspirations to achieve their maximum 

potential in learning, and thus reduce the risk of becoming NEET.    

 
HOME EDUCATION  

The home education Service equates to 1.8 teachers.  Home education is provided for pupils of 

mandatory school age who are not for several reasons, able to attend an appropriate school.  One of the 

teachers co-ordinates the provision.   

A home education forum has been established that meets once every half term. All requests for home 

education is referred for the forum’s attention.  The home education teacher’s careful planning has led 

to several of the pupils successfully reintegrating into mainstream schools and special schools.  

Specific focus is placed on monitoring quality of lessons and strengthening the monitoring 

arrangements/reviewing the home education provision.   

 

 

Page 52



 

40 
 

PRIORITIES FOR 2017-18 

The next steps: 

Welfare Service 

 Continue to improve attendance levels  

 Target schools considered to be under-performing in attendance.   

 Fine-tune the process of prosecuting parents for not ensuring their children’s attendance. 
 
Behavioural Support  

 Reconcile nature of support in the different areas   

 Establish an internal training Group and prioritize time for that.  
 
TRAC 

 Provide a programme for the new pupils identified to receive TRAC intervention.  

 The entire plan is awaiting an appraisal in order to identify the way forward and the possibility 
of extending the plan for two years.    

 Provide an alternative curriculum for vulnerable pupils/without options KS3 and KS4 

 Introduce additional framework providers   

 Develop the relationship with Careers Wales to spur economic ambition at Key Stage 3.   
 

ETHNIC MINORITIES ACHIEVEMENT SERVICE (EMAS) 

The Service collaborates with Gwynedd schools to support young people for whom English is an 

additional language to achieve their full potential.  The objective is to provide prompt and effective 

support for schools in order to surmount any problem that may arise due to lack of language and 

consequently understanding.  

The team works very closely with schools and other agencies to ensure appropriate support.  
 
The team also closely collaborates with the EMAS/EAL Services across North Wales,  including meetings 
between the co-ordinators, moderation session and INSET session.   
 
Training for teachers and assistants is provided in schools and a good relationship has been established 
between the Confucius Institute (Bangor University) and the schools/Service.     
 
There is clear evidence that the team’s input has led to some of the children making good progress.  
 
PRIORITIES FOR 2017-18 

The next steps: 

 Further strengthen the referral method to the service    

 Provide training for schools  
 
 
 
 

Page 53



 

41 
 

SAFEGUARDING  

One of the Education Department Business Plan priorities is to ‘Review safegurading arrangements 

through ensuring that the council’s procedures and policies are clearly understood by everybody who 

work in the educational field and are regularly up-dated and disseminated’.     

During 2016-17, the following aspects received specific focus:  

 Review the model policies that are available to schools in the child safeguarding and protection 

field as regards national developments and guidelines for ‘safeguarding learners’   

 Raise awareness in all aspects of the safeguarding field through training  

 Continue to keep Level 1 and 2 Training up to date and thus ensure that protection Training 

record for Education staff is corporately available    

 Raise awareness of CSE impacts on pupils through Level 2 Training  

 Ensure that schools purposefully prepare for strategy and core groups meetings.  

 Review policies on/arrangements on use of Reasonable Force in schools  

 Raise awareness of the effects of Harmful Sexual Behaviour (HSB) on children through Level 2 

Training   

 Every School to receive a pre-inspection Safeguarding visit.  

 Improve collaboration with agencies and services (health, Social Services, Gyda’n Gilydd, 
Welfare Officers) to discuss, monitor and plan for pupils who do not reach Soccial Services 
criteria.  

 Monitor and improve the department’s practice as regards safeguarding (referrals, annual 
reports etc)  

 Work with Social Services to improve the Department’s practice regarding case conferences 

through monitoring who attends and prepare a report for presentation.   

 
PRIORITIES FOR 2017-18 

The next steps: 
 

 Hold an annual audit of safeguarding and governance arrangements within the department and 

within schools  

 Continue to improve individuals and key groups practice, understanding and awareness of this 

particular field including how to identify signs  

 Continue to up-date the training programme to meet annual audit requirements  

 Implement work programme in accordance with the annual audit conclusions and 

recommendations and also consider any improvement opportunities   

 

 

 

 

Page 54



 

42 
 

5. ADDITIONAL LEARNING NEEDS (ALN) 
 
EDUCATIONAL PSYCHOLOGY SERVICE  
 
The Educational Psychology Service collaborates with Gwynedd schools to facilitate an appropriate and 
reasonable response for young people who experience additional learning difficulties, where these 
requirements impact the individuals access to the curriculum.    
 
The main priorities in  2016/17 are noted below: 

 Reconcile processes for involvement with Specific ALN – relevant standardized measures and 
assessments established.   

 The Service contributes to the ALN and Inclusion Forums process in a key role.   

 Close collaboration has developed with other Teams within the Service.   

 The Team has been part of development of Neuro-developmental Assessment Pathway (ASA 
and ADHD). 

 Develop Skills within the Team: The Team has received CPD Training in ‘Individual Centred 
Planning’ and ADOS Assessment.  

 National Psychology National documentation contributed towards as part of the development of 
the Amended ALN Bill. 

 Close colleboration with and guidance provided for Mental Health Senior Worker on 
Secondment from CAMHS service.    

 
During 2017/18, the Service will: 

 Review the service allocation arrangements  

 Define Service measures in fields other than Specific ALN, collaborating with other teams within 
the ALN and Inclusion Service where required.  

 Develop use of data within the IDP to measure the service’s effectiveness.  

 Continue to develop consistency across the Team.   

 Provide leadership on developing a training strategy that matches ALN and Inclusion Strategy 
requirements, and the new legislation.   

 Collaborate with both LEAs to establish a data system that is fit for purpose so as to report on 
the service’s effectiveness.   

 
SPECIALIST TEACHERS SERVICE 
 
Changes have been made to the specialist teachers teams.   
 
Work has already been done to identify service improvements following the ALN strategic review.  The 
service has collaborated to prepare a more effective and sustainable implementation model. 
 
 
HEARING IMPAIRMENT 
 
During 2016/17, a Hearing Impairment Forum was held to discuss cases open to the Team. 
 
A Team has participated in a National event orgnized by a Sensory sub-group to standardize use of 
NATSIP categories at a national level and this has led to re-categorization, where required.  

Page 55



 

43 
 

 
Definite improvement has occurred in training courses arrangements referring assistants to the correct 
courses.  
 
A listening and soft skills pack has been completed as well as a training pack for Headteachers and Co-
ordinators.   
 
A regular team meeting is held to share good practices and reconcile.  
 
 
VISUAL IMPAIRMENT 
 
A service is provided that ensures that blind and partially blind pupils  (or who have other visual 

difficulties) are taught in their local mainstream schools alongside peers of the same ability.  In addition, 

ensure that the pupils (special schools) fully use their sight and therefore substantially enrich their lives. 

During 2016/17, a Visual Impairment Forum was held to discuss cases that are open to the Team.  
 
It is intended to formalize the arrangements for receiving new referrals, in the form of an IDP to the 
Forum rather than directly receive referrals from hospitals to the Team.  To facilitate this change, 
collaboration with Health will be required.  It is also intended to make further use of data from IDP to 
measure the Team’s effectiveness. 
 
Like the Hearing Impairment Team, the Team has participated in a National event organized by a 
Sensory sub-group to standardize use of NATSIP categories nationally and this has led to re-
categorization, where required.   
 
COMMUNICATION AND INTERACTION TEAM 
 
There are two teachers equivalent to 1.8 full-time within the language and communication, and autism 
team.  The specialist teachers work is reviewed in the Communication and Interaction Forum once every 
half term.  Much collaboration has developed between the Specialist Teachers who work in the ASE field 
and the language and communication Field.  
 
The Designated Language Centres continue to provide two days specialist support for pupils who have 
specific language impairment at 4 primary schools.  The units have extended to provide a placement for 
12 pupils each for the first time this year in response to the demand at the start of the school year. 
During October, for the first time, a language, communication and interaction forum was established 
and for the first time since the provision was established, pupils have left the Centres at the end of the 
first term.    
 
4 senior language and communication assistants have been appointed to support pupils who leave the 
Designated Language Centres or the ABC Units at the end of the summer term. The requirements of the 
pupils who are open to receive this service are reviewed and a turnover of cases is being established.  
 
The Language and Communication Outreach Senior Assistants Team have provided input for 
approximately 100 pupils during the year and the schools favourably respond to this service.  
 

Page 56



 

44 
 

The entire workforce have attended training in accordance with their CPD requirements during the year.  
 
Now, Gwynedd Communication and Interaction Forum has matured and make effective use of the 
Admissions and Exiting Criteria. This has also facilitated pupils transfer from the Language Centres so 
that pupils do not remain in the provision for longer than required, and can re-integrate to the 
mainstream in a timely manner.     

 
 
MEDICAL AND PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS   
 
Two teachers support pupils who have medical and physical needs, ensuring that they receive an equal 
opportunity and are educated alongside their peers at local schools, and prepared for the opportunities, 
responsibilities and experiences of adulthood. 
 
The support for pupils who have Diabetes is jointly reviewed with Diabetes UK. 
 
The Team has faciliated the work of transferring pupils who have received Medical 3* input into 
Individualized Development Plans through jointly reviewing every case with schools.  
 
An operational link with the Diabetes Nurses has been established, and the nurses have attended the 
Service Forum.   
 
Increasing collaboration has also been observed with Special Schools to share strategies.  
 
 
COGNITION AND LEARNING 
 
The Cognition and Learning Team work in partnership with teachers, assistants, parents and other 
professionals through providing appropriate guidance,  resources, advice and training to support pupils 
who have literacy and/or numeracy difficulties.  There is the equivalent of  9 teachers within the service.  
 
At the start of the school year, a cognition and learning forum was held to ensure that the service 
provision accords with the criteria.  The team provides a service for 268 pupils.  Several other forums 
have been held and the figures remain fairly constant. 
 
During next year, training will receive focus and thus alter the service’s implementation approach. This 
will be a step towards trying to achieve a sustainable change within Gwynedd primary schools 
workforce.   
 
Additional Information 
 
The tables below indicate the number of final statements issued within the statutory 26 week time-table 
during the school year 2015/16 (National Performance Indicators).   
 

Gwynedd 26 weeks Performance Indicators School Year  13/14 14/15 15/16 

Total number of new final statements  85 49 60 

Number of final statements within  26 weeks with exemptions 33 14 20 

Number of final statements  within  26 weeks without exemptions 18 20 13 

Page 57



 

45 
 

i.e. within the deadline and no exemptions recorded  

Number of final statements  over 26 weeks  with exemptions  
i.e. past the deadline due, or partly due, to external factors  

33 15 27 

Number of final statements  over 26 weeks  without exemptions  
i.e. beyond the deadline and no exemptions recorded  (nobody late in presenting their 
advice from outside agencies and no factors beyond the control of the education 
department and/or the SEN Joint-committee) 

0 1 0 

Of the total number of cases for the year,   what was the percentage  within  the 26 
weeks, was there an exemption or not?  

60% 48.3% 55% 

Of the cases where there were no exemptions, what was the percentage of those 
completed within the 26 weeks?   
100% 95% 

95% 100% 100% 

 
We produce a statement based on several reports containing medical reports.  Those which are ‘late 
with exemption’ are so because we have not received some of these reports in time.   
 
Last year, we trialled use of the Individual Development Plan system to provide support for Young 

children with intensive requirements who were transferring from the ABC Units. Due to the success of 

this system, the same arrangements were followed this year.  This is a flexible approach of providing   

support for needy individuals in the Early Years, without having to hold a Statutory Assessment.   

 
6. THE STRATEGY FOR TRANSFORMING THE ADDITIONAL LEARNING NEEDS AND INCLUSION FIELD  
 
Gwynedd and Isle of Anglesey Council are currently transforming the provision for ALN pupils.  In light of 

Welsh Government proposed legislative change, and following a consultation period in the past, further 

work has now been done on developing models/options for the new service.   

The Strategy objective is to:  
 

‘Ensure that children and young people  (between 0 and 25 years old) who have additional learning 

needs utilize opportunities and gain experiences that have been effectively planned for them,  to 

enable them to progress in accordance with their ability.’ 

A report was presented to Gwynedd Council Cabinet on 13th September, 2016 and to Isle of Anglesey 
Council Executive Committee on 19th September, 2016.   During the meetings, it was agreed to:   

 

 Adopt a common ALN and Inclusion strategy for Gwynedd and Isle of Anglesey;   

 Join in a formal partnership with Isle of Anglesey Council to implement the Strategy and 
adopt a new governance system that will replace the current SEN Joint-committee;   

 Delegate the right to the Head of Education in consultation with the Head of Legal Services 
and Head of Finance to agree on and complete a formal Agreement with Isle of Anglesey 
Council for the partnership;   

 andlikewise, an agreement /Memorandum of Understanding in the interim period to 
enable us to take action to reach this point.    

Page 58



 

46 
 

Having received approval, a formal consultation was held with the workforce affected (October 2016).  
The workforce provided feedback on the possible strategy and staffing structures.   

 
Operational details were added to the Additional Learning Needs and Inclusion strategy. The aims and 

objectives of each of the Services were clearly highlighted within the strategy and a detailed staffing 

structure agreed for implementation. A joint governance model with Isle of Anglesey Council was agreed 

on. The principles of this strategy continue to include a focus on the early years, establishment of an 

integrated central team of professionals with specific specializations and implementing a training 

programme to up-grade the skills of the workforce.  

PRIORITIES FOR 2016-17 
 
The next steps : 
 

 Fully implement the Additional Learning Needs and Inclusion Strategy, achieving better 
outcomes for children and young people at a substantially lower cost  

 Implement the re-structuring within the ALN and Inclusion workforce  

 Prepare and implement comprehensive training programmes  

 Review criteria 

 Establish sub-groups to scrutinize the early years, post-16 and Special Schools.  
 

7. THE EARLY YEARS 

The LEA’s policy is to offer a part-time nursery place for children at their catchment-area school from 
the September following their third birthday. This is implemented at every school throughout the county 
except for two  [Llanbedr and Dyffryn Ardudwy]; as regards these schools, suitable resources are not 
available to provide nursery provision.  At these places, the LEA, through the Early Years Unit, 
collaborate with the voluntary organizations, Mudiad Meithrin and Wales Pre-school Sports Groups 
Association to ensure free nursery places for the children.  
 
The Early Years Unit plan to ensure that the LEA meets the statutory requirement to provide a nursery 

placement for every child from the term following their 3rd birthday.  From September 2016, the 

nursery education provision is available at 66 locations across the county.  The LEA provides a grant for 

these provisions each term.  There are 29 locations in Arfon, 15 in Dwyfor and 22 in Meirionnydd, 

namely Welsh medium and bilingual LEA maintained locations  to address the requirements of providing 

Nursery Education for the children. All the placements, including those provided by the voluntary 

organizations, are regularly monitored.  

A positive feedback has been received as regards Estyn inspections. On the whole, Standard of provision 
is scored by Estyn as good – See Appendix 3.   
 
There is a team of support teachers within the Foundation Phase and Flying Start plan.  This provides 

more support for leaders of groups and other placements to meet Foundation Phase and Flying Start 

framework requirements. 

Page 59



 

47 
 

The members of the Early Years Quality Group and Education Department will need to establish a task 
group during the next phase to work on effective bridging and transfer structures from the nursery to 
the primary schools to include this in Gwynedd and Isle of Anglesey ALN strategy. There are effective 
structures to transfer pupils from Flying Start plan with meetings being held every half term in every 
Flying Start area.  
 
Over the next phase, Gwynedd and Isle of Anglesey Councils will work as a consortium to try and 
implement the extension from child care to 3 year olds.  This will require collaboration and ensure a 
bilingual standard child care workforce across both Counties by the Early Years Quality Group in the last 
phase to implement the additional child care.  
 
The principal fields focussed upon during 2016/17 are noted below: 
 

 Placement Training on The Profile – October  2016 

 Continue to support the placements on the Profile following the training.   

 Cross county collaboration: 

 Jointly plan documents and training on the Profile 

 Jointly plan and provide training on the new planning for the placements,  

 Termly meetings. 

 Provide induction and internal training for new staff members within the department  

 new staff newydd visit  placements to observe good practice,   

 new staff have been monitored,    

 new staff have been shadowed and joint visits to placements 

 share documents, ALN,  Estyn. 

 one of the teachers attends Nursery Registered Inspectors training 

 two members of the team have attended ABC Does course  – ‘Effective Outdoor Play in 
Early Years’ 

 the team attended GwE training on Digital Competence at the Foundation Phase.  
 
 
PRIORITIES FOR 2017-18 
 
The next steps: 

 Review list of placements as regards team support.     

 Bridging/transfer to the local school.  

 Review ALN Early Years arrangements to address the requirements of the new act.  

 Use the Profile to progress the children to the next step.   

 Review evidence gathering arrangements by the placements i.e. Foundation Phase profile, ALN, 
attendance etc.  

 Collaborate with the Children’s Department to test the 30 hour child care for 3 and 4 year olds.  
The offer will have to be modeled to accompany the part-time nursery education for 10 hours 
and collaborate with the 21stC Schools programme 

 Implement the further Investment on Early Years Pupils Deprivation Grant 

 Review arrangements for Nursery Groups located on school site – well-being, maintenance 
issues etc.  

 Training on ESTYN inspection implications/requirements  

 Prioritize inclusion/training on the Digital Competence Framework  

Page 60



 

48 
 

 
 
8. EDUCATION MODERNIZATION TEAM  

The Education Modernization Team develop education provision models that:  

 Ensure an excellent learning environment for children and staff in Gwynedd schools  

 Improve conditions and circumstances for headteachers to enable them to effectively 
and efficiently lead and manage schools.  

 Ensure best and most effective use of the Education department’s budget.  

  
The main projects during 2016/17 are noted below:   

Ysgol Hafon Lon 
Ysgol Hafod Lon, that educates ALN children and young people from the Dwyfor and Meirionnydd areas, 
was opened after the 2016 Autumn half term holidays. The school was officially opened by Alun Davies 
Minister for Welsh and Lifelong Learning and Chair of Gwynedd Council, Cllr Eric M Jones on 20 January 
2017.   
 
The school that is located at Penrhyndeudraeth provides a place for up to 100 pupils and replaces the 
former Ysgol Hafod Lon that has served generations of children at Y Ffôr. 

 
The school has been jointly funded to the value of £13 million by Gwynedd Council and the Welsh 
Government through its Programme to Ensure Education and Schools for the 21stC. The new school 
plays a crucial role in ensuring specialist provision for ALN pupils provides excellent education for pupils 
in Meirionnydd and Dwyfor areas of Gwynedd, with 84 pupils already attending the new school. 

 
The new school contains modern classrooms and the latest resources, as well as a hydro therapy pool, 
therapy rooms, sensory equipment, and outdoor play area and learning facilities as well as a brief 
respite residential unit. There will also be a garden and café, providing an environment for senior pupils 
to develop their enterpreuneurship and business skills.   
 
 
Ysgol Bro Idris 
The purpose of this project is to establish a Welsh medium All through School for 3-16 year olds in the 
Ysgol y Gader catchment-area. 
 
It will create better conditions to develop leadership, share resources and improve and reconcile quality 
of education across the catchment-area.  It also involves a substantial capital investment of £4.3 million 
to improve the learning environment on specific sites in the catchment-area.   
 
A staffing structure for the new school has been agreed and most managerial posts, field headteachers 
and site heads have been appointed. Appointments will be made to the remaining teaching posts, 
assistants, administrative, caretaker and support posts during the next few months.  

A website has been developed for the new school to communicate the school’s establishment stages 
with beneficiaries.  

The new follow-up school will open in September 2017.   

Page 61



 

49 
 

Ysgol Glancegin 
The purpose of this project is to invest in providing a new building for Ysgol Glancegin that is situated at 
Maesgeirchen, Bangor. The school’s learning environemt is unsuitable, as the current buildings have 
reached the end of their life-span, and are in a very poor condition.   In 2015/16, the Welsh Government 
approved the full business case with a financial package of £5.11 million in place to enable the scheme 
to be realized.  
 
This new scheme will ensure a modern and appropriate space to improve conditions for teachers and 
pupils.  In addition to this projecti, it is also intended to explore the possibilities and develop an 
integrated centre for children and families by the site of the new school.  This centre would bring 
together some of those services that support children and young people on  Maesgeirchen estate, and 
give specific focus to early years and prevention services.  
 
Building work is proceeding, and the new school Building will be ready by the start of the Autumn Term 

2017.  The LEA is monitoring access to ensure that there will be adequate capacity for the catchment-

area.   

 
Y Berwyn catchment-area 
The purpose of this project is to create a 3-19 Learning Campus on the current site of Ysgol y Berwyn. 
The Campus will provide an excellent community site for the area, and play a key role in promoting the 
Welsh language.   
 
It will lead to an investment of £10.27m in the town of Bala, substantially improving the learning 
environment for the area’s children.  The campus will also include community resources such as a library 
and arts provision, and additional resources to improve the sports provision.  
 
Planning permission has been received for the latest Campus design in June and the contractors started 
work on the site in July.  The new car park has now been completed and the work of demolishing 
buildings and laying foundations for the leisure block and primary block.   

 
The Bala new 3G pitch was opened on 8th October, and we will be working with schools in the 
catchment-area over the next few months to ensure full use of the resource.    

 
The time-table for commencing the process of establishing the Shadow Governing Body and appointing 
a headteacher for the Campus has slipped back following the recent discussion held between Gwynedd 
Council and St Asaph Diocese officers.   In accordance with the Cabinet’s decision,  who met to discuss 
the project on 14 February 2017, it was decided to consult the governing bodies of Y Berwyn catchment-
area schools on the option to withdraw the option to establish a 3-19 Voluntary Controlled Learning 
Campus (VC, Church in Wales) in the town of Bala, in accordance with section  55(5) of the 2013 Schools 
Standards and Organization Act - and return to the Cabinet to report on the consultation outcome and 
provide recommendations on how to proceed.    
 
PRIORITIES FOR 2017-18 
 
The next steps: 
Develop a network of viable schools for the future - achieving this will create better conditions to 
develop leadership, increase and reconcile educational standards, and improve experiences for children 

Page 62



 

50 
 

and young people. There is also a need to plan and model for a future structure, specifically focussing on 
planning for the next threshold of the Government’s capital projects. Programme projects are detailed 
below:  

 Bangor Project – Review primary education at Bangor to ensure future sustainable provision 
specifically addressing the need for an increase in the demand for places in the   
Penrhosgarnedd area. 

 Y Gader Catchment-area – establish a Welsh medium Catchment-area All Through School for 3-
16 year olds in the Ysgol y Gader catchment-area, Dolgellau.  Complete the Construction work to 
the value of  £4.3million on the sites of Rhydymain, Llanelltyd and Primary Dolgellau.  Open 
Ysgol Bro Idris in September 2017.  

 Ysgol Glancegin – Complete the construction work to the value of  £5.11million.  Transfer Ysgol 
Glancegin and its pupils to the new Building in September 2017.    

 Y Berwyn Catchment-area – Complete the process of establishing the proposed learning 
campus shadow governing body, and proceed with the governing body’s work in accordance 
with the usual processes for establishing a new school.  Proceed to complete the construction 
work to the value of  £10.27million 

 
 

9. LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT 

 
Currently, the quality of education in schools in Gwynedd is very good, but school headteachers and 
independent education specialists have identified the need to develop new and innovative working 
methods to ensure that the current success continues.  They have clearly stated that there is a 
significant risk to educational standards in Gwynedd schools over the coming years unless certain 
changes are made to the current model.   

 
Gwynedd Council Cabinet supported the recommendation to consult with schools and governors on the 
core principles that will establish the foundations to establish ‘A Fit for Purpose Education System for 
Gwynedd’.      
 
Gwynedd Council was eager to jointly develop principles with the profession, governors and parents so 
that we can proceed together.   Consequently, a series of drop by sessions were held across Gwynedd 
during the 2016 Autumn term for governors, parents and the wider community so that they could be 
part of the process of developing new principles for Gwynedd schools.  See below the numbers who 
attended these sessions:  
 

Session Numbers who attended  Completed Questionnaires  

Dalgylchol 372 321 

Aelodau Lleol 18 14 

 

Education Department officers will analyse these questionnaires to further develop the new principles 
for Gwynedd schools.     

During 2016/17, the Education Department’s structures were reviewed creating a new area structure 
and defining the role of ‘Area Education Officer’ to better co-ordinate the support for schools and the 
entire support services.  The structure of an effective Area Education Offices promotes the ‘Gwynedd 

Page 63



 

51 
 

School’ model of collaboration, rationalizing and sharing the managerial requirements, releasing 
headteachers to provide effective leadership.   

The Area Education Office’s principal task will be on the one hand, to rationalize and share schools 
managerial, administrative and governance requirements under the leadership of the Business and 
Services Officer, and, on the other, ensure that the Education Department’s stratagies for school 
improvement are effectively implemented and that standards of achievement are higher through  
chanelling support, instructions and challenge at appropriate levels through using the available 
resources effectively in school, locally and at a county level under the guidance of the Area Education 
Officer.  

                                                                     
PRIORITIES FOR  2017-18 

 
The next steps: 

 Implement a leadership development plan that improves upon schools leadership conditions in 

Gwynedd  

 Set a clear direction that will enable teachers to focus on teaching and raising our pupils 

standards     

 Discover  ways to lighten schools management and administration burden to enable teachers to 

mainly focus on learning, and ensure better conditions for headteachers to lead education  

 Develop leaders to work across a broader geographical area and take on responsibilities across 

schools  

 Ensure arrangements where the LEA and governing bodies intervene sooner in schools where 

leadership gives cause for concern   

 Ensure a collaborative management structure at a catchment-area and area level that will free 

up time for headteachers to provide effective leadership.  

 Develop managers and prospective managers within services and identify future leaders   

 

 
10. GOVERNOR SUPPORT  
 
The Governor Support Unit provides support for the Head Teachers, Governors, Governors’ Clerks of 

Gwynedd schools.  Support is provided for the School Government constitutional process and for the 

requirements on the Local Education Authority.   

 

The team’s aims and objectives are noted below:    

 Assist with the organization of the governor training programme.  

 Assist and encourage schools to use the (National) Governing Body Self-evaluation.  

 Prepare training resources and correspondence for governors and head teachers.  

 Advise and operate as a helpline in governance matters for head teachers and governors. 

 Assist governing bodies to fulfil their statutory role.  

 Ensure that the minutes of all governing body meetings are monitored and filed electronically and 
correctly.   

Page 64



 

52 
 

 Monitor and ensure the quality of the governing body’s minutes.  

 Monitor that schools conduct a meeting every term.  

 Support the shadow governing bodies of new schools.  
 
During 2016/17: 

 Mandatory courses and courses that promote good practice were offered to governors, e.g. 
courses dealing with redundancy.   

 Use of the on-line courses that were established jointly with North Wales Governor Support 
Officers was encouraged. 

 Courses continued to be offered locally to governors as needed. 

 It was ensured that the governor database was kept up to date so as to keep a contemporary 
record of all governors from every school, together with details of their role, DBS and courses.   

 The Job Descriptions of Governors’ Clerks were adapted for all schools in September 2016.  Staff 
of the Support Unit undertook the role of Governors’ Clerk where schools were unable to 
appoint clerks.  Despite this, there is a general shortage of clerks across the county.  

 Gwynedd Governors’ Association – the Association continues to hold one meeting per term.   

 Governors were encouraged to respond to the Consultation on the Reform of School 
Governance.   

 
PRIORITIES FOR 2017-18 
 
The next steps: 

 A computer system to Self-evaluate Governors’ work – continue to raise awareness of self-
evaluating the work of the governing body using the national template.  Every school will need 
to conduct a self-evaluation and keep it up to date.  A planned technological system is needed 
to run the self-evaluation across the region – Cynnal company is starting to develop the system.  

 A computer system to keep a record of the school’s managerial Policies and Guidelines – raise 
awareness of the need for an arrangement to keep a detailed record of which school 
management policies and guidelines have been adopted by governors – Cynnal company is 
starting to develop the system. 

 Schools Government Regulations Legislation – the new legislation is expected to be published in 
June 2017.  There will be considerable changes to school governance as a result of issuing the 
new legislation.  The work of amending Instruments of Government will take place between 
1/12/17 - 1/12/18.   

 It will be necessary to have a system for working with schools in order to facilitate the 
work of amending the constitution of every governing body in accordance with the new 
act.   

 It will be necessary to raise the awareness of head teachers, governors’ clerks and all 
governors to changes in the legislation.  

 Continue to hold mandatory courses and courses needed by governors.  
   

 
11. INFRASTRUCTURE AND SUPPORT SERVICES    

 
CONTRACTS AND PAY-ROLL 
 
The Contracts and Pay-roll Unit provide various support work for all schools within the county such as:   

Page 65



 

53 
 

 Provide advise and guidance on terms and conditions of service of school staff for headteachers, 
governors and county officers punctually and to a high standard.  

 Process Time-sheets for pay.   

 Draw up agreements. 

 Carry out criminal checks on all staff members.    

 Advise teachers on their pension. 

 Process dismissal payments. 
 
The service is provided by 3 Administrative Assistants supervised by a Team Leader. They work as a 
Team to ensure consistency and follow-up to the Service but also the 3 individuals have a designated 
Area to provide personal and direct contact.    
 
Once again, it has been a difficult year for the Contracts and Payroll Unit due to instability of staffing.  
However, the team has colloborated well and have reached a situation where every teaching staff 
member have received their contract within the appropriate time.  By now, every County Assistant have 
also received their agreements and statement of employment.  The Team has also met the monthly 
payroll deadline.   
 
PRIORITIES FOR  2017-18 
 
The next steps: 

 Continue to work as a team and ensure that our staff continue to receive their salaries and 
contracts correctly and within the deadline.  

 Collaborate with the salaries section and  ‘Ffordd Gwynedd’ to proceed with the self-service 
system.   

 
 
TRANSPORT 
 
The Transport Team ensure that every pupil who is entitled to Transport receives free Transport and 
that every pupil/student over 16 years of age places an order for a term ticket in order to travel.   
 
School Transport of a high quality is provided that provides value for money in accordance with the 

LEA’s Transport policy and the Welsh Government Transport guidelines.  

During 2016/17:   

 A new 16+ Transport policy was introduced  (September 2016) 

 Token prices for pupils aged 16+ was increased to  £100 a term   (September 2016) 

 A meeting of the 16+ Transport users Forum was held 

 A system was established to pay for 16+ tokens in instalments  
 
 
PRIORITIES FOR 2017-18 

 
The next steps: 

 Commence the agreements re-tendering process earlier   

 Establish a group to consider Transport applications that fall outside the usual policy  

Page 66



 

54 
 

 Organize Transport to all Ysgol Bro Idris sites notifying parents of pupils of the new Transport 
arrangements for September 2017, before the end of the Summer Term.   

 
 
CATERING AND CLEANING 
 
The team provides a high quality service that provides value for money and meets our clients 

requirements.  

A consistent standard of catering and cleaning is ensured in every school in accordance with the service 

level agreement.  

Menus are provided that meet Welsh Government Food Bill requirements and which also appeal to our 

clients and our schools cleaning standard is maintained in compliance with the SLA.  

Good features: 
- Our menus comply with Welsh Government Food Bill  
- Numbers who take meals remains high   
- 85% of all kitchens display a 5 Score on the door  

 
PRIORITIES FOR 2017-18 
 
The next steps: 

 Ensure that pupil numbers taking meals remains high   

 Ensure that schools strive to reduce dinner money arrears  

 Achieve cleaning and catering budget financial savings  

 Introduce a new system to collect dinner money in Primary Schools  

 Appoint catering and cleaning staff to all Ysgol Bro Idris sites  

 Open New School at Glancegin 
 
 
EDUCATION SUPPORT UNIT 
 
The main aims of the service is to support effective administration in the primary schools that stems 

from the increasing and additional responsibilities since the advent of local management.  

It is ensured that headteachers and governors receive adequate guidance and support to achieve the 

administrative demands on them whilst at the same time ensure that headteachers can focus on the 

managerial aspects of their posts, and the main Professional duties, namely ensure quality of pupils 

experiences.  

The service provides those elements of school administration that would not be cost effective for the 

school to provide and should be viewed as a supplementary element to the establishment’s general 

administration.  The service is provided by the Schools Service through the Education Support Unit. SIMS 

Assistants are employed who have been specifically trained to fulfil Service requirements supervised by 

an Administrative Officer.  They work as a Unit to ensure consistency and follow-up for the Service but 

Page 67



 

55 
 

also every individual will be allocated a cluster of designated schools to provide personal and direct 

contact. 

Professional translators are employed to provide a bilingual service for the schools so that they meet the 

Language Policy and the Language Commissioner’s requirements.  

During 2016/17, the Education Support Unit has implemented the SLA fairly and consistently for every 

school, through following the work time-table throughout the school year achieving the work time-table 

targets.    

 
PRIORITIES FOR 2017-18 
 
The next steps: 

 Encourage Clerks of Governors/Headteachers to regularly send governance documentation to 
the Unit. 

 That as a department, we adhere to the service level for School fairly and consistently for every 
School, through following the work time-table throughout the school year.  

 Ensure that Headteachers send invoices for regular processing.   

 The developments to the return of three Area Offices.   

 Gwynedd Posts System Developments – Recruit and Appoint to Schools posts  
 

 
12. WORKING IN PARTNERSHIP 
 
STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS 

 
Public Local Services Board  
 
A new Public Services Board has been established for Gwynedd and Isle of Anglesey areas that will 
prepare and publish detailed assessments of the communities economic, social, environmental and 
cultural well-being. 
 
The Board’s main responsibility will be to implement the 2015 (Wales) Future Generations Well-being 
Act that places a statutory duty on public bodies including both local councils,  Betsi Cadwaladr 
University Health Board, Wales Public Health Board,  North Wales Fire Service and  Cyfoeth Naturiol 
Cymru to formally collaborate to meet the Act’s expectations.   
 
In accordance with Welsh Government expectations the Board prepares and issues a detailed 
assessment of the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of communities in Gwynedd 
and on the Isle of Anglesey.   
 
Following this, the Board will be expected, over the next few years to prepare and publish a Local Well-
being Plan for Gwynedd and the Isle of Anglesey that will set local aims and implementation measures 
to address these aims and produce annual progress reports.   
 
 
 

Page 68



 

56 
 

Flying Start 
 
The Flying Start Scheme has closely collaborated with the Education Department to bridge the Flying 
Start pupils into the nursery education provision. This early intervention providesd children with the 
best foundations, equipping them to be more prepared for school, working in partnership with the 
parents, the pupils and several agencies within the early years.   
 
So as to faciliate the bridging between Flying Start and the Foundation Phase, the child care provision in 
Flying Start placements reflects philosophy and pedagogy to the Foundation Phase. 
 
Several Flying Start placements are located on primary school sites, as well as the Foundation Phase 
provision as at Ysgol Glancegin and Maesincla.  The Flying Start placements and Foundation Phase 
placement closely collaborate and share specialization as well as equipment and resources that improve 
quality of provision.  This strategy allows continual bridging from one type of placement to another that 
assists appropriate preparation to transfer the pupils.   
 
The Flying Start and Foundation Phase Advisory Teachers assist to support the high quality provision 
that is required for the Flying Start programme and the Foundation Phase Curriculum.  The team jointly 
organize training, faciliate bridging meetings and provides networking opportunities with Flying Start 
and Foundation Phase staff, closely collaborating with Educational Psychologists, Specialist Teachers,  
Referral Plan, Early Years Observation Units, Mudiad Meithrin and the Wales Pre-School Providers 
Association. 
 
With regard to ALN pupils, the Education Department closely collaborate with the Referral Scheme,  
Flying Start, Derwen and the Health Board to identify requirements at an early stage.  Support for 
bridging pupils with ALN is planned through various multi-agency panels. The individual profiles provide 
relevant information for Foundation Phase placements on a child’s needs and skills, enabling schools to 
prepare for the child’s next steps in education and addressing any identified requirements.  
 
Isle of Anglesey 
 
There is a partnership between Gwynedd and the Isle of Anglesey in several fields (e.g. SENJC and 
Cynnal).  There is now an agreement to jointly prepare an Additional Learning Needs Strategy.  This will 
be based on re-modelling and strengthening the curent partnership and including the entire range of 
services and provisions.  
 
Post-16 Learning Partnership  (Post-16 Consortium) 
 
Gwynedd Council is a strategic partner in a Consortium framework that has a complete overview of 
post-16 education across the counties of  Gwynedd and the Isle of Anglesey.   Including Gwynedd, that is 
a lead partner, there are 3 other full strategy partners namely Isle of Anglesey Council, Grŵp Llandrillo 
Menai and the area’s secondary schools who have a 6th form.  This partnership allows high level 
strategic decisions to be taken on all aspects that impact post-16 education.  
 
As well as ensuring consistency, clear pathways and excellent quality for the learners avoiding any 
duplication in provision and systems, the framework also allows cost sharing of employing staff to lead 
on, and administer all the relevant elements.   
 

Page 69



 

57 
 

The Post-16 Consortium is responsible for Welsh Government Star Project scheme, namely strategic 
collaboration with the post-16 Schools, Grŵp Llandrillo Menai and the Higher Education sector in Wales 
and beyond, to draw up an activities programme to raise skill levels to apply for the best universities 
amongst more able post-16  learners of both counties.  A Government grant of  £50,000 over two years 
has been obtained for this work.   
 
In addition to the above, since 2015/2016, the Consortium has been responsible for 14-19 Learning 
Pathways Network that is a programme that is strategically administered across the North Wales 
counties and which is mainly responsible for NEETs provision and Level 1 and 2 vocational courses.   
 
Young People Engagement Framework 
 
Since 2013, the LEA has moved to establish the Young People Engagement Framework Strategy Group, 
that draws together Education, Economy, Children and Families departments, the Youth Justice Service, 
the Accommodating Young People Service to establish co-ordination and accountability arrangements 
for the young people engagement field.  Pre 16 year old Admissions Panel and Post1-6 Engagement 
Panel have been established in the county that draws representatives from the LEA, the voluntary 
sector, schools, colleges and the health service together to plan provision for vulnerable young people, 
who are at greatest risk of becoming disaffected from the educational world, training and/or work.  This 
strategic collaboration has led to improving partners understanding of young people’s needs, improve 
our methods of identifying and tracking young people who are at risk and has strengthened our  
information sharing protocols to ensure best outcome for the young person. The Strategy Group has 
also led on targeting European resources fo 11-19 TRAC scheme and Ad-Trac for 16-24 year olds to 
ensure multi-agency interventions to support young people back to education, training or employment.   
 
Gwynedd Council has established and leads the North Wales Young People Engagement Managers 
Group to share resources and promote collaboration across LEAs in provision commissioning;  establish 
systems and procedures; develop the framework across North Wales. In future, the Group will focus on 
the framework’s post-16 aspects.   
 
New resources have been secured through collaboration across North Wales LEAs.  Successful 
collaboration applications have been prepared for European grants e.g. TRAC 11-19 years, and 
Communities to Work.   There are other collaborative applications awaiting approval namely Ad-TRAC 
16-24 years old and North Wales STEM  and North West Llwyddo’n Lleol. Both these last schemes are 
led and co-ordinated by the LEA on behalf of the other partners.  
 
Youth Service 
 
Currently there are:    

• 42 youth clubs  (2 of them are Derwen Youth Clubs) across the county running courses  (Duke of 
Edinburgh),  activities  (crafts, sports), projects (gardening scheme, volunteering scheme),  trips 
(fun days to Manchester),  events ( Awards evening, art festival), gain qualifications and 
accreditations ennill  (first aid,  John Muir award). 

• 130 youth workers  (leaders and assistant leaders) at the clubs so that young people can receive 
advice and information on health related matters, sex,  concerns about growing up, home 
related matters with a family or school.   

• A Youth Bus to visit villages who lack a club   

Page 70



 

58 
 

• 5 Youth and Community workers support individuals and smaller groups of young people who 
are not in education, training or work,  or who are at risk of not engaging  ( schools, community, 
clubs).  

• The Youth Service funds the  Urdd, Young Farmers, Scouts and Guides that means that a number 
of social clubs/ aelwydydd are available for young people to attend at their school and, in their 
community, to socialize.  

 
Data for school leavers in 2016 shows a substantial reduction in the NEET group  (who are not engaged 
in education, training, employment)  approximately  1%. This is very positive and due to outreach work, 
maintaining contact that the area Youth Workers have done to target the area’s vulnerable young 
people, and ensuring that there is support in place.    
  
Data is annually issued by the Welsh Government on school pupils  pathways.  This data  as well as rates 
of job seeker benefits claimants are used as the main indicators for the Engagement Framework in 
Gwynedd:   
 

 Gwynedd 

Indicator  Summer 
2013 

Summer 
2014 

Summer 
2015 

Summer 
2016 

Number of young people 16/17 years of age 
who are not in education, training or 
employment  (data on school pupil pathways 
used)   

 1.7% 1.8% 1% ( 13 
young 
people) 

 
 
PRIORITIES FOR  2017-18 
 
The next steps: 
 
Post-16 Learning Partnership (Post-16 Consortium) 

 There is a need to strengthen the strategic partnership with  GwE to ensure consistency in 
challenging post-16 quality of provision across both counties.  

 Collaborate with every partner to ensure curriculum planning of establishments/ area/regional 
partnership that meets the needs of the local and regional and national economy  that is viable 
and provides best value for money. 
 

 
13. PLANNING, RESOURCES PROVISION AND JOINT QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 
GwE 
 
The L|E and GwE specifically focus on improving quality of leadership in their business plans. Mandatory 
training in the leadership and management fields, and in pedagogy and assessments has been provided 
for headteachers,   setting a baseline for expectations for the current school year and beyond.    
 
 
 
 

Page 71



 

59 
 

Education Department 
 
Gwynedd Education Department planning and performance management system assists to steer the 
direction of the LEA and Consortium’s other services. There is evidence of this in how high level strategy 
plans link into more detailed team plans, with specific measurable improvement targets, and with 
individual officers plans.  All the education team’s plans follow this pattern and their performance is 
managed in detail. There are clear lines of accountability between all levels of planning across the 
Council.    

 
Self-evaluation is strongly incorporated in the Education Department’s culture. There is a strong focus 
on accountability and continuous review and a constant emphasis on achieving progress in accordance 
with priorities.  This focus on evaluation and review will lead to significant improvement.  
 
This culture has stemmed from successful practice within the education services. Senior officers must 
justify underperformance and identify possible risk areas including overspend. Teaching services follow 
good practice and there are clearly defined lines of accountability.  
 
The clear and robust accountability framework is an important strength in the Education Department. 
Detailed plans at several levels of the service’s business plan through team and group schemes deal with 
all aspects of the service’s work.  All the plans have nominated designated officers and each of them 
clesrly input to the service’s business plan.  There are detailed self-evaluation arrangements that are 
based on this framework. Officers review their plans each quarter and evaluate progress and impact. 
These reviews steer the evaluation of the business plan that systematically feeds into the quarterly 
service evaluation so that there is a clear trail of team evaluation in the corporate review.  Then, new 
priorities from the service review are rapidly incorporated in team plans.    
 
Officers have a good grasp of their responsibility for continuous improvement and accountability for 
improvement in their fields.  Sharing plans and evaluations in a clear manner brings cohesion to teams 
and drives the strong collaboration that has led to provision of better services and an improvement in 
school standards and leadership.   
 
Officers challenge underperforming schools well and the LEA has used its full range of statutory powers 
to spur improvement where required.  The LEA has well addressed Estyn previous inspection 
recommendations of education and youth support services.  
 
Post-16 Learning Partnership  (Post-16 Consortium) 
 
The Post-16 Education Consortium has and works with every school with post-16 provision to challenge 
the quality with GwE support.    
 
The Consortium collaborates with Grŵp Llandrillo Menai / Coleg Meirion Dwyfor / Sgiliaith to develop e-
teach resources that will promote use of the Welsh language in specific vocational fields. 
 
Young People Engagement Framework  
 
New resources have been secured through collaboration across North Wales LEAs. Successful 
collaborative applications have been prepared for European grants e.g.TRAC 11-19 years, and 
Communities to Work. Other collaborative applications are being prepared and await approval namely   

Page 72



 

60 
 

Ad-TRAC 16-24 years and STEM North Wales and Llwyddo’n Lleol the North West. Both the lastly named 
schemes are led and co-ordinated by the LEA on behalf of the other partners. 
 
 

14. RESOURCES MANAGEMENT 

The Council regularly reviews its Financial Strategy and has made reasonable assumptions on several 
fluctuating factors including likely level of the Revenue Support Grant.   As part of this process,  the 
Council has considered the suitability of its reserves and balances. The Council implements effective 
Financial projection, budget setting and management systems. Fiscal management arrangements are 
based on detailed monitoring guidelines and arrangements at an officers, staff members and 
operational staff level.   
 
Efficiency savings plans have been developed in each of the Council’s departments.  The plans contain 
clear descriptions of where the savings would be made.  Robust procedures have been established to 
measure and track savings.   
 
Gwynedd comparative expenditure on Schools 2016/17 
Gwynedd’s funding level is the 5th highest through Wales on a gross basis, and the 4th highest on net 
basis. Last year,  Gwynedd was 4th and 3rd.    
 
Primary: 

 Funding per primary pupil in Gwynedd was the 3rd highest throughout Wales on gross basis and 
the 2nd highest through Wales on net basis.  Last year, we were 2nd and highest on the 
measures respectively.   

 Gwynedd pupils:teachers ratio in this sector is the 6th ‘best’ (i.e. lowest) amongst the 22 LEA’s in 
Wales. This compares with the 3rd lowest last year.   

 Within Gwynedd, the profile in individual schools can vary substantially from the county average 
of  £4,600 per pupil (delegated finance). Around 0.4% of our pupils attend schools that receive 
£9,300 per pupil on average (the smallest schools) whilst around 35% of the pupils attend 
schools that spend approximately  £4,100 per head  (schools with over 200 pupils).  

 
Secondary 

 On a gross basis,  funding per secondary sector pupil in Gwynedd is the 5th highest throughout 
Wales.  Changing to a net basis (which is a fairer comparison, due to the impact of the different 
post-16 pattern on the gross figures), Gwynedd’s position changes to the 7th highest. This is 
therefore fairly similar to the situation in 2015/16, when we occupied the 6th highest position 
on gross and net basis.   

 However, Gwynedd average class sizes is the ‘best’ (smallest) throughout Wales.  
 
Special   

 Funding per pupil in Gwynedd (schools budget) is the 10th highest throughout Wales on a gross 
basis, and the 9th highest on a net basis.  It occupies the same position as last year on both 
measures.  

 This provides quite a different picture to the Welsh Government statistics, that only looks at the 
delegated budget (where we are 16th highest).     

Page 73



 

61 
 

 There are substantial differences in the nature/scale of the provision and in how expenditure is 
recorded by councils makes it more difficult to reach definite conclusions about comparative 
expenditure in this sector.    

 Pupil: teacher ratio in Gwynedd is fairly mid-table; the 15th lowest throughout Wales.  
 
Conclusions: 
 It is likely that two factors imply that expenditure per pupil vary across Wales - namely 

population density (that providing schools in an area where the population is more scattered 
will cost more) and deprivation (that there is a need to spend more on pupils from deprived 
backgrounds if we are to achieve the same result).   

 As regards population density, Gwynedd is the area with the third lowest population density in 
Wales.  As regards deprivation, based on the recognized indicators, Gwynedd is in 18th position.  

 We would therefore expect Gwynedd per capita expenditure to be somewhere between 3rd 
and 18th position in Wales. 

 Therefore on this basis, it appears that our expenditure level in the primary sector is at the 
upper end of the expected range or is slightly above that.  

 
 As regards the secondary sector, our comparative position is similar to last year and remains 

fairly high within the range that we would expect. 
 

 The comparative position of our special schools appears to be quite central in Wales (it is less 
clear how much comparative impact lack of density of population and deprivation has on the 
need to spend in this sector).  

 
 
PRIORITIES FOR 2016-17 
 
The next steps: 

 Achieve savings plans/cuts including organization of schools  

 Training for schools  
 

Page 74



Appendix 1 

 
GWYNEDD SCHOOL INSPECTIONS DATA – SINCE JANUARY 2015 

 

School  Sector  Date Key Question 1 Key Question 2 Key Question 3 Current 
Performance 

Improvement 
Projections 

Follow-up>current situation 

Coedmawr Primary Spring 2015 Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Estyn Monitoring>out of category 
Dolgellau Primary Spring 2015 Satisfactory Satisfactory Unsatisfactory Satisfactory Unsatisfactory Special Measures>out of category 

Bro Plenydd Primary Spring 2015 Good Good Good Good Good Authority Monitoring> 
Tanygrisiau Primary Spring 2015 Good Good Good Good Good No follow-up 

Ffridd y Llyn Primary Spring 2015 Good Good Good Good Good No follow-up 

Traeth Primary Spring 2015 Good Good Good Good Good Authority Monitoring> out of category 

Llanaelhaearn Primary Summer 2015 Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Estyn Monitoring>out of category 
Llanrug Primary Summer 2015 Good Good Good Good Good Authority Monitoring> out of category 

Llanelltyd  Primary Summer 2015 Good Good Good Good Good Authority Monitoring> out of category 

Beddgelert Primary Summer 2015 Good Good Good Good Good Authority Monitoring>Out of category 
Hirael Primary Summer 2015 Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Estyn Monitoring>out of category  

Morfa Nefyn Primary Autumn 2015 Excellent Excellent Excellent Excellent Excellent Authority Monitoring>out of category 

Foelgron Primary Autumn 2015 Good Good Good Good Good No follow-up 
Garndolbenmaen Primary Autumn 2015 Good Good Good Good Good No follow-up 
Pont y Gof Primary Autumn 2015 Good Good Good Good Good No follow-up 

Cymerau Primary Spring 2016 Good Good  Good Good Good Authoirty Monitoring> 

Nefyn  Primary Spring 2016 Good Good Good Good Good No follow-up 

Manod  Primary Spring 2016 Good Good Good Good Good No follow-up  
Llanllechid Primary Spring 2016 Good Good Excellent Good Excellent No follow-up  

Craig y Deryn Primary Spring 2016 Good Good Good Good Good Authoirty Monitoring> 

Waunfawr  Primary Summer 2016  Good Good Good Good Good No follow-up  

Bro Cynfal Primary Summer 2016 Satisfactory  Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory  Estyn Monitoring > 
Cae Top Primary Summer 2016  Excellent Excellent Excellent Excellent Excellent No follow-up 

Bodfeurig Primary Autumn 2016 Good Good Excellent Good Excellent No follow-up  

Llanbedr Primary Autumn 2016 Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Estyn Monitoring> 

Maenofferen Primary Autumn 2016 Good Good Good Good Good No follow-up 
Rhiwlas Primary Autumn 2016 Good Good Good Good Good No follow-up  

Borth-y-Gest Primary Autumn 2016 Good Good Good Good Good No follow-up 
Penybryn, Tywyn Primary Autumn 2016 Good Good Good Good Good No follow-up 

Talysarn Primary Spring 2017 Good Good Excellent Good Excellent No follow-up 

Bro Hedd Wyn Primary Spring 2017 Good Good Good Good Good No follow-up 
Bontnewydd Primary Spring 2017 Good Good Excellent Good Excellent No follow-up 

P
age 75



Appendix 1 

School  Sector  Date Key Question 1 Key Question 2 Key Question 3 Current 
Performance 

Improvement 
Projections 

Follow-up>current situation 

         

Dyffryn Nantlle Uwchradd Spring 2015 Unsatisfactory Satisfactory Unsatisfactory Unsatisfactory Unsatisfactory Special Measures>out of category 
Gader Uwchradd Spring 2015 Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Significant improvement> out of category   

Syr Hugh Owen Uwchradd Spring 2016 Satisfactory Good Good Satisfactory Good Estyn Monitoring>out of category 

Glan y Mor Uwchradd Spring 2017 Good Good Good Good Good No follow-up  

 

P
age 76



Atodiad __ / Appendix

Enw / Name

Ysgol Gwaun Gyfni 95.78 1

Ysgol Nefyn 95.71 1

Ysgol Llanrug 95.32 3

Ysgol Abererch 96.28 2

Ysgol Abersoch 94.06 4

Ysgol Beddgelert 95.54 2

Ysgol Bethel 96.12 2

Ysgol Bodfeurig 95.22 4

Ysgol Borth y Gest 95.28 4

Ysgol Brynaerau 95.36 3

Ysgol Y Gelli 95.56 2

Ysgol Penybryn 95.62 2

Ysgol Treferthyr 95.17 4

Ysgol Cwm y Glo 94.26 4

Ysgol Chwilog 95.86 3

Ysgol Crud y Werin 94.28 4

Ysgol Dolbadarn 95.07 4

Ysgol Edern 95.79 2

Ysgol Felinwnda 96.15 1

Ysgol Bro Plenydd 96.50 1

Ysgol Garndolbenmaen 96.18 1

Ysgol Glanadda 94.80 2

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 95.69 2

Ysgol Llanbedrog 95.19 3

Ysgol Llangybi 96.66 1

Ysgol Llanllechid 95.69 2

Ysgol Llanllyfni 95.20 2

Ysgol Babanod Morfa Nefyn 96.58 1

Ysgol Baladeulyn 95.64 1

Ysgol Nebo 96.10 1

Ysgol Gym. Penisarwaun 96.05 3

Ysgol Bro Lleu 95.56 2

Ysgol Pentreuchaf 96.11 1

Ysgol Rhiwlas 95.63 2

Ysgol Rhosgadfan 95.58 1

Ysgol Rhostryfan 94.95 3

Ysgol Sarn Bach 94.60 4

Ysgol Eifion Wyn 95.19 3

Ysgol Talysarn 95.33 1

Ysgol Y Gorlan 95.92 3

Ysgol Yr Eifl 95.39 3

Ysgol Tudweiliog 96.12 2

Ysgol Waunfawr 95.43 1

Ysgol Glancegin 94.63 1

Ysgol Babanod Coedmawr 94.84 1

Ysgol Yr Hendre 94.36 4

Ysgol Bontnewydd 95.64 3

Ysgol y Garnedd 95.51 2

2015 - 2016

Page 77



Atodiad __ / Appendix

Ysgol Cymerau 95.01 2

Ysgol Babanod Abercaseg 95.42 1

Ysgol Y Felinheli 96.28 2

Ysgol Bro Tegid 95.85 2

Ysgol Y Traeth 94.60 4

Ysgol Brithdir 96.21 2

Ysgol Dyffryn Dulas 95.65 2

Ysgol Dinas Mawddwy 96.75 1

Ysgol Dyffryn Ardudwy 94.62 4

Ysgol Bro Cynfal 95.88 1

Ysgol Ganllwyd 96.29 2

Ysgol Edmwnd Prys 95.33 4

Ysgol Llanbedr 96.03 1

Ysgol Llanelltyd 95.42 4

Ysgol Y Garreg 95.66 3

Ysgol O M Edwards 96.85 1

Ysgol Manod 95.01 2

Ysgol Pennal 93.63 4

Ysgol Cefn Coch 95.14 3

Ysgol Talsarnau 95.67 3

Ysgol Tanygrisiau 95.10 2

Ysgol Penybryn 94.66 4

Ysgol Bro Hedd Wyn 97.05 1

Ysgol Bro Tryweryn 97.95 1

Ysgol Ieuan Gwynedd 96.11 2

Ysgol Y Friog 94.54 1

Ysgol Tanycastell 95.89 1

Ysgol Ffridd y Llyn 96.04 3

Ysgol Maenofferen 95.86 1

Ysgol Hirael 94.75 2

Ysgol Craig y Deryn 95.67 2

Ysgol Bro Llifon 95.04 3

Ysgol Pont y Gof 96.91 1

Ysgol Maesincla 94.11 2

Ysgol Y Faenol 96.15 2

Ysgol Foel Gron 93.99 3

Ysgol Llandygai 95.28 2

Ysgol Llandwrog 96.25 2

Ysgol Llanystumdwy 93.77 4

Ysgol Tregarth 96.08 1

Ysgol Cae Top 95.62 2

Ysgol Dolgellau 95.38 3

Ysgol Santes Helen 93.32 4

Ysgol Ein Harglwyddes 97.97 1

Ysgol Beuno Sant 95.51 1

Gwynedd = 95.44

Page 78



Atodiad 3 / Appendix 3

DARPARIAETH / PROVISION 

Perfformiad Presennol y Lleoliad / Current 

Performance

Rhagolygon Gwella'r Lleoliad / 

Improvement Projections

Cylch Meithrin Blaenau Ffestiniog

Cylch Meithrin Talybont / Llandygai Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Y Garnedd Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Seiont a Pheblig Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Carmel Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Hirael Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Caban Cegin Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Pwllheli Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Talysarn Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Llanrug Da / Good Rhagorol / Excellent

Cylch Meithrin Dinas Da / Good Da / Good

Meithrinfa Seren Fach Da / Good Rhagorol / Excellent

Cylch Meithrin Penygroes Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Y Gromlech Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Y Ffor Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Yr Eifl Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Y Felinheli Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Criccieth Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Twthill Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Beddgelert Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Corris Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Harlech Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Chwilog Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Gellilydan Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Merithrin Cefnfaes Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Bethel Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Bontnewydd Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Llanbedr Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Garndolbenmaen Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Deiniolen Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Coed Mawr Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Nefyn Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Porthmadog Da / Good Digonol / Satisfactory

Cylch Meithrin Penrhyndeudraeth Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Dolgellau Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Tywyn Anfoddhaol / Unsatisfactory Anfoddhaol / Unsatisfactory

Cylch Meithrin Trawsfynydd Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Talsarnau Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Llanuwchlyn Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Pentreuchaf Da / Good Digonol / Satisfactory

Cylch Meithrin Maesywaen Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Llanengan Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Maesincla Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Brynaerau Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Sarnau a Llandderfel Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Llanberis Da / Good Da / Good

Tir na Nog Da / Good Da / Good

Margaret Barnard Pre School Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Y Tonnau, Bermo Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Y Groeslon Digonol / Satisfactory Digonol / Satisfactory

Cylch Meithrin Llanllyfni Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Tregarth Digonol / Satisfactory Digonol / Satisfactory

Cylch Meithrin Y Bala Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Morfa Nefyn Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Waunfawr Digonol / Satisfactory Digonol 

Cylch Meithrin Llanllechid Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Penrhosgarnedd Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Rhostryfan Da / Good Da / Good

Cylch Meithrin Llan-Ffestiniog Da / Good Da / Good

Meithrinfa Menai Da / Good Da / Good

AROLYGIADAU / INSPECTIONS

DARPARIAETHAU SYDD WEDI DERBYN AROLYGIAD GAN ESTYN:

08/03/17

Page 79



 

1 

 

Committee Services Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date 16 March 2017 
 

Item Review of GwE Operating Arrangements 
 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Gareth Thomas, Education 
 

 

 
Please see attached a report presented to the GwE Joint Committee at its 
meeting on the 1 February 2017, for members’ consideration.  
 
 

Page 80

Agenda Item 6



GwE: Joint Committee 01/02/17 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO THE JOINT COMMITTEE 

01/02/2017 

Report by:  Lead Director & Managing Director 

Subject:  Review of GwE Operating Arrangements 

 

1.0 Purpose of the Report 

To update Joint Committee on the findings of the review commissioned at the meeting of 
25th November 2016 and to approve the recommendations for implementation. 

 

2.0 Background 

2.1 The departure of the previous Managing Director provided the opportunity for us not only to 

review the effectiveness and consistency of current school improvement practice within the 

region, but also to investigate if the leadership and governance arrangements were fit for 

purpose.  It is clear to the Management Board and the region’s Chief Executives that there 

are opportunities to better define roles and accountabilities for school improvement and 

wider education services across the region.  

3.0 Considerations 

3.1 In November we recommitted to delivering improvements in our schools and to addressing 

the WAO and Estyn recommendations with rigour and pace.  We also committed to 

reviewing existing school improvement practice, with a particular focus on the secondary 

phase, identifying key aspects of practice that we need to address as a region.  The review’s 

report is attached at Appendix 1. 

3.2 The review report sets out the importance of moving to a revised operating model to 

address weaknesses in provision and outcomes in the secondary sector. Recommendations 

related to this are set out in Appendix 2. 

3.3  The findings of the review also enable the Joint Committee to take stock and undertake any 

redefining in the scope and responsibilities of the Managing Director post as we enter into a 

recruitment process.  A separate report on this agenda sets out this appointment process.  

 

Page 81



GwE: Joint Committee 01/02/17 

 

 

2 

4.0 Recommendations 

4.1 Joint Committee are recommended to support:  

• the recommendations of the review (at Appendix 1); and 

• the changes to operating arrangements (Appendix 2). 

 

5.0  Financial Implications 

5.1    The proposals at Appendix 1 and 2 can be secured within existing resources.  

6.0  Equalities Impact 

6.1  Any structural or person specification changes will be subject to equalities impact and 

compliance work. 

 

7.0  Personnel Implications 

7.1   Any workforce planning or structural change tasks will be subject to workforce consultation 

and decision making protocols. 

 

8.0  Consultation Undertaken 

8.1  Informal consultation has been undertaken with the GwE Management Board, Local 

Authority Chief Executives and the Chair of the Joint Committee.  

 

_____________________________________________________________________________  

OPINION OF THE STATUTORY OFFICERS 
 
Monitoring Officer: 
 
The intention to report on the review of the partnership’s arrangements and governance has already 

been highlighted to the Joint Committee.  Several steps are set out in the recommendation, and 

aspects are expected to be placed before the committee for further attention.  Some matters, if 

developed, may require the agreement of the individual councils, but it is expected that these 

pathways will be highlighted as the review progresses. 

 
Statutory Finance Officer: 
 
The report's author has advised that these recommendations will not cause any financial 

implications.  The Joint Committee will also wish to see improved governance, through establishing 

clear lines of accountability from the Managing Director to the 6 Directors of Education and the Joint 

Committee, which should lead to improved standards and value for money from GwE. 

  

Page 82



GwE: Joint Committee 01/02/17 

 

 

3 

Appendix 1 

GwE Review 

1.0 Context 

The context for this review is as follows: 

‘The departure of the current Management Director provides the opportunity for us not only to 

review the effectiveness and consistency of current school improvement practice within the region, 

but also to investigate if the leadership and governance arrangements are fit for purpose. It is clear 

to the Management Board that there are opportunities to better define roles and accountabilities 

for school improvement and wider education services across the region.’ 

Interim arrangements need to be resilient, focused on delivering the regional business plan 

(including PIAP), delivering and exceeding the outcomes within the plan.  

The Management Board advised that: 

1. The review should take place immediately and be completed as a matter of urgency. The 
review will help inform Joint Committee of present strengths and areas which need 
improving and require change. 

2. The review alongside the regional discussion on public service collaborative working 
arrangements will help Joint Committee determine the shape of the future MD role and 
Regional Educational Governance. 

3. Subject to the outcomes of the above discussions, any further revised operating 
arrangements or appointments to go live as soon as possible. Delay would risk 
compromising GwE inspection outcomes in the Autumn of 2017.  
 

  

Page 83



GwE: Joint Committee 01/02/17 

 

 

4 

2.0 Main Findings 

There is universal support across North Wales from all stakeholders for GwE to be a successful 
organisation. Many see the present as an opportunity to revisit the core purpose and define a mid 
and long term vision of what GwE should deliver for schools. This needs to be done in partnership 
with individual Local Authorities or Local Authorities as a group as there is also too much variation in 
the quality of support of functions that sit outside the GwE remit. This inhibits the ability of GwE 
work to be as successful as it could in some areas of North Wales. 

 
There is a lack of clarity about GwE’s strategic direction. The present business plan and 
organisational design does not meet the present challenges and how to tackle priority areas. 

The present accountability structure at officer level is unclear.  Senior roles within Gwe are unclear 
and do not have a clear focus.  

Performance of individual authorities in various key stages is also too variable. The majority of the 
LAs do not perform closely enough to their expected free school meal ranking position when 
compared with other LAs in Wales consistently across the key stages. GwE have not focussed 
sufficiently on raising standards consistently or rigorously enough. Neither have they been held 
accountable enough for raising standards.  

Standards at Key Stage 4 are not good enough across the region across a range of key indicators. 

Teacher assessments are inconsistent across schools and LAs.  

There is no clear regional strategy for working with the Special School Sector and PRUs. The links 
between GwE and LA services such as ALN and Inclusion especially in the area of raising standards of 
vulnerable learners and appropriate provision is undeveloped. 

Progress against the Estyn inspection recommendations has been slow and not tracked sufficiently. 

Management Board have met regularly and discussed a range of issues mainly around operational 
systems and best use of budgets. Discussions on finding solutions to raising standards at school, LA 
and Consortium level have been limited. 

 
  

Page 84



GwE: Joint Committee 01/02/17 

 

 

5 

3.0 Performance 

Local Authority FSM Ranking 2016 
 

Ynys Môn = 10 Conwy = 8 
 

Flintshire = 6 
 

Gwynedd = 4 
 

Denbighshire = 14 
 

Wrexham = 9 
 

 

 

 
 

Standards at Key Stage 4 are not good enough across the Region across a range of key indicators. 
Too many secondary schools find themselves performing below the expected level.  Progress has 
been too slow in comparison with similar schools across Wales. 

Page 85



GwE: Joint Committee 01/02/17 

 

 

6 

 

 
 
 
4.0 Inspection 
 
Following the Estyn inspection of the region during the spring 2016, five of the key indicators were 
deemed to be adequate and the value for money was deemed unsatisfactory. Progress against these 
recommendations has been slow and not tracked sufficiently. 

 
5.0 Leadership and Provision 
 
Over the last three years GwE’s relationship with schools has improved as the organisation has 
found a better balance between the need to support and challenge schools. Primary support and 
challenge is generally good and access to training and development programmes has improved and 
become clearer.  
 
Overall, there is a growing strength in the primary sector. This is down to two main factors.  
 

 There is a significant 80:20 bias in the National Model as implemented in GwE towards the 
primary sector  

 There is a significantly greater experience and successful track record at senior leadership 
level in the primary sector amongst members of the team 

Page 86



GwE: Joint Committee 01/02/17 

 

 

7 

 

The Estyn inspection profile is generally good, especially in the primary sector.  

However, the picture is different in the secondary sector. Due to the 80:20 entitlement model which 
is operating at present and the difficulty in recruiting full time good quality officers, there has and is 
a lack of access to effective full time secondary Challenge Advisors. This is especially acute in priority 
areas such as leadership at different levels, Mathematics and English. This lack of capacity in the 
secondary sector hinders the ability of GwE to make immediate impact.  

At present, Challenge Advisers feel that their roles are being too constrained by the present 
operational model. Too much of their time is tied up in the generic challenge adviser role working 
mainly on school categorisation.  As a result, Challenge Advisers do not give strategic lead on 
educational matters that would benefit the delivery of the Consortia and individual LA priorities. As a 
result, individually and collectively they are not being developed sufficiently and their expertise is 
not being put to best use to lead on educational issues across hubs and the region. 

A thorough knowledge of schools at leadership level has developed well over time. This is due in no 
small part to the National Categorisation process. However, there is a growing feeling that this 
process is over laborious and that time would be better spent in delivering improvements rather 
than ratifying information that the school and GwE already know.  

GwE’s role is unclear and inconsistent when appointing senior posts in schools.  Greater clarity of 
GwE’s role in partnership with the LA should ensure that appointments are effective. There is 
currently no coherent regional strategy to upskill and develop working relationships with Governing 
Bodies and Management Boards. 
 
There is no clear regional strategy for working with the Special School Sector and PRUs. The links 
between GwE and local authority services such as ALN and Inclusion especially in the area of raising 
standards of vulnerable learners and appropriate provision is undeveloped. The introduction of a 
range of new legislation would merit a closer working and a more regional approach in this area. 

Generally, there is now a good working relationship between all hub leads and individual LAs. The 
Challenge and Support Senior Adviser and deputy model is generally effective and provides a good 
balance to each hub. There is now a better flow of information being exchanged and in the best 
instances a clear understanding of one another’s role in driving the improvement agenda. These 
meetings can be challenging in trying to find the best solution but the strength of the dialogue and 
the co-ownership of the improvement agenda are strong success factors in the best instances.  
 
There are examples of good practice in each hub, but this practice is not shared effectively across 
the Region. As a result, there is too much variability in what GwE can offer schools depending on 
their geographical location and skills base of staff.  The Regional Quality Assurance Network/Board is 
beginning to bring regional consistency to individual hub practice through identifying best practice 
and sharing this across the Region.  
 
Individual LA plans previously referred to as Annexes have improved.  There is significantly more 
detail identified to improve co-identified areas even down to individual school level. This has 
allowed greater focus to monitoring meetings and stronger accountability of individual challenge 
advisers for delivering. However, more work needs to be done on the overall monitoring process to 
ensure a consistent approach across the Region.  
 
The scrutiny function has matured across the Region. Local scrutiny members have a better 
understanding of what is GwE’s purpose and what it is trying to achieve. In the best instances 

Page 87



GwE: Joint Committee 01/02/17 

 

 

8 

members of a scrutiny committee have been out in schools seeking headteachers views about how 
well GwE is supporting and challenging schools. They have brought their findings back to the 
Committee and held a triangulation meeting with GwE hub lead and LA officers to identify strengths 
and areas to develop. As a result, further work will be undertaken as members will shadow GwE 
challenge advisers in different functions of their role to further deepen their understanding. Scrutiny 
members understanding of standards in schools and GwE provision in their schools have been 
developed through detailed reports from Senior Challenege Adviser. Their presence in these 
meetings has helped address perceptions and sort out any issues member wish to raise and help 
manage local expectations through explaining their role in detail. 
 
Senior roles are unclear and do not have sufficient focus. There is a lack of clarity about GwE’s 
strategic direction.  The present business plan does not meet the present challenges and how to 
tackle priority areas. Service performance management and operational budget monitoring is 
significantly under-developed and does not hold individuals, service priority holders or LA to account 
for their performance. As a result, there is no mechanism to determine value for money.  
 
The present accountability structure at officer level is unclear. It is unclear which officer is the lead 
role regarding accountability to the Joint Committee.  Lead Chief Executive, Lead Director and 
Managing Director all have roles but this is not distinguished clearly enough in day to day operation. 
This leads to a number of issues including a single point of contact with Welsh Government and lack 
of clarity how fellow Directors can be actively involved in shaping developing direction between 
meetings. 
 
Links between national and local priorities are not clear. Much work needs to be done to ensure that 
future National developments support local priorities. Also, a clearer picture needs to be established 
on each individual school’s journey to be ready for the challenges of Qualified for Life.  
 
In a recent Change Board meeting in Cardiff the Welsh Government’s Director of Education 
suggested that he had discussed with WLGA officers the need to review the National model further. 
This new review would include looking at extending the National Model to include wellbeing and 
Equity. This could include further elements of the present Additional Learning Needs and Inclusion 
services which currently sit within LAs.  
 
6.0 Future Post of Managing Director 
 
Since GwE’s inception in 2013, there has been a significant increase in the expectations of the role of 
the Managing Director. As noted above a further review of the National Model is imminent and it is 
clear that there is a commitment from Welsh Government to increase the breadth of responsibilities 
even further into the areas of Wellbeing, Equity and potentially Additional Learning Needs.   
 
Also, in the same period there has been a significant reduction in LA education workforce. As a 
result, the role of the Consortia and LA has become unclear. Some LAs have found it difficult to work 
with GwE to address issues such as tackling underperforming staff in schools. Also, as standards in 
Key Stage 4 are not good enough on key indicators in four out of the six LAs and without sufficient 
capacity there is a serious risk that some of these LAs will not be in a strong position to be inspected 
when Estyn begin their new cycle of LA inspections. 
 
In advertising the post of the MD, the Joint Committee has options to consider: 

 Advertise a like for like post taking account of the increased responsibilities since 2013; 

 Advertise a post that will include the present functions but will also build in the need to be 
able to manage extra services such as elements of ALN and Inclusion; 

Page 88



GwE: Joint Committee 01/02/17 

 

 

9 

 Advertise for a post that will manage Education services in their entirety at a Consortia basis. 
 
In view of the present situation in relation to standards across the region, recognise the present 
situation in relation to standards and improvement against the Estyn post inspection plan and reflect 
WG’s interest in the region’s commitment to the regional school improvement service it is suggested 
that the post be advertised on a like for like basis [including the additional responsibilities 
undertaken since 2013]. In this context, it is also suggested that the present level of remuneration 
should be maintained [to maintain general alignment with the remuneration levels in other 
consortia]. 
 
Any further increase in responsibilities following a further review of the National Model should be 
reviewed as and when appropriate. 
 
There is also a need to seek clarity around who is the Accountable officer for school improvement 
services delivered by GwE across the region. This will include reviewing and streamlining the present 
governance arrangements. 

 
  

Page 89



GwE: Joint Committee 01/02/17 

 

 

10 

Appendix 2 
 
Recommendations 

 

1. Urgently appoint a Managing Director having taken due regard to the options in this report; 
2. Urgently change the present operating model to ensure that there is a clear focus on improving 

performance in secondary schools especially at Key Stage 4; 
3. Individual LAs should review their present capacity and ability to work in partnership with GwE 

to ensure performance is improved; 
4. Review the Governance structures alongside the next review of the National Model; 
5. Implement a service and individual performance management model that will help address the 

Estyn recommendations; 
6. Develop a distributive leadership model that will give more staff leadership roles and give them 

opportunities to develop their own skills; 
7. Develop clarity between National and Local priorities so that they complement one another and 

do not compete; 
8. Develop consistency across the three hubs to ensure equity of provision across the Region; 
9. Review the business plan so that GwE priorities are understood by all; 
10. Clarify the roles of staff especially senior staff so that priorities are delivered; and 
11. Review the operational business support model of GwE. 

 
 

Page 90



 

Committee Services Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date 16 March 2017 
 

Item Unpaid Carers Scrutiny Investigation - People who help others 
 

Cabinet 
Members 

Councillor W. Gareth Roberts, Adults and Health 
Councillor Mair Rowlands, Children, Young People and Leisure 
 

Investigation 
Members 

Councillor E. Selwyn Griffiths 
Councillor Siân Wyn Hughes 
Councillor Linda Ann Wyn Jones  
Councillor Eryl Jones-Williams 
Councillor Ann Williams 
Councillor Eirwyn Williams 
Councillor R.H. Wyn Williams (Chairman) 
 

 

1 The Scrutiny Investigation was set up on 17 November 2016 and the Final Draft Report is 

presented to Members. 

2 Members of the Investigation wish to thank all those who have taken part in the 

Investigation. 

3 Members are requested to consider the contents of the Report and to make comments, ask 

any relevant questions to Members of the Investigation and Cabinet Members and to 

propose any improvements and to reject or approve the Report. 

4 Cabinet Members are asked to respond to the Report and specifically to the 

Recommendations. 

5 Agree a way forward and when to receive an update on the progress made with the 

Recommendations. 

 

Page 91

Agenda Item 7



 

PEOPLE WHO HELP OTHERS 

 

Report 

 Unpaid Carers  

Scrutiny Investigation 

  

January - February 2017 

Members 

Councillors: 

R.H. Wyn Williams (Chairman) 

E. Selwyn Griffiths  

Siân Wyn Hughes 

Linda Ann Jones 

Eryl Jones-Williams 

Ann Williams 

Eirwyn Williams 

Officers 

Gareth James 

Bethan Adams  

 

Page 92



Introduction 

We have only just started to unveil the work that's under way in Gwynedd to support those 

key people who work quietly and without pay to look after someone. 

The general public, people like ourselves, but special people who ensure that their loved 

ones, friends and acquaintances are given encouragement, a service and care to help them 

live healthier and happy lives. 

The topic of this Investigation is the way in which we help these people who help others. 

It became clear to us early on that the Council, the Health Board and the third sector 

organisations who operate in this field succeed in providing excellent support to support 

unpaid carers in Gwynedd; But there is increasing strain on the services. Savings and cuts 

have had a detrimental effect on the ability to maintain key preventative services and the 

level of service that is expected to carers. 

There is always room for improvement, and the aim of the brief work undertaken by this 

investigation was to support the developmental work that the Cabinet Member is carrying 

out to see whether our arrangements and the current situation are suitable considering the 

expectations imposed by the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014. 

This investigation, whilst acknowledging the excellent work that is taking place, 

nevertheless, focuses on ways of improving.  

Our thanks are extended to all officers who have contributed sincerely to the work and our 

requests (tiresome at times, I'm sure!) for data and information. 

 

 

 

Councillor R. H. Wyn Williams (Chairman)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 93



 

Recommendations 

Recommendation 1 – Identifying Carers 

That the Cabinet Member commissions detailed work with our partners to agree how to 

identify and to keep a record of ‘hidden’ carers in Gwynedd.  

Recommendation 2 – Assessments and Records 

That the Cabinet Member undertakes work with our partners in care across the North in 

order to standardise methods of holding assessments and records. 

Recommendation 3 – Response from Carers 

That the Cabinet Member makes use of the information gathered in the Questionnaires 

returned by Carers to identify strengths, weaknesses and opportunities for improvement. 

Recommendation 4 – Information and Advice 

 Develop co-ordinated Information, Advice and Assessment (IAA) arrangements 

across the County without delay. 

 Raise awareness of Members and front line officers and staff of the support 

services for carers 

 Chemists to distribute carer leaflets with medicine 

 Surgeries to distribute leaflets when issuing prescriptions 

 Schools to distribute leaflets to pupils 

Recommendation 5 – Respite 

 Hold a detailed review to find out how many instances of lack of respite 

opportunities occur 

 Create a policy to support Council employees who are carers with respite periods 

Recommendation 6 – Effect of Savings and Cuts 

That the Cabinet Member holds a detailed assessment of the effect that the reduction in 

spending on support services for un-paid carers/ people who help others. 

Recommendation 7 – Third Sector and Community Businesses 

Plan core and preventative services with the Third Sector and Community Businesses 

Recommendation 8 – Mental Health 

That the Cabinet Member holds an urgent review to assess the situation in full. 

Page 94



Recommendation 9 – Welsh Language 

That the Language Committee undertakes specific work to monitor and support services 

to provide bilingual services for carers.  

 

1.  Background 

1.1  One of the priorities of the Council's work programme for the 2016-17 year (as part 

of the Council's Strategic Plan 2013-17) is to review the effectiveness of our current 

arrangements of supporting unpaid carers (Priority Project G7). Link to the Strategic 

Plan  

1.2  The Project aims to carry out a detailed review of the existing provision for unpaid 

carer support, implement short term arrangements where possible to support and 

develop the support and make plans to set out robust and sustainable arrangements 

for the medium and long term. 

1.3  To support this developmental work, some members of the Services Scrutiny 

Committee agreed to conduct an Investigation to consider: 

- What support is available for unpaid carers who support individuals voluntarily? 

- How can that support be improved? 

- How does the Council communicate the information about the available support? 

1.4  The main questions to address are: 'How sustainable is the provision for supporting 

carers in Gwynedd today and in future? And how do we communicate the 

provision?' 

1.5  We attempted to answer these questions by gathering evidence on the three 

following elements: 

- That public services plan and provide sufficient support for carers. 

- That Gwynedd Council, the Health Board and their partners collaborate to sustain 

and improve support services for carers. 

- That Gwynedd Council and the Health Board consider the opinion of carers when 

providing and planning services. 

 

2. Methodology 

2.1  Five meetings of the Scrutiny Working Groups were held in order to gather 

information by Public Sector and Voluntary Sector representatives, and evidence was 

submitted in writing by some organisations. (See Appendix 1) 

Page 95

https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Strategic-Plan-2016-17-(f3).pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Strategic-Plan-2016-17-(f3).pdf


2.2  Observations received from some Members were considered. These observations 

had been conveyed by individuals in the community about their experiences of being 

carers and about the support provided by the services. 

2.3  Consideration was given to performance reports, and measures and documents used 

by the Adults, Children and Health Services to identify and record the information 

about carers. 

2.4  Council websites were looked at, as were Third Sector organisations and 

publications, from the point of view of the older and younger carer. 

2.5   It is timely that the Council's Carer Support Service has carried out a Questionnaire 

which was distributed to over a thousand carers in September 2016 and that the 

analysis of the results had just been received (February 2017). This gives 

Investigation Members a good indication of the opinions of service users. 

3. Who is a Carer? 

Recommendation 1 

That the Cabinet Member commissions detailed work with our partners to agree 

on how to identify and record 'hidden' carers in Gwynedd.  

3.1 Understanding the significance of who is a carer is vital. The Council used to ensure 

that support was provided to carers; now, the Council's first responsibility is to 

assess the need and refer for support. 

3.2  The Social Services and Well-being Act (Wales) 2014 defines carer as 'an individual 

who is providing or who intends to provide care for an adult or child... local 

authorities can treat a person as a carer even if he/she would be otherwise 

considered a carer, if it believes it would be appropriate to do so in the context of a 

caring relationship.’  

 The vision of the Gwynedd Carers Partnership (now called the Gwynedd and 

Anglesey Carers Partnership) defines a carer as ' a person who looks after a relative 

or friend who is unwell, fragile or disabled, and who is unable to live at home without 

unpaid practical or emotional support from you...’ 

One of the features of carers is that a number of them do not call themselves carers. 

The situation of being a carer is unique to each carer. 

A lack of support can have a very negative effect on the health of carers and on their 

ability to care. 

 

Page 96



 

4. How many Carers are there in Gwynedd? (see Appendix 2) 

4.1  According to the 2011 Census, there were 12,433 people in Gwynedd who identified 

themselves as carers. 

4.2  This figure is likely to be far lower than the actual number as many do not identify 

themselves as carers. 

4.3  The latest data from the Council (up to December 2016) notes 

o The number of Carers on RAISE (the Council's record keeping system) - 165 

o The number of Carers identified from the Core Data form - 114 

o The number of Carers according to the definition of the Social Services and 

Well-being Act - 90 

4.4  A further analysis is provided on the 165 recorded by RAISE: 

 Age Number 

18-64 60 

65-74 24 

75-84 42 

85+ 30 

Total 165 

 

4.5 The Report on Carers Questionnaires by the Gwynedd Council Carer Support Officer 

notes that over 1000 questionnaires were sent to carers in Gwynedd who have 

registered with the Carers Outreach Service or Hafal. 

4.6  A difference is also observed in the distribution of carer numbers across Gwynedd.   

An analysis of the 2011 Census figures shows the ranges as follows: 

a) Working Areas - Percentage of the Population who are Carers (round 

figures) 

Bangor 8% 

Caernarfon 11% 

Central (Port-Blaenau-Harlech) 11% 

Pen Llŷn 10% 

South Meirionnydd  12% 

 

Page 97



b) LSOA (Lower Super Output Area) Areas - Percentage of the Population who 

are Carers (rounded figures) 

Highest Percentile Dyffryn Ardudwy 

(South Meirionnydd) 

15% 

Lowest Percentile Menai (Bangor) 3% 

 

4.7  A significant difference can be seen between the areas of Bangor and South 

Meirionnydd in general and even more so between specific wards/LSOAs. 

4.8  In addition, it appears from the information submitted and from discussions with 

officers and practitioners in the Focus Groups that the Council does not have reliable 

information on the number of carers who live in the County.  

4.9  The situation seems to be no clearer in other counties, and the Cabinet Member is 

encouraged to work with our partners on a county, regional and national level 

(including Welsh Government) to address this vital issue.  

4.10      Without knowing the extent of the need, it is not possible to address it. 

5. Assessments, Records and Measures 

Recommendation 2 

That the Cabinet Member commissions detailed work with our partners in care 

across north Wales to co-ordinate the work of conducting assessments and record 

keeping 

5.1 One of the reasons for setting up the investigation was to discover the reason why, 

in 2014-15, Gwynedd fared worse than anywhere else in Wales on the national 

measure: 

- How many carers of adults were offered their own assessments? 

5.2 The performance had fallen from 100% in 2012-13 to 58% in 2014-15. The 2015-16 

performance shows improvement with a figure of 70%, but the performance 

remains the worst but one in Wales.  

5.3 Though there is a small improvement in performance, it is not clear to Members why 

this measure continues to perform badly, but a few possible reasons are as follows: 

- The system for gathering and recording data varies across Wales 

- Although assessments are carried out, they are not being recorded. 

- Officers prioritise other more important work. 

- Officers lack time to record information 

Page 98



- The record keeping arrangements and methods are unclear 

- Are the number of assessments per officer consistent across north Wales 

5.4 Once more, there are no clear answers, but here are some suggestions: 

- In the case of an adjoining council (Anglesey) which performs at a level of 95%, 

there is a self-referral form on the Council's website which enables individuals to 

request a health and care assessment on-line.  

- There may be inconsistencies between the way in which assessments are 

conducted in Gwynedd compared with other counties; that these assessments 

are more thorough and take longer to complete. 

- Work pressures may mean that more assessments are carried out per officer. 

- Lack of consistency and clarity in the way in which information is relayed and 

reported on between Council officers. 

5.5 During the Focus Group held on 10 January 2017, the Health Board's first Annual 

Review of the way in which the Board and its partners operate and monitor the 

North Wales Carers Consultation and Information Strategy for the period of 1 April 

2015 and 31 March 2016 was considered. 

5.6 Observations and information were provided by the Head of Service User Experience 

at the Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board. Some observations are quoted 

below: 

The Carers Strategy Measure (Wales) 2010 was introduced to impose a statutory 

duty on the National Health Service (NHS) and Local Authorities in Wales to work 

together to prepare, publish and implement and Information and Consultation 

Strategy for Carers. The main purpose of this strategy was to ensure that: 

 Carers are identified early 

 Carers receive more ordered assistance and at an earlier stage 

 Change of culture, so that carers are empowered in all decision-making 

processes relating to care management 

 Matters involving carers are main-streamed to the National Health Service's 

(NHS)* day to day work practices  

The Local Health Boards were designated as the lead authorities in developing the 

Information and Consultation Strategy for Carers. This strategy was developed in 

partnership with the six local authorities and third sector organisations and was 

approved by Welsh Government in 2012. 

*It is suggested that 'and the Local Authorities and other partners' be added here. 

5.7 It is, therefore, clear that the national framework is in place to promote 

collaboration on a strategic level nationally and, as a dedicated partner, the Council 

must ensure it contributes fully to this work. 

Page 99



5.8 It is suggested that the North Wales Carers Strategy Group needs to address 

methods of registering, recording, assessing and monitoring carers in order to 

standardise arrangements across north Wales. 

5.9 Although some progress has been made to achieve the strategy, the Report 

highlights a number or challenges which include: 

 Retaining a Carers Project Manager and administrative assistance remains a 

challenge because of the temporary nature of the budget. There are two 

empty posts at present. 

 It has been difficult to obtain reliable performance measures. Work continues 

with carers outreach organisations to develop reliable indicators 

5.10 It will be difficult for the Partnership to develop effectively without, first of all, 

dealing with the above. 

6. What do Carers tell us? 

Recommendation 3 

That the Cabinet Member uses the information in the Questionnaires to identify 

strengths, weaknesses and obstacles, and opportunities to improve. 

6.1 Over 1000 questionnaires were sent to Gwynedd residents who are on the Carers 

Outreach Service and Hafal information systems. 227 questionnaires were returned 

and the main messages from the responses are as follows. (See Appendix 3) 

Here is a summary of the results: 

Type of care provided: 

- Over 150 carers provide emotional support, personal care and general support. 

- Between 100-150 provide support with mobility and medication 

- Between 50-100 provide financial support 

The challenges facing carers in their daily lives: 

Tiredness/stress 50+ 

Lack of 'me time' 40 

Loneliness/Isolation 25 

Disability / illness 25 

Working and caring 10 

Concern about the 

future 

5 

 

Page 100



7. Information and Advice 

Recommendation 4 

 Develop co-ordinated Information, Advice and Assessment (IAA) arrangements across 

the County as a priority. 

 Raise awareness among Council Members, officers and front line staff about 

support services for carers 

 Pharmacist to give out a carer's leaflet when dispensing medication 

 Surgeries to give out leaflets with prescriptions 

 Schools to distribute leaflets to pupils 

7.1 The commissioners, providers and users provided evidence that the support services 

available to carers in Gwynedd were of a high standard.  

7.2 Local Authorities are required under the Social Services and Well-being Act (Wales) 

2014 to provide a bilingual Information, Advice and Help service as part of their 

preventative services. 

7.3 In Gwynedd the Advice and Assessment Team has operated for 8 years as a Single 

Point of Access and can direct carers swiftly to the most suitable place for service. 

Residents in the Cricieth and Porthmadog area are referred to Alltwen Hospital as 

part of the Ffordd Gwynedd pilot scheme. It’s an area of work that is currently 

receiving attention by the Adults, Health and Wellbeing Department with the view to 

further develop the provision in order to address the requirements of the Act in 

terms of Information, Advice and Assessment (IAA). 

7.4 The Gwynedd Carers Partnership (Gwynedd and Môn now) is effective in gathering 

information about support that's available locally. The work is coordinated by the 

Part-time Adults and Children Carer Support Officer for Gwynedd who is employed 

by the Gwynedd Council Adults, Health and Well-being Department. 

7.5 A comprehensive leaflet is published (electronically and on paper) with information 

about the organisations that support carers. (Do you look after someone?). Paper 

copies are available at libraries, surgeries and hospitals. There is useful advice on a 

range of issues, including: 

 Health and Leisure 

 Work, training and courses 

 Financial Matters 

 Legal Matters 

 Maintaining and adapting your home 

 Transportation 

 Care to the end 

 Complaints 

Page 101

https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Residents/Documents-Residents/Health-and-social-care-documents/Do-you-look-after-someone.pdf


7.6 In addition, there is a detailed reference book of 99 organisations with a summary of 

what is available and useful contacts. 

7.7 A national scheme, DEWIS, also provides information in electronic format. 

(https://www.dewis.wales/) 

7.8 The officers and practitioners interviewed noted that the information available 

through the Council's link was useful, but the same enthusiasm was not there for 

DEWIS.  

7.9 The point was made that the value of the information depended on the quality of 

the information inputted, and the information from Gwynedd on the DEWIS website 

tended to be lacking in parts and the information needed to be maintained and 

updated. This is the responsibility of individual organisations, not the Council. 

7.10 In addition, observations were made that gathering, sharing and updating 

information about more local events such as club and society activities could be 

highly valuable for carers and those they look after, but that it was difficult to deliver 

this effectively. 

7.11 Despite the existence of the above information, the Carers Outreach Officer told us 

that there was clear evidence that the majority of carers had been given the most 

useful information from another person - sometimes social services, sometimes 

health services and often the third sector, and specifically Carers Outreach Services, 

Hafal and Action for Children. 

7.12 Getting hold of the right information at the right time is vital for the well-being of 

carers. 

7.13 The problem is how to let carers know about the provision. This is a substantial 

problem if one considers that there are, roughly, 2,000 carers in Gwynedd who are in 

touch with a third sector organisation or the Council or the Health Board. This leaves 

10,000 who have no contact. (Taking the 2011 Census figures, namely 12,433 carers) 

7.14 The Adults, Health and Well-being Department provides one to one information for 

carers through the Advice and Assessment Team and the adults team, and the 

Children and Supporting Families Department provides the same service for young 

carers and parent carers. Third sector organisations do likewise. 

7.15 Despite this, it is considered that there is room for improving the availability of 

information across the County e.g. in leisure centres, schools and surgeries. There 

was no opportunity to air these ideas in detail in these areas during this 

investigation. 

Page 102

https://www.dewis.wales/


7.16 One of the difficulties in sharing information with carers is that carers, often, do not 

identify themselves as carers. Often, the first contact will take place with the health 

services in an emergency situation. It is, therefore, vitally important that the 

information be available in these places. 

7.17 In the first national survey by Wales Carers - Follow the Act which was published in 

November 2016, it is noted that: 82% of unpaid carers said that they had not seen 

any published information by their local authority which would help them in their role 

as carer. 

8. Respite 

Recommendation 5 

 Conduct a detailed survey to see the extent of the lack of respite opportunities 

 Create a policy to support Council employees who are carers with respite 

periods 

8.1 In accordance with the requirements of the Social Services and Well-being Act 

(Wales) 2014, when carrying out assessments, carers' needs of respite must be 

considered. This is vital in order that carers may maintain their own health and well-

being and in order for her/him to have a life beyond their role as carer. 

8.2 A period of respite could mean a few hours, days or weeks. Having someone clean 

the house for a couple of hours could mean a period of respite for the carer. The 

respite period helps the carer continue with the role of carer as well as being 

important for health and well-being. 

8.3 Respite can be provided by statutory services, third sector, friends and families. 

8.4 Evidence was provided by the Carer Support Officer that the resources available are 

insufficient to meet the identified need among the, approximately, 2,000 carers we 

know about in Gwynedd, the other 10,000 notwithstanding. Although many carers 

are able to carry on, unfortunately, in reality their health is likely to suffer before 

they are identified. 

8.5 A range of respite periods are provided in Gwynedd: 

- The care-recipient attends a day centre, or one of the Council or private sector 

Carers call by to give the carer some respite 

- Friends and family 

- The care-recipient receives a Continuous Health Care Package with which the 

Health board can arrange a respite period for the carer and support to maintain 

the health of the carer 

Page 103



- Third Sector Organisations - transportation, sitting services, activities for carers 

and their families 

- Private Sector - either as part of a care package or paid for themselves. 

8.6 Although the respite periods on offer are important and very valuable, there are a 

number of problems: 

- Local Authorities and Health Boards lack financial resources to commission and 

maintain the service 

- The care-recipient unwilling to release the carer 

- Lack of care workers, especially in Meirionnydd 

- Lack of Welsh speakers 

- Lack of flexibility at short notice e.g. to enable the carer to attend a funeral. 

- Specific lack in the ability to release carers who support patients with Dementia 

and Mental Health. 

9 Services Budgets 

Recommendation 6 

That the Cabinet Member conduct a detailed assessment of the impact of the 

spending cuts on support services for unpaid carers / people who look after 

someone. 

9.1 Members of the Investigation are concerned that the Council could create serious 

financial problems in future by not investing strategically in preventative work in the 

field of carers. 

9.2 In the 'Gwynedd Parent Carers Social Return on Investment Evaluation Report’ 

created by Social Value Wales on behalf of Gwynedd Parent Carers, it states that 

each £1 spent on supporting carers would equate to spending £5.82 if the service 

provided by unpaid carers were paid for. (See appendix 4) 

9.3 It's worth pausing for a minute to consider the implication of this. 

9.4 If Gwynedd Council and Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board provided these 

services, for every £1,000,000 of current expenditure, they would actually have to 

spend £5,820,000. 

9.5 In the current economic climate, it is highly unlikely that the Council will be in a 

position to fund this level of service in future, but Members are concerned that there 

are signs that this already happens. 

9.6 As a result of the reduction in the Council's funds and the implementation of Savings 

Strategy since 2007, it is possible that difficult decisions have been taken to reduce 

Page 104



expenditure in Adults and Children Services and which have led to increased 

spending by the Council. 

9.7 A Third Quarter Review of Revenue Budget 2016/17 considered by the Cabinet 

shows an overspend of £226,000 by the Children and Families Department and 

£88,000 by the Adults, Health and Well-being Department. (see Appendix 5) 

9.8 In the same report, it was noted that Specialist Services/Derwen achieved an under 

expenditure of £34,000 – this due to being unable to appoint temporary staff to 

cover maternity leave. In addition Derwen had to make a saving of £50,000 in 2015-

16, a further reduction in their budget of £75,000 this year and a further cut is 

anticipated for next year. Officers from the service say that this is having a negative 

effect on un-paid carers; and they are concerned that this may lead to a detrimental 

effect on their health and increased costs for the Council. 

9.9 Furthermore, the Cabinet has agreed, in principle (depending on the detailed work) 

to spend an additional £40,000 next year on the 'Early Intervention/Preventative 

Programme for groups of vulnerable children and young people in Gwynedd'.  

9.10 It is suggested that the impact of reducing preventative budgets in the field of 

unpaid carers and the increase to Council expenditure and the effect on un-paid 

carers should be considered in more detail and assessed comprehensively.  

10. Other matters requiring attention 

10.1 Members of the Investigation feel that further work is urgently required to assess 

the risks to carer support services in more detail, but because of the constraints of 

local government democratic regulations and the May election, there was no time to 

test these fully. They are, therefore, noted below as matters that need to remain on 

the carer support development agenda: 

10.2 Third Sector and Social Enterprises 

There is a great deal of emphasis in the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 

2014 for local authorities to work with the Third Sector and to promote social 

enterprises in order to deliver the requirements of the Act: 

“Local authorities must promote the involvement of people who receive care and 

support, in the design and delivery of services, along with alternative delivery 

models including: social enterprises, co-operatives, user-led services and the 

voluntary sector.” 

The majority of services noted on the Council website as support services for carers, 

are services provided by social enterprises and the third sector. 

Page 105



There was some opportunity during the investigation to receive feedback from a 

small number of them and, although those interviewed stated that they were able to 

continue to provide services for the carers for the time being, it is clear to Members 

of the Investigation that the pressure they are under is remarkably great and some 

noted their concern that they would not be able to satisfy the need at times. 

This is true of some core services and preventative services. 

Although Members have an awareness of the financial pressures facing us as a 

Council, they are concerned that insufficient attention is placed on the strategic 

planning of services.  

10.3 Mental Health 

Officers of the Council, the Health Board and other organisations stated specific 

concerns about extreme pressures and suggested that the Cabinet Member conduct 

an urgent enquiry to fully assess the situation 

10.4 The Welsh Language 

Members expressed by concern that some services commissioned by the Council 

were lacking in their bilingual service provision and suggested that the Language 

Committee carry out specific work to monitor and support services to deliver 

bilingual services.  

Page 106



Investigation Meetings 

Meetings were held on the following dates: 

 1 December 2016 

 10 January 2017 

 31 January 2017 

 15 February 2017 

 23 February 2017 

During the above meetings, a discussion was held with the following: 

 Councillor W. Gareth Roberts (Cabinet Member - Adults, Health and Well-being) 

 Aled Davies (Head of Adults, Health and Well-being) 

 Councillor Mair Rowlands (Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Leisure) 

 Marian Parry Hughes (Head of Children and Supporting Families) 

 Lester Bath (Part Time Adults and Children Carer Support Officer, Adults, Health and Well-

being Department) 

 Mannon Trappe (Senior Manager, Safeguarding and Quality and Mental Health, Adults, 

Health and Well-being Department) 

 Manon Williams (Area Manager, Adults, Health and Well-being Department) 

 Sharon Williams Carter (Senior Operational Manager, Children and Supporting Families 

Department) 

 Aled Gibbard (Senior Operational Manager Care Resources, Children and Supporting Families 

Department) 

 Non Pierce (Senior Social Worker, DERWEN Integrated Team) 

 Carys Hughes (Education Welfare Officer, Education Department) 

 Dawn Cooper (Head of Service User Experience, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board) 

 Eirian Wynne (Engagement Officer (West), Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board) 

 Llinos Roberts (Chief Officer, Carers Outreach Service) 

 Sioned Larsen (Health and Social Care Facilitator, Mantell Gwynedd) 

 Maria Bulkeley (Service Coordinator, Gwynedd Young Carers Project, Action for Children) 

 Roma Hooper (Children's Services Manager, Action for Children) 

 

Others who took part 

 Iona Griffith (DERWEN Service Manager) 

 Jon Stevens (Chief Executive, North Wales Advice and Advocacy Service) 

 

Investigation Members wish to thank everyone who took part.  

 

Page 107



GWYNEDD CARERS DATA            March 2017  

A LATEST REPORTING PERIOD:   OCTOBER - DECEMBER 2016 (Quarter 3) 18-64 65 – 74 75 – 84 85+ Total 

A1 Number of Carers on RAISE* 60 24 42 39 165 

A2 Number of Carers identified on CORE DATA form**  114 

A3 Number of Carers who received  an Initial Assessment on WHAT’S IMPORTANT TO ME – 
PART 1 form 

3 6 9 7 25 

A4 Number of Carers who received Follow up Assessment on  WHAT’S IMPORTANT TO ME – 
PART 2 Form 

3 3 7 6 19 

B National QUESTIONNAIRE   

B1 Number of Carers according to the Act’s SPECIFIC definition who received a questionnaire*** 90 

B2 Number of Carers who return the questionnaire 30 

B3 Carers who indicate that they feel that they are receiving support to Carry on caring 89%  

B4 Carers who indicate that they feel that they are included in the Process of creating the Care Plan and support for the one 
they are caring for 

90% 

C Gwynedd QUESTIONNAIRE 

 Number of Carers who received the questionnaire 1,030 

 Number of Carers who returned the questionnaire 227 

CH  2011 CENSUS 1-19 hour 20-49 hour 50+ hour  

Number of Carers on th 2011 CENCUS according to weekly hours of care 7,266 1,680 3,497 12,433 

D   APRIL 2014 – DECEMBER 2016 PERIOD According to age group 18-64 65 – 74 75 – 84 85+  

Number of Carers who have been open on RAISE any time during the period 432 157 159 125 873 

 

*The 165 is the number of clients that were open on RAISE in quarter 3 2016/17 where their client category was marked as carer. Some of these may be open for the whole 

quarter, opened during the period or closed 

** The 114 were identified when filling in the Core Data form on the client. These could be new clients or ones already identified. There is no means of making that link back 

to see who the carer is or if they have already been identifiedand there is no means of braeking this down into carers ages. 

*** The 90 represents a very specific cohort of carers. These were receiving carer Services on RAISE Service Placements on the first week of September 2016 according to the 

RAISE Financial category 

P
age 108



 

 

DRAFT Report on the carers questionnaires (September 2016) 

Background 

As part of the consultation process around the Population Needs Assessment for Gwynedd, over a 

thousand questionnaires were sent to Gwynedd carers registered with either Carers Outreach 

Service or Hafal. 227 questionnaires were received back. 

 

The consultation questions were based on the requirements of the Assessment and also the Social 

Service and Wellbeing Act (Wales) 2014. The following were asked: 

 What are the challenges you face in your day to day life as a carer? 

 What or who supports you to overcome these daily challenges? 

 How to they support you to overcome these challenges? 

 How well is this support working for you? 

 How can the support be improved? 

 How do / could your friends and family help? 

 How do / could your local community help? 

  

Profile of the carers who answered 

Almost 70% of the carers are female, 29% male and 1% prefer not to say. 

 
 

Most live in Arfon and Meirionnydd (41% from Arfon and 39% from Meirionnydd), only 20% of the 

carers live in Dwyfor. It is hard to know whether the response from Dwyfor reflects the number of 

carers there i.e. that there are less carers in that area compared with the other two  areas, or 

because of historic reasons, namely the difficulty working with carers in the area. 

 

0

50

100

150

200

Male Female Prefer not to
say

Carers 

0

50

100

Arfon Dwyfor Meirionnydd

Area where they live 

Page 109



 

 

From the point of view of language, most write in English (79%) but although English is the language 

spoken by the largest number, carers who only speak English are in the minority because a number 

of carers noted they speak both languages. This underlines the importance of providing support 

services in Welsh to Gwynedd carers.  

             
 

67% of the carers care for 50 hours or more every week, with 15% caring between 20 - 49 hours a 

week and 13% up to 19 hours.  The other 5% of carers say the hours vary from week to week. 

 
 

Most of the people who are cared for are over 65 years old (66%) with 45% of them over 75 years 

old. The smallest group of people who are cared for are those between 19 - 34 years old. 15 carers 

are parents looking after a child under 18 years of age. 

 

0

100

200

Welsh English Other

Spoken language 

0

100

200

Welsh English Other

Spoken language 

0

100

200

0-19 20-49 50+

Number of hours caring per 
week 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

under
18 yrs

old

19-24
yrs old

25-34
yrs old

35-44
yrs old

45-54
yrs old

55-64
yrs old

65-74
yrs old

75-84
yrs old

85 yrs
old
and
over

Age of the cared-for person 

Page 110



 

 

From the point of view of relationship to the cared for, the majority are wives but there is less of a 

difference between the number of wives who care and the number of husbands than there is 

between the number of mothers and number of fathers. Out of all the parents who care, over 90% 

are mothers, and it is the same pattern with children who care for their parents, and brothers and 

sisters for a sibling; 72% daughters and 75% sisters. 

 

 
 

A lot of the carers are looking after someone with more than one illness or disability. Although some 

note only one disability, the majority note more than one, with many noting up to four. The 

complicated health condition of many of the cared-for is reflected in the number of hours the carers 

are caring every week. 

 

 
 

 

Very few note that they provide only one sort of care; a lot more say that they do everything. Some 

of the men note housework and cooking as part of their caring role and it must be recognised that 

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70

Relationship to the cared-for 
person 

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160

Disabilty/illness of the cared-for person 

Page 111



 

 

coping with these tasks which they had not done before can be a real challenge for an elderly man 

trying to complete them on top of everything else he is doing whilst caring for his wife. 

 

 
 

The challenges that the carers face in their everyday lives as carers 

Carers were asked what the challenges in their everyday lives as carers were and although every 

answer, like every situation, is different and unique, there are some themes which arise regularly as 

shown in the chart below. 

 

 
 

Fatigue and/or strain is the biggest challenge  (22% of the carers noted this); sometimes the problem 

is fatigue only - some say that they do cannot get  a good night's sleep - and sometimes it is only 

strain. A lot mention emotional strain. Often carers face a number of challenges with one causing 

another e.g. lack of support/time for oneself is causing strain for one carer: 

"Lack of understanding from other people. Lack of understanding by family members who refuse to 

accept difficulties. Having no time to myself, although my wife tries her best and feels a burden, 

which is not true. I feel I can do everything, but sometimes I break down." 

0

50

100

150

200

Type of care provided 

0

10

20

30

40

50

The challenges that face carers in their everyday lives 

Page 112



 

 

A feeling of isolation or loneliness adds to emotional strain and causes a number of carers to suffer 

from depression. In reply to this question one man wrote: "Loneliness & despair.". 

 

Many of the carers have health problems themselves (over 10%) and some are seriously ill (including 

cancer) or they have a physical disability. 

"…  I have a spinal problem that I was offered a spinal fusion operation for but have put it off due to 

long recovery time." 

 

In noting that 45% of those cared for are over 75 years of age and the spouse is usually the carer, it 

is obvious that a lot of the carers are elderly, and some note this as a cause for concern on top of 

their health problems, fatigue and strain. 

" As a 79 yr old with arthritis. Who has to keep a strict time table with meals for my husband who has 

no stomach. Routine. Relentless. Day to day. Tiredness. Seeing to house maintenance. Paying bills. 

Worrying about money. Wishing to do admin jobs I can't get help with. I still run a clean tidy home. 

And home cook as far as I can...." 

 

16% of the carers mention the lack of time for themselves, with some noting that they have to be on 

call 24 hours a day; that it is impossible to have a holiday and that there are not enough hours in the 

day. 

"Being 'on-call' for my wife 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, as she is totally dependent on myself for 

all care tasks. The challenge is not being able to leave the house when I want. Everything has to be 

planned ahead." 

Lack of time to relax can increase the problems of fatigue and strain for the carer and, in the end, 

affect their health, so the opportunity to have respite care is very important. 

 

Although some of the carers still work, they mention this as a challenge, and some say that, as 

carers, they do not have support/understanding from their employers/workplace, which causes 

problems/extra strain for them. A few noted that they had to give up working because of their caring 

role which has caused them money worries. 

 

Very few say that they have no challenges, with some saying they are all right 'at the moment' and 

others saying they take things day by day; or as one said, "I just get on with it!". 

 

Who or what helps the carers overcome the daily challenges 

Family is the biggest group of people who helps these carers, but it is necessary to note that it is not 

only the family who supports them to overcome the daily challenges. Although 37% say that their 

family help, only 17% say that only the family supports them. The next largest percentage is those 

who say that no one helps them, namely 23% which is almost a quarter. This is a substantial number 

and a cause for concern, considering the nature of the challenges identified, but also raises the 

following question; what do people/carers consider to be help? Everyone received their 

questionnaire from a 3rd sector organisation that exists to support them as carers and with whom 

they have registered. Do some people think only of the statutory sector as providers of help and 

support? 

 

Page 113



 

 

Very few consider either the statutory sector (social services or health) or a third sector organisation 

(Carers Outreach or Hafal) as the only people who support them. Usually, the carers get hep from 

different sources, e.g. statutory sector, 3rd sector and family, or family, friends and 3rd sector or 

statutory sector. A fair number (over 10%) say that the paid carers are the people who help them. 

 

 55% of the carers note family, friends and neighbours as a source of help to them, which is exactly 

the same as the carers who note 3rd sector, statutory sector, paid carers, care homes and other 

outside help. 

 

 
 

How they help the carers overcome the challenges  

In considering the number of carers who say that nobody helps them, it is not a surprise that almost 

34% failed to answer the question about the support provided or else note an absence of support.  

 

 
 

0

20

40

60

80

100

Who helps carers with their daily 
challenges? 

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45

Type of support 

Page 114



 

 

But the biggest support is the chance to have a break or respite (20%) and although a number refer 

to the hours of respite they get each week through the statutory sector, a number use the time 

when the paid workers are there to have a break: " Talking - take time to help with chores.  Also they 

take time for me to do other things ". 

A substantial number depend on other individuals, usually a family member but sometimes a friend 

or neighbour, to take over the caring role to give them respite, be it a few hours, overnight or a 

whole week. " They stay over night in turns so I can sleep." 

 

Again the carers usually mention more than one sort of help, and many of them receive practical 

help, including transport. Some note that they have emotional and/or practical support and others 

consider the fact that someone is there for them is sufficient; listening and chatting is important: 

"Just being there to talk to & make suggestions." 

 

Although we know the importance of information for carers, only a few of this group of carers 

mention advice and information as the sort of support they receive.. 

 

How well is this support working 

 

 
 

It seems that, usually, the support is working quite well, with 33% of the carers thinking that it is 

good or very good. However 17% note that they have no support, or the support available is not very 

good at all, or is inconsistent,  and 22% are merely satisfied with the support they receive. Over 10% 

note that they need more support: 

"My son is my only support but not available for extended periods, although he intends to try to get 

here more often.  Basically I feel on my own with this and I know it can only get worse." 

 

How can the support be improved 

The biggest percentage of the carers did not answer the question as to how the support could be 

improved or said that they did not know (31%). A few think that it is not possible to improve the 

support because of the circumstances; for example one carer wrote, "No easy answer to this 

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45
50

How good is the support 

Page 115



 

 

question. My wife is severely depressed and is unable to communicate easily. There is no cure to 

either". The cared-for's attitude can be a major barrier to the carer getting any support at all i.e. the 

support is available but the cared-for 's attitude prevents the carer accessing it. 

 

 
 

On the positive side, 18% think that the support is fine and does not need improving. When 

mentioning how the support can be improved, many referred to the health services as well as 

services provided by social services. They mention a number of improvements such as more respite 

and care hours, out of office hours' support, better transport, people to be there to listen and to 

share information about what support is available. 

"I am very satisfied with the level (and quality) of support that we receive and it is difficult to see how 

this could be improved given the limited resources available to the caring services. An additional 

block of 3-4 hrs of respite care (each week or fortnight) would be of great help but it is difficult to see 

how this would be possible under current funding." 

Some answers are a reminder of the fact that a little help sometimes is what makes a difference to 

carers, such as "I love to be able to go out sometimes for a few hours to meet friends & a chat." 

 

How  do / could friends  and family help 

Three carers said that supporting carers is the duty of the statutory sector and not the family. 

However  almost half (49%) say that their family and /or friends help them, although this is not 

always on a regular basis because the family live a long way away (15%). A number of the carers also 

mention the fact that their family/friends lives of their own e.g. working and/or bringing up children 

(11%), implying that is not possible or fair to expect them to help a lot. 

"Family support as much as they can. But my 3 children are all in full-time employment and are 

raising their young families as well." 

 And a small percentage (2%) does not like to ask too often. 

" Family all live in Birmingham. Friends and neighbours always offer but you do not want to become 

a nuisance." 

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

How could the support be improved 

Page 116



 

 

 
 

Sometimes, the problem once again is the attitude of the dependent 

" I have no family locally and she had alienated friends & neighbours by her attitude towards them. 

My son has come to stay in the past but she has been so horrid to him he refuses to support her now. 

My daughter lives in Suffolk with her family and rarely comes home - also due to Mother's attitude" 

 

How do / could the local community help 

 

 
 

By not answering, or saying they did not know, or that no help was available, or they did not want 

help, or it was impossible for the community to help them, there was a negative response from most 

of the carers (52%) to the question how could the local community help. 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

How do/could friends & family help  

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

How do/could the local community help 

Page 117



 

 

 "We are a private family and prefer to remain that way. My wife's needs are high therefore 

community could not help, nor would we want everyone to be aware of our situation. ". 

It seems that this is the most challenging questions with 30% mentioning services which are 

provided by the statutory sector and the 3rd sector, rather than the local community. However this 

is not true in every case, some of the carers mention members of the chapel calling round for a chat, 

or neighbours who help, sometimes by doing little things 

" They do help by greeting us with a smile when we take our daily walk & stop for coffee. At our age 

that is much appreciated - more than that our need is small." 

  

 11% of the responses refer to practical and emotional support, the need for socialising and 

activities, which are all the sort of help that could be provided by the local community, if the carer 

and the cared-for are prepared to accept it, 

" I don't think my husband would accept help as he sees himself as a very independent person and 

only wants to care for him". 

Often the carers are thinking about socialising and activities for the cared-for but, at the same time, 

this support would help them as well. Unfortunately transport can be a problem for a lot of people, 

particularly in rural areas. 

" More help needed in villages. Why can't local halls be used for meeting etc like keep fit. We do go to 

Pwllheli for up & go classes, not so good in the winter waiting for buses etc & winter time is when we 

need more support." 

Some carers note that they cannot join in local activities because no one is available to be with the 

dependent. 

 

Perhaps less than a quarter of the carers understood the question i.e. who or what is the local 

community, and usually they report positively of the support available there, including the following, 

which is a great example of how the local community can help: 

"Because my husband is a partner in the farm he didn't get help to adapt the house - the local 

community raised money in order for us to make a wet room for him." (translated from Welsh) 

 

To conclude 

Although the carers who answered the questionnaire do not reflect the age of most of the carers in 

Gwynedd, which is between 45-64 years of age according to the 2011 Census, the challenges that 

they note and the support needed is relevant to many carers of all ages.  A lot of research and 

surveys have confirmed that caring causes fatigue and strain which has a negative effect on carers' 

health, particularly their emotional and mental health. We are conscious that it is essential for carers 

to have practical help, such as help from paid carers, and sufficient respite breaks. Unfortunately the 

questionnaires show that not enough support is available to all carers at the moment, 

 

In reading the responses, it is obvious how unique is each caring experience, so the ideas behind 

Ffordd Gwynedd and the assessment 'What matters' go in the right direction. The importance of 

family, friends or neighbours as support for carers is something else which is obvious. When this 

support is available regularly; the carer feels better, has sufficient respite and is able to share the 

experience with those who are close to them. This is an experience completely opposite to the large 

number who fell under strain, tired and lonely. However, unfortunately, a number of carers and 

Page 118



 

 

their families expect the statutory sector to help rather than thinking about the informal help 

available from family, friends and neighbours. 

 

There are a lot of carers in Gwynedd who need support; how to provide it is the challenge, and by 

whom is the question. 

Page 119



2

Executive Summary

Funded by Derwen and Children in Need, Gwynedd Parents Carers provides a service for

parents in Gwynedd who have caring responsibilities. The service was analysed using the

Social Return on Investment (SROI) framework to understand the total value created for

parents, children and health and social care agencies. Stakeholders were involved in this

analysis providing us with an insight to what changes because of this service. The results

demonstrate that significant value is created through the activities of Gwynedd Parent Carers

by Carers Outreach.

The result of £5.82:1 indicates that for each £1 of value invested, £5.82 of value is created.

The success of this service is having the Field Officer available to support and advice on

various concerns, but also the contact with other families was essential. That peer support

was so valuable and was only possible because of the activities organised by Carers Outreach.

Having an opportunity to see others going through similar experiences and that support

network was so valuable to families.

This report is not about putting a price on everything, but allows us to demonstrate the value

of having support for parents who are carers in Gwynedd, allowing us to see how we can

create even more social value in the lives of people.

Page 120



P
age 121



P
age 122



P
age 123



P
age 124



2017/18 REVENUE BIDS

Cabinet
Member

Ref Details of the Bid
Permanent
/ One Off

Amount (£)

Recommendation

Finance (£) Reject (£) Comments

CHILDREN AND SUPPORTING FAMILIES DEPARMENT

ÓòÎò
ÐÔßÒÌ

ï

Children in Care Placements
Þ·¼ ·² ±®¼»® ¬± ¼»¿´ ©·¬¸ ¬¸» ·²½®»¿­» ·² ¬¸»
²«³¾»® ±º ²»© °´¿½»³»²¬­ò Ñ²» Ñºº Þ·¼ ïêðôððð ïêðôððð

Î»½±³³»²¼ º·²¿²½»
¬¸» ¾·¼ ·² º«´´ò

ÓòÎò
ÐÔßÒÌ

î

Resources for the Operational Children's
Team
Þ·¼ ¬± º·²¿²½» ¬©± ­±½·¿´ ©±®µ»®­ ¿²¼
¿¼³·²·­¬®¿¬±® ·² ±®¼»® ¬± ¼»¿´ ©·¬¸ ¬¸»
­·¹²·º·½¿²¬ ·²½®»¿­» ·² ¼»³¿²¼ º±® ­»®ª·½»­ò

Ð»®³¿²»²¬
Þ·¼

ïîðôððð

ëðôððð
øÐ»®³¿²»²¬÷

îðôððð

Î»½±³³»²¼ º·²¿²½»
±²» ±º ¬¸» ­±½·¿´
©±®µ»®­ °±­¬
°»®³¿²»²¬´§ ¿²¼ ±²»
­±½·¿´ ©±®µ»®­ °±­¬
¬»³°±®¿®·´§ º±® î §»¿®­ò
É·¬¸ ¬¸» Ü»°¿®¬³»²¬ ¬±
·¼»²¬·º§ »ºº·½·»²½§
±°¬·±²­ ©·¬¸·² î §»¿®­ò

ëðôððð
øÑ²» Ñºº÷

Total Permanent Revenue Bids 120,000 50,000 20,000

Total One Off Revenue Bids 160,000 210,000 -

CHILDREN AND SUPPORTING FAMILIES DEPARMENT TOTAL 280,000 260,000 20,000

P
age 125



Page 126



2017/18 PROPOSED BUDGETS BY SERVICES

Base
Budget

2016/17
Inflation Increments

Levy, Interest
on Balances &

Capital Charges

Demography
& Transfer

to the
Settlement

Income
Budgets

Various
Pressure,

Apprenticeship
& Pensions

Savings &
Cuts

Base Budget
2017/18

DEPARTMENTS £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Corporate Management
Team and Legal

îôðëî ïè í ð ð ð øëð÷ ð øîï÷ îôððî

Corporate Support éôçéí êç í ð ð øïð÷ øíð÷ ð øìðè÷ éôëçé

Finance êôïìì êé øç÷ ð ð ð íî éç øîêí÷ êôðëð

Trunk Roads øèé÷ ð ð ð ð ð ð ð ð øèé÷

Highways and Municipal îðôëëç îïð øïî÷ ð ð øîð÷ éè éîê øïôèêê÷ ïçôêéë

Regulatory êôçìé èí ë ð í øêð÷ èí øîë÷ øçèð÷ êôðëê

Gwynedd Consultancy íïè ï øïè÷ ð ð ð øï÷ ð øïðë÷ ïçë

Central Education ïíôîèç èí øíð÷ ð øï÷ ð îé îìé øìïë÷ ïíôîðð

Schools Budget êçôïìé êèç ïçê ð íì ð øîê÷ éçï øïôðèé÷ êçôéìì

Economy and Community ëôçêë îç ìí ð ð ïïç øïì÷ ê øèéí÷ ëôîéë

Adults, Health and
Wellbeing

ììôðïì ïôíêí ïîé ð íîé ð øïïì÷ ëëç øïôçíé÷ ììôííç

Children and Supporting
Families

ïîôëëì ïìé ïð ð íí ð ïðð îëí øíìð÷ ïîôéëé

Departmental Total 188,875 2,759 318 0 396 29 85 2,636 (8,295) 186,803

Corporate and
Capital Matters

ìíôîðî ççç ð íèï ëêë ð èè éèï ïôðêí ìéôðéç

TOTAL = 232,077 3,758 318 381 961 29 173 3,417 (7,232) 233,882

Less Community Council
Precepts

øïôèîê÷ øïôèîê÷

TOTAL GROSS
EXPENDITURE

230,251 3,758 318 381 961 29 173 3,417 (7,232) 232,056

Financed by:
Balances and Specific
Reserves

øíôðîì÷ ð ð øîëï÷ ð ð ð øéî÷ îôëçï øéëê÷

NET TOTAL = 227,227 3,758 318 130 961 29 173 3,345 (4,641) 231,300

P
age 127


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 EDUCATION SERVICE'S ANNUAL REPORT
	Appendix 1 - Gwynedd School Inspections Data – Since January 2015
	Appendix 2 - Primary Attendance 2015-16
	Appendix 3 - Early Years

	6 GWE REVIEW
	GwE Review Report

	7 SCRUTINY INVESTIGATION INTO CARERS' PROVISION
	Eitem 7 (i) - Report
	Appendix 1 - Meetings and Interviews List
	Appendix 2 - Gwynedd Carers' Data
	Appendix 3 - Gwynedd Carers Questionnaires Draft Report
	Appendix 4 - Executive Summary
	Appendix 5 - Revenue Budget 2016-17 Third Quarter Review


